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DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE
& ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES

JAMIE WARNER, Director

I

NEORASKA'S CAPITAL CITY
MIKE JOHANNS, MAYOR

7, 1992

To The Citizens Of Lincoln:

The Comprehensive
for the fiscal year
the accuracy of the data,
including all disclosures,
belief, the enclosed data is
designed to present
fu nds and account
the reader gain an
all currently effective statements
have been included.

of the City of Lincoln, Nebraska
submitted. Responsibility for both

completeness fairness of the presentation,
government. To the best of our knowledge and

respects and reported in a manner
results of operations of the various

All disclosures necessary to enable
the governments' financial activities including

the Governmental Accounting Standards Board

The Comprehensive nancial Report is presented in four sections:
Introductory, Financial, ....,l,I;;,l,U""U ....(,;,f,I. Single Audit Sections.

The Introductory Section the of Contents, a Letter of Transmittal, a
Listing of the Officials City of Lincoln, an Organization Chart, and a
Reproduction of the City's FrITlI''':>,rrCll of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting for the year the report.

The Financial Section an Independent Auditors' Report, General Purpose
Financial Statements (Including Notes to Financial Statements), Combining
and Individual Fund and Group Statements and Schedules, and narrative
explanations can understanding combining and individual fund
and account 9 statements schedules.

The Statistical Section present comparative data for several periods of time
or contain data from sources other than the accounting records. Statistical tables
differ from financial statements because they usually cover more than 2 fiscal years
and may ng data. Statistical tables reflect social and
economic data, financial and fiscal capacity of the goyernment.
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- The Single Audit Section contains an Independent Auditors' Report on the
Schedule of Federal Financial Assistance, a Schedule of Federal Financial
Assistance (All Funds), an Independent Auditors' Compliance Report Based on an
Audit of General Purpose Financial Statements, an Independent Auditors' Report
on Compliance With the General Requirements Applicable to Major Federal
Financial Assistance Programs, an Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance
With Specific Requirements Applicable to Both Major and Nonmajor Federal
Financial Assistance Programs, a Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, an
Independent Auditors' Report on the Internal Control Structure and an Independent
Auditors' Report on the Internal Control Structure Used In Administering Federal
Financial Assistance Programs.

This report includes all component units, functions, programs, and activities in which
the City exercises oversight authority. City oversight authority is determined on the
basis of budget adoption, funding and selection of governing authority. Services are
provided to residents in many areas, including public safety (police - fire), highways
and streets, health, planning and zoning, parks, recreation, urban development, mass
transportation, electric utility, water utility, wastewater utility, hospital, golf courses,
auditorium, parking facilities, and general administrative services. The City Council
exercises budgetary and/or rate setting authority over the City Library, Lincoln Electric
System (LES), and Lincoln General ·Hospital (LGH), all of which are included in this
report. The Lincoln Water System, Lincoln Wastewater System, StarTran, parking lots,
parking facilities, golf courses and Pershing Municipal Auditorium are all part of
administrative departments under the direction of the Mayor and are included in this
report. The foiiowing entities are not included in this report because the City does not
exercise oversight authority:

Housing Authority of the City of Lincoln
Lincoln Public Schools
Lincoln Airport Authority
Lincoln Hospital Association

Separate audited financial statements are available from these organizations.

Economic Condition And Outlook

Population growth is one of the best indicators of a community's economic well-being.
As such an indicator, the Uncoln metropolitan area's population growth during the
past several years reflects a community that is economically viable and is strongly
positioned to meet future challenges.

The Lincoln metropolitan area population base (Lancaster County) continues to
demonstrate a pattern of sustained growth. According to the U.S. Census figures, the
Uncoln metropolitan area population grew by over 10.760/0 between 1980 and 1990,
adding over 2,000 people to the community each year. The 1980 population of
192,884 had reached 213,641 persons with the 1990 census.

While such a growth rate may be modest by some standards, this healthy pace of
expansion places Lincoln as one of the fastest growing communities in this region.
Most forecasters envision Uncoln to continue to grow at a rate near one percent per
year throughout the remainder of the century.
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Since the national rn",""''''l!'''ln

an annual growth of nearly
below the national average
sector, as well as noteworthy
categories of construction,

1980's Lincoln's employment has averaged
Unemployment at August 31, 1991 was 2.40/0, well

6.8%. This has been led by expansion in the service
in manufacturing. Lincoln was strongest in the

IVI""..... IIAI ..... and retail trade.

Li ncoln's construction activity demonstrate sustained growth. Permits for
all forms of new construction risen by 6.3% over the past 5 years with an
increase in the value construction " ..c. ........... ".C" of over $34 million.

Sales tax revenue was 1

Major Initiatives

and the 1989 Master Plan Update
Update reflect the mixed use center

Business District; a change in the

.,.;1' .... '"Il .... "'" Golf Course Revenue Bonds in the
construction of an 18 hole golf course in the

On August 15, 1991,
amount of $4,655,000 to
Highlands area in northwest

The Lincoln Center
Amendment to the 1985
revitalization/redevelopment
development concept from a

Numerous
the Downtown
parking revenue
Community Development Block
bonds nds, Special
involvements include
commercial and entertai
historic restoration,
and anticipated in 1
expenditures include
Am bassador/President
Apothecary/Ridnour
Foundation Center
Square Skywalk
Skywalk Corridor $360

through a variety of sources to carry out
1\1I .... I~Tnll" Plan; such as: advanced acquisition,

(Tax Increment) Financing,
.:ooo.U1JIIJII..lHf and Water Utility Revenues, downtown

Construction, etc. Proposed public
rehabilitation/renovation financial assistance,

parking facilities, skywalk facilities,
environmental improvement. Projects for 1991-92

appropriated public and estimated private
market Area Redevelopment $175,000,

9,700, rainger Building $1,893,976,
11 Buck's Buildings Complex $1,402,964,

$4,000,000, Commerce Court-Lincoln
Pedestrian Amenities and

The Lincoln Wastewater _.H<_·T .... 'nc..

amount of approximately
1996-97. Of that total,
financed through revenue
the dollars coming from
needed for sludge
an odor control " ...,....r> .......

clarifier
Street Plant, and '-"'W"""'-'O"-'I

a capital improvements program in the
over the 6 year period of 1991-92 through
$6,946,000 of those improvements will be

revolving fund dollars, with the balance of
major portion of those dollars will be

......... j'""v .... lL4. improvements at the Theresa Street plant,
Street facility, general replacement of primary

equipment and controls at the Theresa
sewer lines.



The Lincoln improvements program in the amount
through 1996-97. Of those dollars,

will be financed through revenue
for services. The major

installation of new wells,
nrn,'U'OlrrlOnTC' in Ashland area; construction of a new

; construction a new water transmission main
reservoirs; and replacement

In developing and
the adequacy of
designed to
safeguarding
reliability of 1i
accountability

Several major
all City departments.
departmental
approved by
Internal Auditor.
all
between
Ordinance
Director
purpose.
disposition of
controls within

The ·J'U~""'.

controls
proper recording

consideration is given to
accounting controls are

, assurance regarding the
use or dispositions, and the
statements and maintaining

Department affect transactions from
City Auditor to audit all

, after they have been
,.-.!.+,.......... office has a full-time

IrU'UIU\JIlI~ internal and conducts audits of
A monthly reconciliation is made

Office. The Purchasing
include certification by the

been appropriated for that
...... '.... '.... "' ... monitoring acquisition and

controls, there are numerous

but serves to indicate that
.-.. .-tr'I.... r'....~ reasonable assurance of

Ace

or account groups, each
; the operations of each fund are

that comprise its assets,
revenues/receipts, and

t"toe'.f"l"lir'\'I'lf"Il of each fund and the
........... ""' ...'..... in the Financial Section.

Budgetary
balances
which

the encumbrance of
Purchase orders

lyQ;;:)yU until additional



appropriations are available. Open encumbrances are reported as reservations
of fund balance at 31 , 1991. Except Capital Projects Funds, budgets for
Governmental Type Funds are adopted annually. Capital Project Funds are budgeted
by project and are continuing appropriations through completion of the
project. Fund budgets are annually.

General Governmental (General, Special Revenue and Debt Service
Funds) on the basis LUL(;;,UQ"'-II $89,662,216 1990-91 , an increase of 6.99°/0 from
1989-90. General property 27.73°/0 of General Governmental
Revenues compared 31.150/0 amount revenues from various
sources and the last following tabulation:

Revenue Source

Taxes
Intergovernmental
Permits and Fees
Reimbursement for Services
Court Fees
Recreational Receipts
Interest
Other

AmQunt
Percent
of To!al

64.8°/0
20.0

2.9
1.3
0.1
0.8
2.4

Increase
(Decrease)

1rQm 1989-90

Percent Of
Increase

(Decrease)

3.5(}~

3.3
29.9
17.2

(17.2)
9.5

(16.8)
76.2

7.0

Permits and Fees increased to a new 911 Communications surcharge fee which
went into effect September 1, 1 Miscellaneous revenue increased due to the
repayment to COSG a loan to the Indian Center and a refund of escrow to
CDSG.

Assessed real
$4,281 ,739,381.

ns market value for 1990-91, totaled

As of August 31, 1991, current
of the tax levy, 1.07%
for 1990-91, and the orececuna

General
Library
Social Security
Police and Fire !Jnll'"'IIC"lr~n

General Obligation

the County Treasurer were 94.51 0
/ 0

iln .... O'"'lTil''\1I'"'II of property tax levy by purpose
are as follows:

.1990-91 1989-90 1988-89

.3335 .3243
.0568 .0603 .0647
.0187 .0165 .0167
.0153 .0110 .0117
.0573 .0655 .0627

.4868 .4801
= --
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General
$78,481

year are

accounting totaled
Increases and

over the preceding

Percent Of
Increase

(Decrease)

5.0%,
5.2
6.9
3.8
3.3
5.9

30.7
7.6

1
198,091

19.0%,
33.9

8.6
12.

7.8
6.4

General ~,...,,,............,,,nnt

Public
Streets and I-Ill"It·nAJ~'~Jf:!

Culture - Recreation
Economic
Health and \JVOlf~ro

Debt ..... 01'1111 ..... 0

Bonds which were

which opened in
which opened in

Aprii 1990.
in area. The

monthly leases to
. Long-term debt

generated by
of both

are presented in the

1

1

1 189
1 186

547,093
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The City owns and operates a licensed 307-bed general hospital. It is controlled and
managed by an administrative board and is not supported by general tax revenue.
The actions of the board are subject to final action by the City Council regard to
rates and charges, budgets, and long-term financing. The total outstanding bonded
debt of LGH at August 31, 1991, was $21,225,000. (See Note 9 to the Financial
Statements.)

lincoln Electric System (lES)

The City owns and operates its own electric utility system which, like LGH, is managed
by an administrative board. the board with regard to rates, budgets, and
long-term financing are to final review and approval by the City Council. In
accordance with Section of the Lincoln Municipal Code, LES operates on a
January 1 - December 31 , fiscal year. Audited financial information as of and for LES'
fiscal year ended December 31, 1990 is included in the City's August 31, 1991
financial statements.

Water And Wastewater System

The City's Water and Utility System showed increases in operating
revenue and operating income. Comparative for the past two fiscal years are
presented in the following tables:

j 989-90

15,866,865
8,377,266

12,162,102
1,508,814

8.06

1990-91

$17,824,809
10,115,492
1
3,832,571

4.27

Operating Revenue
Operating
Revenue Available
Debt Service
Debt Service

Wastewater System

Operating Revenue
Operating Income
Revenue Available
Debt Service
Debt Service

1990-91

11,330,671
3,663,213
6,579,395
1,297,332

5.07

1989-90

10,719,263
3,284,872
6,182,782
1,275,728

4.85

Pension Trust Fynds

The City maintains two retirement funds which account for the receipt, investment and
distribution of retirement made for the benefit of police officers and
firefighters.
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Expendable ~UA

City as trustee and are
respective trust.

resources received and held by the
accordance with the conditions of the

Agency funds are used
others.

for "e"':f"'n"l'e'" other funds, governments, or

for in Capital Projects
capital improvement projects

upon completion. Since
items are not included in the

are purchased or constructed with
or rchase, become part of the

are capitalized as contributed

Proceeds of general obligation bond
funds until improvement are
are accounted for in the general
the City does not capitalize in+lI"", .... i·p""

general fixed asset ~....,..vu

Capital Projects
operation of an Internal
capital in

The general
gene
Internal
approximately 1
the prior

assets used in the performance of
assets the Enterprise and

general fixed assets consisted of
, a increase of $6,227,335 ave r

and the amount of bonded
debt position to municipal
for City of Lincoln at

Net Net Bonded
Bonded Debt Debt Per Capita

28.80

147.94

176.74

27,62
204.36

28,400,835

5,527,943

33,928,778

5,302,761
39,231,539

General Obligation:
General Bonds
Tax Allocation Bonds

and Notes
Total General Bonds

Including Tax
Allocation Bonds and
Notes 38,800,000

Special Assessment Bonds

xv



the recognizes a long-term
Note 9 to the Combined Financial

I!.4I1JVUIl. the debt position of the City.

" ... ""'u ...... 31 J i 991 :

In addition to
liability for
Statements presents more

The following bonds were 1,;:,.::n.llClU

Date
~

Average
Interest Bate When Due Amount

Genera! Obligation Bonds:
08/15/91 Storm Sewer 5.69390
08/30/91 Tax Allocation Bond AnnCIP8ltion Notes 8.30000

'92 to '98 $ 1,220,000
'91 & '92 763,000

Revenue Bonds:
11/01/90 Water
08/15/91 Golf
08/01/90 Wastewater

6.98500
6.69210

Ser. '93 to '10
'95 to '11
'90 to '06

42,000,000
4,655,000
3,238,000

The 1991
Series 1983

retire $1,190,000 of the
vU..;;l~JU Debt.)

interim financing
n public improvements in

Project No. 1 and Hardy

The 1991 Golf
equipping of a new
northwest quadrant of

the construction and
golf course in the

In fiscal
Nebraska,
anaerobic
project costs,
Loan funds advanced to
1991, Wastewater

a loan from the State of
for the construction of an

advances for eligible
and are due contractors.

not exceed $9,030,100. As of August 31,
"'::If'1\I":::2n,l"'ne- ,700.

xvi.



.... .,.,,,"" continue to have excellent credit

General Obligation Bonds
Water and Sewer Revenue
Electric ........ "c:> ...

Electric Power Supply
Distribution Facility

Commercial Paper
Lincoln General Hospital (Ser. 1

Aa

A1
A1

Standard & PQor's

AAA
AA

AA
A+

+
AAA

limitations and restrictions on annual
through various restricted
bond reserve funds, and

in cQmpliance with all such significant

interest-bearing deposits or U.S.
of available funds were invested in

4 tQ the Combined Financial
the manner in which these

C''t"'''t''lIn'i't'' was 6.58% and the amount

administration Qf insurance
claims and the collecting Qf
include researching insurance markets,

effectively purchasing coverage, reviewing
maintaining actuarial soundness of self-insured

claims programs cost effectively and
claims. The City is self-insured for

employee long-term disability.
Since implementation, the self-

of all City funds and accounts by
public accountants by the City Council. The Federal

OMB Circular A-128, which was issued to implement the Single
requires that receive $100,000 or more in
fiscal compliance audit performed.

staff from the Transportation,
Departments and the Lincoln

x:vii
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Deloitte&
Touche

1040 NBC Center
Lincoln, Nebraska 68508

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

The Honorable Mayor
and Members of the City Council
Lincoln, Nebraska

Telephone: (402) 474~ 1776
Facsimile: (402) 4740365

We have audited the accompanying general purpose financial statements of the
City of Lincoln, Nebraska as of August 31, 1991, and for the year then ended,
listed in the foregoing table of contents. These general purpose financial
statements are the responsibility of the management of the City of Lincoln,
Nebraska. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these general purpose
financ ial statements based on our audi t. We did no t audi t the financ ial
statements of Lincoln General Hospital, Lincoln Wastewater System, Lincoln Water
System, and Lincoln Electric System, which reflect 95% and 96%, respectively, of
the assets and revenues of the enterprise fund. Those statements were audited
by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us, and our opinion,
insofar as it relates to the amounts included for Lincoln General Hospital,
Lincoln Wastewater System, Lincoln Water System, and Lincoln Electric System, is
based solely on the reports of the other audi tors. The general purpose
financial statements of the City of Lincoln as of August 31, 1990 were audited
by other auditors whose report dated January 11, 1991, expressed an unqualified
opinion on those statements.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the general purpose financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the general purpose financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
general purpose financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit and
the reports of other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Member

DiiT International 2



In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, such
general purpose financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the City of Lincoln, Nebraska as of August 31, 1991,
and the results of its operations and the cash flows of its proprietary fund
types and similar trust funds for the year then ended in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the 1991
general purpose financial statements taken as a whole. The combining and
individual fund and account group financial statements and schedules listed in
the foregoing table of contents are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the general purpose financial statements
of the City of Lincoln, Nebraska. These combining and individual fund and
account group financial statements and schedules are the responsibility of the
management of the City of Lincoln, Nebraska. Such additional information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the general
purpose financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all
material respects when considered in relation to the general purpose financial
statements taken as a whole. The statistical data was not audited by us and,
accordingly, we do not express an opinion on such information.

January 15, 1992
Lincoln, Nebraska

3



ExhN1

CITY Of UMCOUe, NE
COMBINED BALANCE SHEET· AU. FUND TYPES AND ACCOUNT GROUPS

AUGUST 31, 1991
WIth~iYe Totall FClf August 31, 1990

Fldudary

Goveml'l'l8l'ltal Fund Type! Proprietary' Fund Txpes FundTyP! ,Account Groups Tot.
General (Memorandum Only)

SpecIal Debt CapItal Enterprise Internal Trust And Gerlefal long-Term

General AeY'8IlUG Service Projects (Note 1) Service Agency Fixed~ Uabillty 1991 1990

ASSEm AND OTHIBl DEBITS

Calh Held By CIty Treuurer (Note 4) S 2,967,661 5,033,948 3,746,241 688,512 3,068,052 3,553,947 7,640,832 26,699,193 28,028,540

Calh On Hand And In Ot/'I« Accoom (Note 4) 3,516 25,694 73,680 215,571 318,461 1,096,618

Inv.~ (At COlt Or Amortized Cost) (Note 4) 8,986,461 7,176,455 17,162,642 49,754,783 5,031,531 68,941,728 157,053,600 160,109,271

AeceIvabIM (Not_ 2 And 5) 3,203,437 1,493,843 6,856,754 442,311 29,953,720 270,409 1,751,013 43,971,487 42,000,107

Due From Other Fundi (Note 17) 2.015,603 1,757,787 517,248 1,996,546 52,647 648,861 150,674 7,139,366 7,001,799

Duo From Other GcMlmfT1lllflts (Note 6) 2,083,078 1,935,566 30,618 :266,744 227,739 8,175 4,551,920 4,358,261

Inventories 414,366 4,030 4,895,942 226,968 5,541,306 5,259,360

Plant 0pera1l0n A.- 5,218,000 5,218,000 4,052,000

PNIpaId~ 252,660 751,001 1,003,661 990,502

AeirrbYrNmeI'ltla From Third PM)' Paycn 340,000 340,000 439,000

Contractor Retainago 869,317 869,317 833,299

U~Bond luual'lOe Expense 1,088,681 1,088,681 307,110

Defllll'l'ed Chargee And Othet Assets (Note 15) 29,033,000 29,033,000 25,740,000

Advance Paymem For Nuc:lear Fuel 1,243,000 1,243,000 1,853,000

Restricted AsseIJI:
~ CMh(NMe4) 7,003,108 7,003,108 4,467,114

Cash On Hand And In Other Acl::ourlm (NWI4) 83,559 83,559 4,238

Inveetmel'lls At C<»t Or AmortIzed Cost (Note 4) 117,883,357 117,883,357 70,316,536

Aoorued IntefMlt Aeoefvablo (Note 5) 1,347,649 1,347,649 564,407

Duo From Other Funds (Note 17) 6,422 6,422 8,319
Property, Plant, AndEqu~ (Net Of AccunUated

DepfCldallon) (Note 7) 512,217,442 6,753,464 71,7(16,131 590,677,037 561,874,123
II'llltaIIrr1l!n PurchaM Agroemflrlt 21,839
InaUl'IIII'108 Contract (Note 15) 2,795,846 2,795,846 2,282,717
Amount Available In Debt ServioIJ FUI'lds 9,958,461 9,958,461 12,322,225
Amount To Be F'1'OYided For AetlI'8l'nlnt

Of General long-Term !.lablIItles 40,600,455 40,608,455 42,331,410
Totai AsNts And Other Debb $ 10,940,321 19,237,329 18,327,316 20,290,011 164,280,787 16,712,919 82,313,156 71,106,131 50,566,916 1,054,434,886 976,347,793

UAII!IUTlES

Warrants Payable 3,020,021 3,020,021 2,124,290
V~Payabie 28,378 14,809 2,610 45,703 102,999 16,246 270,745 206,615
C<lntraas Payable 1,651,493 1,657,493 1,089,284
AcoountsPayabio 261,298 318,529 9.874 1,096,147 10,072,630 453,021 11,108 12,222,607 10,824,741
kcnJed llablIltlee 1,373,690 5llO,292 9,351,565 236,378 364,746 11,906,611 11,015,047
Acaued Con"penu4ed Absenoes 1,882,460 644,569 855,680 431,848 3,907 1,150,916 4,969,380 4,361,584
Payable From Aestrided Assets:

Construction ContflIICt1D 2,311,421 2,311,421 1,416,395
Aocrued Inter_ 7,251,261 7,257,261 6,400,616
Fuel Credit Obligation Notes (Not. 9) 300,000 300,000 475,000
Other 128,000
Revenue BClnds (Note 9) 9,075.000 9,075,000 8,495,000

Acx:teted Interest On CapitaJ Apprec::iaaion Bond$ 5,472,000 5,4n,OOO 3,970,000
Due To Other Goverrments 182,625 16,026 26,433 1,001,419 1,226,503 1,172,249
Due To Contractor 925,068 925,068 895,839

(Continued)



(Exhbit 1, Continued)
Fiduciary

Governmental Fund Txpes Proprietary Fund Types Fund Type Account Groups Totals

General (Memorandum Only)

Special Debt Capital Enterprise Internal Trust And General Long-Term

General Revenue Service Projects ~ Service Agency Fixed Assets Liability 1991 1990

(UABILlTIE5, Continued)

Due To Plan Members (Note 15) 1,474,000 2,820,169 4,294,169 3,761,961

Due To Other Funds (Note 17) 143,303 2,208,754 62 1,178,739 52,801 371,378 3,190,751 7,145,788 7,010,118

Arbitrage Rebate 160,000 160,000

Due State for Sales Tax Collections 62 62

Unearned Rental Proceeds 17,823 17,823 43,046

Unearned Revenue 23,850 23,850 23,391

Deferred Revenues 1,284,872 291,544 5,533,131 71,412 7,180,959 7,175,457

Claims (Note 20) 2,893,000 2,893,000 2,208,000

Special Assessments Debt With Governmental
CornrTitment 12,315,000

General Obligation Bonds Payable (Note 9) 10,390,000 10,390,000 39,451,000

Revenue Bonds And Notes (Note 9) 377,434,700 37,157,000 414,591,700 336,592,000

Tax Allocation Bond Anticipation Notes (Note 9) 763,000 763,000 705,000

Tax Allocation Bonds (Note 9) sao ,000 880,000 880,000

Fuel Credit Obligation Notes (Note 9) 300,000

Bond Principal Payable 30,000 30,000 35,000

Bond Interest Payable 16,493 16,493 54,474

Deferred Credits And Other 1,030,000 1,030,000 139,000

Obligations Under Capital Leases (Note 9) 226,000 226,000 205,200

Amounts Held Under State Lease Agreement 131

Other 2,603,960 2,603,960 2,430,025

\Jl Total Liabilities 5,180,476 4,136,382 5,589,560 4,094,989 427,352,747 4,515.057 11.424,847 50,566,916 512,860,974 465,963,463

FUND EOOITY

Contributed Capital (Note 8) 69,232,307 850,006 70,082,313 67,335,813
Investment In General Fixed Assets 71,706,131 71,706,131 65,478,796
Retained Earnings:

Reserved For:
Debt Service 26,Q42,108 26,042,108 20,016,102
I~overnents 53,719,326 53,719,326 15,297,500
Restricted Funds 13,032,000 13,032,000 14,522,000

Unreserved 152,985,299 11,347,856 164,333,155 183,245,552
Fund Balances:

Reserved For:
Encurrbrances 392,788 6,011,722 1,257,071 1,661,581 1,795,911
I~overnents 4,293,000 4,293,000 3,726,000
Inventories 414,366 4,030 418,396 429,821
Debt Service 9,958,461 9,958,461 12,322,225
Restricted Funds 118,000 178,000 154,000
Er'f1)loyes Retirement 10,198,968 70,198,968 66,969,706

Unreserved:
Designated For Subsequent Years' Expenditures 3,241,520 924,061 1,519,152 5,690,733 9,054,822
Undeslgnated 1,105,171 8,161,134 2,119,295 13,418,199 11,446,000 749,341 44,259,140 44,036,022

Total Retained EamingslFund Balances 5,759,845 15,100,947 12,737,156 16,195,022 267,695,733 11,347,856 10,948,309 399,785,468 377,569,721
Total Equity And Other Credits 5,759,845 15,100,947 12,737,756 16,195,022 336,928,040 12,197,862 70,948,309 71,706,131 541,573,912 510,384,330

Committments And Contingent Liabilities
(Notes 9, 13, and 14)

Total Liabilities And Fund Equity S 10,940,321 19.237,329 18,327,316 20,290,011 764,280,787 16,712,919 82,373,156 71,706,131 50,566,916 1,054,434,886 976.347,793

See Accompanying Notes To Combined Financial Statements



Exhbit 2

CITY OF UNCOUII. HE
COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES. AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCES· All GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES AND EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS
FISCAl YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 1991

With~ Totals For Fiscal Yea,f Ended AugUSl31, 1990

Aduciary
Governmental Fund Types Fund Type Totals

(Memorandum Only)
Special Debt Capital Expendable

~ RlW9nue ~~~ects Trust 1991 1990
Revenues:

Taxes And Special Assessments (Note 2) $ 47,321,412 3,994,198 6,779,985 2,785,694 60,881,289 58,931,390

Intergovemmental 2,737,244 15,213,427 936,247 18,886,918 18,064,530

Permits And Fees 1.193.212 1,388,565 2.581,m 1.988,001
Reimbursement For Services 1,155,385 1,155,385 960,038
Court Fees 95,847 95,847 115,813
Recreation 718.076 718.076 655,981
Interest 446,395 1,009,466 726,407 1,112,648 44.633 3.339,549 4,495,449

Donations And Gifts 322.212 322,212 167,060
Miscellaneous 1.511,724 3,385,031 1,985,842 350,076 21,840 7,254,513 4.566,772

Total RlW9nues 55.179,295 24,990,687 9,492.234 5,184.665 388,685 95,235,566 89,945.034

Expenditures:
Current:

General Government 13.112.461 1,810,000 14.922,461 14,216.069
Public Safety 24,802,447 1,777,014 26,579,461 25,267,865
Streets And Highways 4.276.658 2,484.688 6.761,346 6.324.609
Culture And Recreation 6.056,967 3.457,350 143.180 9.657,497 9,454,290
Economic Opportunity 6,140.782 68,534 6,209,316 6,009,426
Health And Welfare 4.993,576 4.993,576 4,716.120

Debt Service:
d\ Principal Retirement 5,906,493 5,906,493 3.793,637

Payment To Escrow Agent For Refunded Bonds 45,404 45,404 72.015
Interest And Fiscal Charges 3,479.620 3,479,620 3.340,632
Capital Lease Principal 121.291 121.291 98.100
Capital Lease Interest 16,213 16.213 15,380
Miscellaneous 62 62 121

Capital Outlay 19.956.740 19.956,740 21,689.235
Total Expenditures 48.248.533 20.663.410 9,5>69,083 19,956.740 211.714 98.649,480 94,997,499

Excess (Deficiency) Of Revenues
Over Expenditures 6,930.762 4,327,277 (76,849) (14,772.075) -176,971 (3,413.914) (5,052,465)

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating Transfers In 348,198 5,150,930 137,504 13,274,185 18.910.817 17.806,879
Operating Transfers Out (8.371,422) (11,498.681) (1,813,698) (858) (21,684.659) (20,157.767)
Capital Lease Proceeds 141.598 141,598
Accrued Interest On Bonds 2,264 2,264
Proceeds 01 Refunding Bonds 1.~!04,140 1.204,140 3.805,960
Payment To Escrow Agent For Refunded Bonds (1,194,196) (1.194,196) (3.805,960)
Payment To Annexation TruSlee (1,262.059)
Tax Anocation Bond Proceeds 880,000
General Obligation Bond Proceeds 2.632.620

Total Other Anancing Sources (Uses) (8.023.224) (6.206,153) 149,712 11.460,487 (858) (2.620,O36) (100.327)

Excess (Deficiency) a Revenues
And Other Financing Sources Over
Expenditures And Other Financing Uses (1.092.462) (1.878.876) 72.863 (3.311.588) 176,113 (6,033,950) (5.152.792)

Fund Balances Beginning 01 Year 6.852.307 13,463.663 14.€i09,149 21.078.514 573.228 56.576.861 62,609.653

Residual Equity Transfers In 3.564,276 55.744 45.000 3,665.020 2,668.034
Residual Equity Transfers Out (48,116) (2.000.000) (1.616.904) 13.665.02Q) (3.548,034)

Fund Balances End Of Year $ 5,759.845 15.100,947 12,737.756 16,195,022 749,341 5C.542,911 56.576.861

See Accompanying Notes To Combined Financial Stalemems



E)chiblt 3

CITY OF liNCOLN, NE
COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCES·· BUDGET AND ACTUAL·· GENERAL, SPECIAL REVENUE,
AND DEBT SERVICE FUNDS (13UOOET BASIS)

FISCAL YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 1991

General Fund Special Revenue Funds Debt Service Funds Totals (MemorandumOr~
Variance Variance Variance Variance
Favorable Favorable Favorable Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable1 Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Budget Actual .Jl::~rable)

Revenues:
Taxes $ 45,968,154 47.426,467 1,458.313 3,631.516 4,021.128 389.612 3.814,245 .4.290,563 476,318 53,413,915 55,738,158 2,324,243

intergovernmental 2,723,000 2,754,727 31,727 13,994,294 14.818,913 824,619 16,717.294 17,573,640 856,346
Permtts And Fees 1,143.245 1,194,363 51,118 1,276,464 1.395.626 119,162 2,419,709 2,589,989 170,280
Reimbursements For Servtces 1.099,956 1.147.762 47,806 20,730 20,730 1,120,686 1.168,492 47,806
Court Fees 112.500 98,701 (13,799) 112,500 98,701 (13.799)
Recreation Receipts 687,100 718,376 31,276 687,100 718.376 31,276
Interest 622,500 578.391 (44,109) 695,144 1,068,227 373.083 716.180 980,900 264.720 2,033.824 2,627,518 593.694
Special Assessments 2,411,170 2,411,170 2,411,170 2,411,170
Special Assessments Interest 650,355 650.355 650,355 650.355
Miscellaneous 674,500 1.486,3n 811.8n 1,494.730 2,297,713 802,983 1,979,439 1,979,439 4.148,669 5,763,529 1,614,860

Total Revenues 53,030,955 55,405,164 2,374,209 21.112,878 23,622,337 2,509,459 9,571,389 10.312.427 741,038 83,715,222 89.339,928 5.624.706

expenditures:

-....j Current:
General Government 13.251.889 12,680,494 571,395 1.693.210 1.766,621 (73,411) 14.945,099 14,447.115 497,984
Public Safety 24,661,941 24.551.405 110,536 l,717,n6 1,710,513 7.263 26.379,717 26,261,918 117,799
Streets And Highways 4,280,462 4.233.853 46.609 2,426,750 2,428,055 (1,305) 6,707.212 6,661.908 45.304
Culture And Recreation 6,194,625 6,178,742 15.863 3.278.136 3.242.765 35.371 9,472.761 9,421,507 5'1,254
Economic Opportuntty 6.099.425 6,348,829 (249.404) 6.099,425 6,348.829 (249.404)
Health And Welfare 4,971,324 4,933,632 37,692 4.971,324 4,933.632 31,692

Debt Service 9,571,550 9,607,302 (35.752) 9,571.550 9.607.302 (35.752)
Total Expenditures __4§,~13,91I 47.644,494 744,423 20.186.621 20,430,415. (243,794) 9.571,550 9.607.302 (35.752) 78.147.088 n.682.211 464.877

Excess (Deficiency) Of Revenues
Over Expendttures 4.642,038 7.760.670 3.118.632 926.257 3,191.922 2.265.665 (161) 705.125 705.286 5.568.134 11.657.717 6.089.583

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating Transfers In 348.198 348,198 5,108,194 5,150.930 42,736 137.504 137.504 5,108.194 5,636.632 528,438
Operating Transfers Out (8,485.649) (8,349.694) 135.955 (13,111.920) (13.063.211) 48.709 (21,597,569) (21,412.905) 184.664
Capital Lease Proceeds 141.598 141.598 141.598 141,598
General Obligation 1.204.140 1,204,140 1,204.140 1,204.140
Accrued Interest On Bonds 2.264 2.264 2,264 2.264
Payment To Refunded Bond Escrow Agent (1.194.196) (1.194,196) (1,194.196) (1.194,196)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) ~~5.64~@.g01A96)_ _484.153 (7,862,128) (7.770,683) 91.445 12,208 149.712 137.504 (16.335.569) (15,622,467) 713.102

Excess (Deficiency) Of Revenues And
Other Financing Sources Over
Expenditures And Other Financing Uses (3.843.611 ) (240.826) 3,602.785 (6.935.871 ) (4.578.761) 2.357.110 12,047 854,837 842,790 (10,767.435) (3.964,750) 6,802,685

Fund Balances Beginning Of Year 4.586.285 4.586,285 11,131,722 11.131,722 15,411.023 15,411.023 31.129,030 31,129,030

Residual Equity Transfers In 2,010,322 3.564,276 1.553.954 55,744 55.744 2,066,066 3.620,020 1,553.954
Residual Equity Transfers Out (48,116) (48,116) (2,000,000) (2,000,000) (2,048,116) (2,048,116)

Fund Balances End Of Year $ 742,674 4,345,459 3,602,785 6,158,057 10,069,121 3,911,064 13,478,814 14,321,604 842,790 20,379.545 28,736,184 8.356,639

See Accompanying Notes To Combined Financial Statements
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Exhibit 4
CITY OF liNCOLN, NE

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES
IN RETAINED EARNINGS! FUND BALANCE -- ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES

AND SIMILAR TRUST FUNDS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 1991

With Comparative Totals For Fiscal Year Ended August 31, 1990

Rduciary
Proprietary Fund Types Fund Type Totals

(Memorandum Only)
Enterprise Internal Pension
(Note 1) Service Trust 1991 1990

Operating Revenues:
Charges For Services $ 190,887,176 14,425,036 205,312,212 144,316,893
Taxes 799,728 799,728 557,775
Employee Contributions 878,317 878,317 1,029,828
Other Operating Revenues 7,336,505 324 7,336,829 54,376,315

Total Operating Revenues 198,223,681 14,425,036 1,678,369 214,327,086 200,280,811

Operating Expenses:
Personal Services 31,811,937 5,790,955 37,602,892 34,854,937
Contractual Services 2,283,780 2,283,780 1,535,644
Operation And Maintenance 39,082,772 8,019,739 47,102,511 43,011,817
Purchased Power 57,253,000 57,253,000 55,547,000
Refunds 3,035,074 3,035,074 521,021
Depreciation 19,574,998 1,722,787 21,297,785 20,234,600
Benefit Payments 1,514,413 1,514,413 1,332,204
Payments In Ueu Of Taxes (Note 2) 4,537,000 4,537,000 4,323,000
Administrative Cost 11,533,449 31,117 11,564,566 10,176,279

Total Operating Expenses 166,076,936 15,533,481 4,580,604 186,191,021 171,536,502

Net Operating Income (Loss) 32,146,745 (1,108,445) (2,902,235) 28,136,065 28,744,309

Non-Operating Revenue (Expense):
Interest Revenue 12,931,853 545,843 6,131,497 19,609,193 17,983,471
Gain (Loss) On Disposal Of Assets 13,681 13,681 (13,921)
Loss On Advance Refunding (368,503)
Operating Grants 981,959 981,959 1,478,504
Amortization Of Deferred Charges (1,591,158) (1,591,158) (2,106,933)
Donations 101,000 101,000 108,000
Interest Expense And Rscal Charges (Note 1O) (24,227,617) (24,227,617) (21,424,912)
Miscellaneous (267,790) 288,945 21,155 235,781

Total Non-Operating Revenue (Expense) (12,058,072) 834,788 6,131,497 (5,091,787) (4,108,513)

Net Income (Loss) Before Operating Transfers 20,088,673 (273,657) 3,229,262 23,044,278 24,635,796

Operating Transfers In 2,996,327 2,996,327 2,350,888
Operating Transfers Out

Net Income (Loss) 22,862,515 (273,657) 3,229,262 25,818,120 26,986,684

Depreciation Transfer On Contributed Capital 2,197,970 233,607 2,431,577 2,273,000
Increase (Decrease) In Retained Earnings/Fund

Balance 25,060,485 (40,050) 3,229,262 28,249,697 29,259,684

Retained Earnings/Fund Balance Beginning Of Year 242,635,248 11,387,906 66,969,706 320,992,860 291,733,176

Retained Earnings/Fund Balance End Of Year $ 267,695,733 11,347,856 70,198,968 349,242,557 320,992,860

See Accompanying Notes to Combined Financial Statements
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CITY OF LINCOLN, NE
COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH flOWS

All PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES AND SIMILAR TRUST FUNDS
F!SC.A.L YE.~R ENDED AUGUST 31,1991

With Comparative Totals For Rscal Year Ended August 31, 1990

ExhibitS

Proprietary Fund Types Totals
(Memorandum Only)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVmES:

Enterprise
(Note 1)

Internal
Service

Rduciary
Fund Type

Pension
1991 1990

Operating Income (Loss)
Adjustments To Reconcile Operating Income (Loss)

To Net cash From Operating Activities:
Depreciation
Write-Off Of Deferred Financing Costs
Changes In Assets and Liabilities:

Accounts Receivable
Unbilled Revenues
Taxes Receivable
Due From Other Funds
Due From Other Governments
Other Assets
Inventories
Plant Operation Assets
Prepaid Expenses
Reimbursement From Third Party Payors
Vouchers Payable
Accounts Payable
Accrued Liabilities
Due To Other Funds
Due To Other Governments
Accrued Compensated Absences
Deferred Revenues
Accrual In Lieu Of Tax
Other Current Liabilities
Claims
Deferred Credits And Other Liabilities
Restricted Assets
Restricted Liabilities

Total Adjustments
Net Cash From Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

$ 32,146,745 (1 ,108,445) (2,902,235) 28,136,065 28,744,309

19,574,998 1,722,787 21,297,785 20,234,600

(69,825) (69,825)

(2,300,817) 202,580 (2,098,237) (1,408,365)

(190,000) (190,000) (156,000)

(54,999) (54,999) 34,985

374 667,330 10,975 678,679 (167,305)

(175,260) 166,080 (2,504) (11,684) (17,177)

(5,348,000) (5,348,000) (3,654,000)

(374,254) 80,883 (293,371) (388,518)

13,000 13,000 48,000

87,785 87,785 180,056

(66,000) (66,000) (362,000)

43,694 55,344 99,038 (73,524)

1,842,nO (9,629) 9 1,833,150 449,083

688,678 11,592 700,270 578,604

(49,541) (250,279) 94 (299,726) 18,472

4,221 16,881 21,102 21,357

27,370 21,724 1,169 50,263 160,858

11,442 11,442 (8,136)
72,000

173,935 173,935 (265,926)

685,000 685,000 (665,664)

2,506,000 2,506,000 1,669,000

1,897 1,897 (3,673)

(42,226)

16,391,025 3,370,293 (33,814) 19,727,504 16,254,501

48,537,770 2,261,848 (2,936,049) 47,863,569 44,998,810

City Subsidy
Donations
Operating Grant
Miscellaneous
Payment Of Fuel Credit Obligation Notes
Interest Paid

Net Cash From Non-Capital Financing Activities

10

2,996,327

101,000

981,959
(521,701)
(475,000)

(39,000)
3,043,585

2,996,327

101,000

981,959
(521,701)
(475,000)

(39,000)
3,043,585

2,667,099

108,000

1,162,293
115,128

(590,000)

(80,000)
3,382,520

(Continued)



(EXHIBIT 5, Continued)

Fiduciary
Proprietary Fund Types Fund Type Totals

(tv1amorandum Only)
Enterprise Internal Pension
(Note 1) Service Trust 1991 1990

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIeS:

Additions To Fixed Assets (27,373,477) (2,324,894) (29,698,371 ) (18,885,522)
Additions To Contributed Capital 5,177,508 64,598 5,242,106 3,816,786
Installment Payments On Capital Leases (8,606)
Project Loan Advances 3,237,000 3,237,600 145,000
Lease Purchases Payments (23,666)
Payments On Contracts Used To Purchase Equipment (9,000) (9,000) (25,000)

Proceeds From Sale Of Fixed Assets 10,952 364,040 374,992 181,210
Restricted Uabilities 389,888

Bond Proceeds 46,655,000 46,655,000
Accrued Interest On Bonds Sold 10,994 10,994
Expenditures For Utility Plant (13,933,000) (13,933,000) (17,975,000)

Net Cost Of Retiring Plant (279,000) (279,000) (14,000)
Capital Construction Transfer (15,000) (15,000)
Defeasance Of Revenue Bonds (5,960,000)
Payment Of Bond Issuance Expense (367,927)
Proceeds From Defeasance Long-Term Debt 6,300,000
Principal Payments Of Long-Term Debt (8,470,000) (8,470,000) (7,895,000)

Financing Charges (772,904) (772,904)
Interest Paid And Fiscal Charges (23,515,092) (23,515,092) (21,831,987)

Net Cash From Capital Financing Activities (19,275,419) (1,896,256) (21,171,675) (62,153,824)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds From Sale And Maturities Of Securities 286,646,361 7,924,399 11,381,637 305,952,397 297,456,841
Purchases Of Investment Securities (329,535,084) (8,828,756) (14,663,995) (353,027,835) (303,906,661 )
Interest And Other Revenues 12,841,861 565,088 6,103,426 19,510,375 18,100,033

Net Cash From Investing Activities (30,046,862) (339,269) 2,821,068 (27,565,063) 11,650,213

Net Increase (Decrease) In Cash 2,259,074 26,323 (114,981) 2,170,416 (2,122,281 )

Cash, Beginning Of Year 7,969,325 3,527,624 202,437 11,699,386 13.821.667

Cash, End Of Year $ 10,228,399 3,553,947 87,456 13,869,802 11,699,386

See Accompanying Notes To Combined Financial Statements
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CITY Of LINCOLN, NEBRASKA
Notes to General Purpose Financial Statements

August 31, 1991

(1) SUMMARY OF SIGNifiCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City of Lincoln, Nebraska (City) was originally incorporated on
April 7, 1869. The City operates under a Home Rule Charter and has a
Mayor-Council form of government with an elected full-time chief executive,
the Mayor, and an elected legislative body, the Council, composed of 7
members. Three Council members are elected at large and 4 by district on a
nonpartisan basis for a term of 4 years. The administration of City
government is performed under the direction of the Mayor through
administrative departments. Services are provided to residents in many
areas, including public safety (Police-Fire), highways and streets, health,
planning and zoning, parks, recreation, urban development, mass
transportation, electric system, water and wastewater system, hospital, golf
courses, auditorium, and general administrative services. Education,
housing, and airport services are provided by the Lincoln Public Schools,
the Lincoln Housing Authority, and Lincoln Airport Authority, respectively.

REPORTING ENTITY

The City of Lincoln's combined financiai statements include the financial
statements of those separately administered component units that are
included in the City of Lincoln's oversight responsibility. City oversight
responsibility is determined on the basis of budget adoption, funding and
selection of governing authority. Based on the foregoing criteria, the
financial statements of the following component units are included in the
accompanying combined financial statements:

Lincoln General Hospita'

The Lincoln General Hospital Board is appointed by the Mayor and
confirmed by the City Council. The City Council exercises budgetary
authority. Funding is provided by charges for hospital services, rates for
which require approval of the City Council. Issuance of long-term debt
requires approval of the City Council. Operations of the Lincoln General
Hospital are included with the Enterprise Fund amounts in the combined
financial statements.

Uncoln Electric System

The Uncoln Electric Administrative Board is appointed by the Mayor and
confirmed by the City Council. The City Council exercises budgetary
authority. Funding is provided by charges to electrical consumers, rates for
which require approval of the City Council. Issuance of long-term debt
requires approval of the City Council. Operations of the Lincoln Electric
System are included with the Enterprise Fund amounts in the combined
financial statements.
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CITY OF NEBRASKA
Notes to General Purpose Financial Statements

The following entities are not included in the combined financial statements
because the City does not exercise oversight authority:

The Housing Authority of the City of Lincoln

The Housing Authority was authorized by State statute, and pursuant to such
statute, came into existence as a result of the passage of a resolution
declaring the need for an authority within the City. Thereafter, the Housing
Authority became an independent body corporate and politic. The board
members are appointed by the Mayor, subject to Council approval; however,
there is no continuing relationship. The Housing Authority has control over
operations and fiscal matters and holds title to the assets. Revenues are
derived from rents, interest income, and subsidies received from the
Department of Housing and Urban Development. The Housing Authority
has the ability to issue its own debt, which is not an obligation of the City.

Lincoln Public Schools

The School District was created by State statute as a Class IV District.
Thereafter, the School District became a body corporate and politic. The
members of the Board of Education are elected by the voters of the district.
The Board of Education has control over operations and fiscal matters and
holds title to the assets. Revenues are derived from property tax, public
power district sales tax, interest income, fines and licenses, state aid, and
federal grants. The Board of Education has the ability to issue its own debt,
which is not an obligation of the City, but general obligation debt is disclosed
in a note to the City's financial statements as overlapping debt.

Airport Authority

The Airport Authority was authorized by State statute, and pursuant to such
statutes, was activated as the result of the passage of a City resolution
appointing the original board members. Thereafter, the Airport Authority
became a body corporate and politic. The board members are elected by
the voters in the City. The Airport Authority has control over operations and
fiscal matters and holds title to personal property. The Airport Authority has
full and exclusive jurisdiction and control over all facilities owned or
hereafter acquired by the City for the purpose of aviation operation, air
navigation and air safety operation for the City of Lincoln. The Airport
operation is not conducted within the geographical boundaries of the City,
but is generally available to the citizens of Lincoln and surrounding areas.
The Airport Authority has the use and occupancy of real property so long as
the corporate existence shall continue. Revenues are derived from property
taxes, rentals, leases, etc. The Airport Authority· is granted the power, under
State statute, to certify annually to the City Council the amount of tax to be
levied for airport purposes against all taxable property in the City, except
intangible property. The City Council shall levy and collect the taxes so
certified at the same time and in the same manner as other City taxes are
levied and collected, and the proceeds of such levy shall be deposited in a
special account. The proceeds are then transferred to the Airport Authority.

15
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those accounted for in proprietary funds) are accounted for through
governmental funds. The measurement focus is upon determination of
changes in financial position, rather than upon net income.

The following are City's governmental fund types:

General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the
City. It is used to account for all financial resources except those
required to be accounted for in another

Special Revenue Funds - Special Funds are used to account
for the proceeds of revenue sources (other than expendable
trusts or major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures
for specified purposes.

Debt Service Funds - Service are used to account for the
accumulation of resources for, and the payment of general long-term
principal, interest, and related costs.

Capital Projects funds - Capital Projects are used to account for
financial res'ources be used for the acquisition or construction of major
capital facilities (other than those financed by proprietary funds and trust
funds).

Proprietary fund Types

for City'S ongoing organizations
often found in the private sector.

of net income and capital
City's proprietary fund types:

Proprietary funds are used to (.4\J....' V '-'I 1

and activities which are
The measurement is upon
maintenance. following are

Enterprise funds - Enterprise funds are used to account for operations
that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business
enterprises: (a) the of governing body is that the costs
(expenses, including depreciation) providing goods or services to the
general public on a continuing be financed or recovered primarily
through user charges; or (b) where the governing body has decided that
periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or
net income is appropriate for maintenance, public policy,
management control, or other purposes.

Internal Service funds .. Internal Service funds are used to account for
the financing of goods or services provided by one department or agency
to other departments or agencies of the City or to other governmental
units on a cost-reimbursement basis.

fiduciary Fund Types

Fiduciary Funds are used for held by the City in a trustee
capacity or as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other
governmental units, and/or funds.
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Because of their spending measurement focus, expenditure recognition for
governmental fund types excludes amounts represented by noncurrent
liabilities. Since they do not affect net current assets, such long-term
amounts are not recognized as governmental fund type expenditures or fund
liabilities. They are instead reported as liabilities in the General Long-Term
Liability Account Group.

All proprietary funds and Pension Trust Funds are accounted for on a cost of
services or "capital maintenance" measurement focus. This means that all
assets and all liabilities (whether or noncurrent) associated with their
activity are included on their balance sheets. Their reported fund equity (net
total assets) is segregated contributed capital and retained earnings
components. Proprietary fund type operating statements present increases
(revenues) and decreases (expenses) in total assets.

Property, plant, owned by proprietary funds is stated at
cost or estimated Contributed fixed assets are recorded at
estimated fair at time 1I"'0""'on"orfl Depreciation has been provided
over the estimated useful lives the straight-Une method. The estimated
useful lives are as follows:

Buildings
Improvements
Equipment
Utility Plant

10 - 43 years
5 .. 20 years
2 - 10 years

30 .. 40 years

In proprietary or shared revenues received for
operations and/or acquisitions or construction
are reported as "nonoperating" revenues. Such resources externally
restricted for capital acquisitions or construction are reported as contributed
capital. Operating depreciation on all depreciable fixed
assets. Depreciation on assets acquired or constructed through
such resources externally for capital acquisitions is transferred to
the appropriate contributed account and reported in the operating
statement. The net is adjusted by the amount of depreciation
on fixed assets acquired or constructed through such resources externally
restricted for this purpose and Retained Earnings. Contributed
capital at August 31, 1991 is of accumulated depreciation.

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

Governmental fund types, expendable trust funds and agency funds use the
modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when they
become both measurable and available. Sales Tax and Highway User Fees
are two major revenues measurable when in the hands of the
collecting recognized as revenue at that time. Other major
revenues are determined to be susceptible to accrual include
interdepartmental charges, earned interest, rentals, and other
intergovernmental revenues. Major revenues not susceptible to accrual
because they are either available soon enough to pay liabilities from the
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CITY OF LINCOLN, NEBRASKA
Notes to General Purpose Financial Statements

current period or are not measurable include sundry taxes and in lieu of tax
payments, occupation taxes, permits and fees, parking meter collections and
motor vehicle taxes. Revenues not considered available are recorded as
deferred revenues. Expenditures are recorded in the accounting period in
which the related fund liability incurred, if measurable, except for
unmatured interest and principal on general long-term obligations which is
recorded when due.

In applying the measurable and available concept to intergovernmental
revenues, the legal and contractual requirements of the numerous individual
programs are used as guidance. There are, however, essentially two types
of these revenues. For one type, monies must be expended on the specific
purposes or project before any amounts will be paid to the City; therefore,
revenues are recorded based upon expenditures incurred. For the other
type, monies are virtually unrestricted as to purpose of expenditure and are
usually revocable only for failure to comply with prescribed compliance
requirements. These resources are reflected as revenues at the time of
receipt or earlier if the measurable and criteria are met.

Licenses and permits, charges for services, fines and forfeits, and
miscellaneous revenues (except investment earnings) are recorded as
revenues when received in cash because they are generally not
measurable until received. Investment earnings are recorded as
earned, since they are Note 2 for property tax accrual
policy.)

Special assessments are recorded as revenues in the year the assessments
become current; t.hose amounts receivable after one year are recorded as
deferred revenue. Annual installments not yet due are reflected as special
assessment receivables and deferred revenues.

The accrual basis of accounting is used by proprietary funds and pension
trust funds.

BUDGETARY DATA

The City Council these procedures, set out in the City Charter, in
establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements:

(1) At least 40 days prior to the end the budget and fiscal year, the Mayor
submits to the City Council a proposed annual budget for the ensuing
year. The annual budget a complete financial plan for the ensuing
budget year and consists of an operating budget and a capital budget.

(2) Public hearing on proposed budget is scheduled for not later than
10 days prior to the budget adoption date.

(3) Not later than 5 days prior the end of the fiscal year the budget is
legally adopted by resolution of the City Council.
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(4) The Mayor is authorized to T"~I"~TA:ll1I" unencumbered balances between
appropriations of the same or agency. The Mayor also has
authority to lower appropriations in fund where actual revenues are
less than that ~n,.\rnr"\rl~1'ort avoid incurring a budget deficit
for year.

Appropriation transfers between departments or agencies may only be
authorized by resolution of the Council. The Council may not make
any appropriations in addition to authorized in the annual budget,
except that it may emergency appropriations in the event of
an emergency loss of life, health, or property in the
community.

(5) Budgets for the general, special revenue, capital projects, and debt
service funds are adopted on a basis not consistent with generally
accepted accounting principles . Since encumbrances are
included in the City's budget accounting, year-end encumbrances are
reappropriated the next the budget process. Budget basis
expenditures are basis plus encumbrances. The
special budgeted.

Amendments to the ., u """, were made this year and result
from prior year identified subsequent to budget
adoption, appropriation unanticipated revenues to certain funds as
provided in the budget and appropriation revision between
or as under the City Charter.

the departmental level.
1I"\!F"'"l""''f'.,,,.... appropriations generally

organization (division) or by fund

(6) Appropriation
However, as a
are
within a

(7) Appropriations the fiscal year except for capital
improvement encumbrances against
operating improvement appropriations are continuing
appropriations through completion of project.

the following fund types:
enterprise, pension trusts, and
funds are not budgeted on an

.............,........... to actual comparison has not

(8) Budgets are
general, special
capital projects
annual basis and, TnClrOlrn

been

ENCUMBRANCES

Encumbrance II.4V""..,U

encumbrance
commitments the avU'..u·... ll""lln.'I'.

that portion of the GIJDJI'1IJGUlv

reservations of

governmental funds. Under
, contracts, and other

are recorded in order to reserve
Encumbrances are reported as

do constitute liabilities. As
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CITY OF LINCOLN, NEBRASKA
Notes to General Purpose Financial Statements

explained in the budget footnote above, August 31, 1991 encumbrances
have been reported as expenditures on the budget basis statements.

CASH HELD BY CiTl TREASURER

Cash held by the City Treasurer includes the available cash funds that have
been invested in short-term interest bearing securities. These investments
are not specifically identified with anyone fund. Interest on fund investments
are allocated to the individual funds at year end on the basis of average
balances.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For purposes of the Statements of Cash of its proprietary and similar
trust funds, the City considers cash held by the component unit as well as
cash held and invested by the City Treasurer for the component unit which is
readily convertible to known amounts of cash to be cash and cash
equivalents.

Cash and Cash Equivalents as reported in the Statement of Cash Flows
includes Cash Held By City Treasurer, Cash on hand and in other accounts,
Restricted cash and Restricted cash on hand and in other accounts.

INVESTMENTS

Investments, except the deferred compensation insurance contract, are
stated at cost or amortized cost, which approximates market. Income from
investments held by the individual funds is recorded in the respective funds
as it is earned. Also, see Cash Held By City Treasurer, above.

The Deferred Compensation Insurance contract is carried at estimated fair
value.

INVENTORIES

Inventories are valued cost (first-in, first-out). Inventories in the
governmental type nds consist of expendable supplies held for
consumption. The recorded as an expenditure at the time individual
inventory items are consumed. The reserve for inventories is equal to the
amount of inventories to indicate that a portion of the fund balance is not
available for future expenditures.

VACATION AND SICK LEAVE

City employees generally earn vacation days at specific rates during the
periods of the first 5 years of service, from 5 to 15 years of service, and over
15 years of service. In event of termination, an employee is reimbursed
for accumulated vacation time up to a maximum allowed accumulation
which is in no case longer than 28 days. Employees earn sick leave at the
rate of one day per month with a total accumulation of 200-216 days
depending upon the bargaining unit. Upon retirement, an
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(2) PROPERTY TAXES

The Home Rule Charter imposes a tax ceiling for generai revenue
purposes. The ling was established by ng the
September 1, 1966 City limit as an initial tax limit, increasing
that tax limit each 1966 by 70j,~ so that in each fiscal year
thereafter, the amount City tax limit shall be the amount of the City tax
limit for the previous year 7% thereof. In addition, the City also has the
power to levy each sufficient to pay any judgment existing against
the City and the interest on the bonded debt and the principal on any
bonded debt maturing the fiscal or within 6 months thereafter, as
well as taxes authorized state The 1990 tax levy, for the 1990-91
fiscal year, was $1 the legal limit, a tax rate per $100
valuation of .471 upon which the 1990 levy was
based was $5,31

Property taxes
due and when
August 31, 1990.
principles, and
taxes expected
revenue on the

The City-owned
in lieu of
derived from within

are recorded as revenue when due or past
collected within 60 days after

levies were recorded using these same
receivables are re-evaluated annually. Property

60 days are recorded as deferred

to make payments
retail operating revenues

and towns served.

(3)

On August 15,1991 Uncoln, Nebraska, by Ordinance #15942,
authorized the General Obligation Storm Sewer
Refunding Bonds, , with an average interest rate of 5.35116%,
for the purpose of pay, redeem and retire $1,190,000 of
the City's General ....-.. "", ... ....,.. Sewer Bonds, Series of 1983, dated
June 15, 1983, with .Irll.....-.r""'''' ... rates from 5.50% to 9.000/0. The 1983 Bonds
have been called for redemption on November 1, 1991 (the
1983 Bonds Date). of the Series 1991 Bonds, net of
issuance costs of other monies were used to purchase
U.S. Treasury State and Local SRS which were
deposited with the National Association, Lincoln, Nebraska
according a Trust Agreement dated for the
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on the 1991 Bonds is
of $1 ,608,200 for the

the present
new debt) was $79,679.

Obligation and
outstanding.

At August 31, 1
Revenue Bonds ael'ea~)ea

defeasance
$1,467,580
1983 Bond
value

(4)

State
in
county in which
city, in the
property and
of Nebraska are
certificates
depositories
R.R.S., 1
securities
treasurer
securities
Federal llJuU'l..h.Jln

to be invested
metropolitan city,

1.............. +.... "" or school district of such
and operated public utility

same manner as funds of the State
treasurer may purchase

.......... ,,, ............ in banks selected as
15-846 and 15-847

or pledge government
.............+...'........... in the Statutes) to the city

The allow pledged
ael::>o~m which is insured by the

...... ""',"' ........ ,,. ... are classified

(1 )

(3)

or by its agent

financial institution,
name.

at August 31, 1991 is

$ 3,525,699

36,845,699

$40,842,654
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INVESTMENTS

Pension Funds

Investments in the trust funds are long-term investments carried
at book value (amortized cost - cost minus amortized premium or plus
accreted discount) at August 31 ,1991 and are as follows (See
Note 13):

Fire Pension
Carrying Fair
Amou nt Jl.aI.wt.

Government Securities $1,443,435 1,508,847
Government Agencies 146,030 144,750
Repurchase Agreements
Wash. Metro. Transit Bonds

Police & Eire Pension
Carrying Fair
Amoynt JlaJ.u.a

63,339,685 67,852,529
3,115,316 3,125,300

300,000 300,000
497.262 449,219

67,252,263 71,727,048

Pension Fund and Police Fire Pension Fund
department or agent, not in the City's name.
the investments held by the pension trust

All securities of the
are held by the
Management plans to
funds until maturity.

Lincoln General Hosoital (LGtfi

At August 31 , 1
cost, as follows:

LGH had investments, carried at cost or amortized

Securities Held Securities Held
By The Bank's By The Bank's

Trust Department Trust Department
Or Agent, In Or Agent, Not Carrying

The City's Name In The City's Nam~ Amount
Fair

JlaJ.u.a

Government Securities $4,217,000
Repurchase Agreements
Municipal Securities

4,280,000
1,870,000

299,000
6,449,000

8,497,000
1,870,000

299,00Q
10,666,000

8,743,000
1,870,000

250,000
10,863,000

Lincoln Electric System (LES)

At December ,1990 LES
amortized as follows:

investments, carried at cost or

Securities Held By The Bank's
Trust Department Or Agent. In The City'S Name

Carrying
Amount

Fair
Value

Government Securities
Repurchase Agreements

$ 70,534,000
500,000

$ 71,034,000

72,042,000
500,000

12,542,000
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Lincoln Wastewater System

At August 31, 1991 Lincoln Wastewater System had investments,
carried at amortized cost, as shown

Securities Held By The Bank's
Trust Department Or Agent. Not In The City's Name

Carrying
Amount

Fair
value

Government Securities

Lincoln Water System

At August 31; 1 1
amortized cost, as

investments, carried at

Securities Held
Held By Bank's Bank's

Trust Dept. Trust Dept.
Or Or Not Carrying

Amount
Fair

Y.aJ.u.e.

Government Securities $
Repurchase Agreements

58,835,928 58,835,928
3.423,041

~~

59,406,420
3.423,041

62,829,461

All Other City Funds

significantly in either type
cost. These investments at

Investments of all
or risk are carried

, 1991 were

Securities Securities Held
Held By Bank's By Bank's

Trust Dept. Trust Dept
Or Agent, Or Agent, Not Carrying Fair

"-'-'-"'''''''-'-'~~ In City's Name 10 City's Name Ar.1:lillm1 ~

Government Securities
Government Agencies
Repurchase Agreements
Interfund Investments

$ 20,442,422 20,442,422 20,742,002
20,067,895 20,067,895 20,290,742

8,092,000 8,092,000 8,092,000
1,642,986 1,642,986 1,642,986

$ 1,642,986 8,092,000 50,245,303 50,767,730



CITY OF LINCOLN, NEBRASKA
Notes to General Purpose Financial Statements

Reconciliation to Exhibit 1

As of August 31, 1991, the deposits and investments of the City
consisted of:

Carrying Amount

Investments:
Fire Pension
Police & Fire Pension
Lincoln General Hospital
Lincoln Electric System
Lincoln Wastewater System
Lincoln Water System
All Other Funds

Total Investments

Deposits and Cash:
Certificates of Deposit
Bank Accounts
Cash On Hand And In Other Accounts

These assets are reflected on Exhibit 1 as follows:
Cash Held By City Treasurer
Cash On Hand And In Other Accounts
Investments
Restricted Assets:

Cash
Cash On Hand And In Other Accounts
Investments

$ 1,589,465
67,252,263
10,666,000
71,034,000

9,846,282
62,258,969

50.245.303
272.892.282

32,125,000
3,621,976

402.Q2Q
$309,041 ,278

$ 26,699,193
318,461

157,053,600

7,003,108
83,559

117.883.357
$309,041,278

There were no investments that resulted in significantly greater credit risk
during the period than that existing at August 31, 1991, the balance
sheet date.

(5) RECEIVABLES

Receivables at August 31, 1991 consist of the following (in thousands):

Special Assessments
Accrued Gross Allowance For

Fund Taxes Accounts Current Deferred Interest Receivables Uncollectibles Net

General $ 2,972 221 10 3,203 3,203
Special Revenue 718 599 177 1,494 1,494
Debt Service 848 7 1,112 5,303 68 7,338 481 6,857
Capital Projects 261 181 442 442
Enterprise 33,896 3,025 36,921 5,620 31,301
Internal Service 126 145 271 271
Trust and Agency 142 591 1.Q18 1.751 --!2§L

$ 4,680 35.701 1,112 5.303 4,624 51,420 6,101 ~
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Enterprise customer accounts receivable include unbilled charges for
services.

Delinquent Special Assessment Receivables at August 31, 1991 were
$541,146.

(6) DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTS

The total of Due from Other Governments of $4,551,920 includes the
following significant items:

fund/Fund Type Amount Service

State of Nebr., July Sales and
Use Tax
August Motor Vehicle Taxes
Collected by Lancaster County
State of Nebr., July Highway
User fees
State of Nebr., Street
Construction Project, Cost
Reimbursements
Federal Government, Cost
Reimbursements
Lancaster County, Cost
Reimbursements
August Motor Vehicle Taxes
Collected by Lancaster County
State of Nebr., Contract
Reimbursements
federal Contract
Reimbursement
Federal Government, Cost
Reimbursements
Lancaster County Billings
August Motor Vehicle Taxes
Collected by Lancaster County
August Library Tax Collected by
Lancaster County
federal Government, Cost
Reimbursements

1

110,753

736,348

328,450

43,459

27,463

217,415
30,351

58,126

5

$1,910,109General

Street Const.lSpecial Revenue

JTPNSpecial Revenue

Data Processingllnternal Service
library/Special Revenue

lincoln/Lancaster Co. Health/Special Revenue 213,609

Bond Interest and Redemption/Debt Service 30,618

StarTran/Enterprise

Civil Defense/Special Revenue

Grants-ln-AidiSpecial Revenue

(7) FIXED ASSETS

GENERAL FIXED ASSETS

All items the general fixed assets account group are valued at historical
cost, or, if donated, estimated fair value at time of donation. The City has
elected not to record infrastructure assets or to depreciate general fixed
assets. Approximately 16,820 items comprise the general fixed assets. A
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summary of changes in general fixed assets since September 1, 1990 is as
shown below:

Balance Balance
Sept j. j 990 Additions peletions August 31 1991

Land $14,061,293 606,132 710,179 13,957,246
Buildings 20,949,522 1,290,072 56,675 22,182,919
Improvements

Other Than
Buildings 13,346,462 2,463,983 114,708 15,695,737

Equipment 17.121,519 3,365361 616651 19 azp 229
$65,478,796 7,725,548 1,498,213 71,706,131

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES - PROPERTY. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

A summary of Proprietary Fund Type property, piant, and equipment at
August 31, 1991 follows:

Land
Buildings
Improvements Other Than Buildings
Leasehold Improvements
Equipment
Utility Plant
Construction in Progress

Total

Less Accumulated Depreciation

Enterprise

$ 11,409,728
95,621,271

133,444,950
19,000

32,291,238
386,270,000

44.729382
703,785,569

(191.568,127)
$ 512,217,442

Internal
Service

48,250
346,594
516,478

14,195,541

15,106,863

(8.353399)
6,753,464

Construction in Progress at August 31,1991 is as follows:

Lincoln General Hospital
Lincoln Wastewater System
Lincoln Water System
Lincoln Electric System
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(8) CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL

The following are changes for the year ended August 31, 1991 in
contributed capital for the proprietary funds:

Contributed Capital
Enterprise Internal

Funds Service Fund~

Balance, September 1, 1990 $ 66,254,378

Capital Grants and Donated Assets 1,854,758

Private and Other Net Construction Costs 3,322,750

Less Donated Assets Deleted (1,609)

Less Depreciation on Assets Acquired

with Contributed Capital (2,197,970)

Balance, August 31, 1991 $ 69,232,307

1,081,435

64,598

(62,420)

(233,607)

850,006

(9) LONG-TERM DEBT

The following is a summary of long-term debt transactions of the City for the
year ended August 31, 1991 (in thousands of dollars):

General
Obligation

General Special
long-Term Assessment

Liability DabtWith Accrued
Account Govemmental Revenue Revenue Capital Compensated

Group Commitment Bonds ~ ~ Absences Total

Balances Ai Soptemoor I, 1990 $ 41,036 12,315 345,087 775 205 1,103 400,521
Additions:

Capital leases 142 142
New Accrued Compensated

Absence Obligations 77 77
New Long-Term Project Loan 3,238 3,238
Tax Allocation Bond Antic. Notes 763 763
08-15-91 Storm Sewer 1,220 1,220
08-15-91 Golf Course Revenue 4,655 4,655
11-01-90 Water Revenue 42,000 42,000

Deductions:
Defeasance Of Bonds 1,190 1,190
Serial Bonds 2,324 1,925 8,470 12,719
Accrued Compensated Absences 29 29
Tax Allocation Bond Antic. Notes 705 705
Electric Revenue Fuel Credit

Obligation Notes 475 475
Capita/lease Payments 121 121

Balances At August 31, 1991 $ 38.800 10.390 386,510 300 226 1.151 437,377
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Long-term debt is comprised of the following individual issues (in thousands
of dollars):

AVERAGE
ORIGINAL INTEREST DATE INTEREST
AMOUNT ISSUED ISSUE RATE WHEN DUE CALLABLE DATE OUTSTANDING

GeMr" Obligation Bonds And Noaa:

General Bonds:

3,400 03/01/78 Storm Sewer 4.88214 Ser. '79 to '98 1988 seml~nually $ 1,615
3,455 07/01180 Storm Sewer 6.44007 Ser. '81 to '95 1988 925

985 05101/83 Auditorium & Flra Department 7.02416 Sar. '84 to '93 1988 200
6,815 05/01/86 Various Purpose 6.67888 Sar. '87 to '06 1991 5,115

12,000 06/15/87 Downtown Redevelopment 7.15058 Ser. '87 to '02 1994 11,130
7,985 08115/89 Various Purpose 6.52380 Ser. 'go to '09 1999 7,600
5,193 09115/89 Sanitary Impr. Dim. #7 5.00000 Ser. '91 to '10 1990 Annually 3,787
1,220 08115/91 Storm Sewer 5.35116 Ser. '92 to '98 1995 Semiannually 1.220

TOTAL GENERAl BONDS ,
31.592

Tanc: Allocation Bonds:

3,970 04/01/85 Cornhusker Square 9.85770 Sar. '86 to '97 1990 Semiannually $ 2,610
620 01101189 GoId's Galleria Redevelop. 7.06100 Ser. '89 to '98 1993 515
880 01117/90 Tax Allocation Bonds 7.90000 Oct. 1,2004 Anytime Annually 880

2,670 03/15/90 Northeast Radial Reuse Area Proj.#1 6.49529 Ser. '90 to '98 1993 2,440
TOTAL TAX ALLOCATION BONDS $ 6.445

Tax Allocation Bond Anticipation Note.:
763 08/30/91 Tax Allocation Bond Anticipation

Notes 8.30000 Aug. '91 & '92 Anytime Annually $ 763
TOTAL GENERAL BONDS INCLUDING TAX ALLOCATION $ 38,800

Specla. AalMleement Bonds:

4,000 11115/76 Special AstIe88rnent Revolv. 4.89073 Ser. 'nto'91 1986 Semiannually $ 265
6,000 03101/78 Special As8essmerlt Revolv. 4.82530 Ser. '79 to '98 1988 2,100
6,000 09101/79 Special As8essmerlt Revolv. 5.48328 Ser. '80 to '99 1989 2,700
3,200 05101193 SpecialJl~ Revol'!. 7.71430 S@f. '84 10 '01 1993 1,800
3,860 11/15/89 Special A8ses8ment Revolv. 6.47384 Ser. '90 to '04 1996 3525

TOTAL SPECIAL ASSESSMENT BONDS $ 10:390
TOTAL GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS $ 49190

Revenue Bonde:

6,500 02l01m Water 5.20000 Ser. '80 to '95 1987 Semia~nually $ 3,995
6,300 11/15/89 v-Water 6.49460 Sar. '90 to '99 1994 6,120

42,000 11101190 Water 6.98500 Ser. '93 to '10 2000 42000
TOTAL WATER REVENUE BONDS $ 52:115

4,000 08l15m Wastewater 5.19335 Ser. '00 to '95 1987 Semia~nually $ 2,350
4,000 08/15/80 Wastewater 7.88890 Ser. '83 to '97 1991 2,695
2,750 05/01/86 Wastewater 6.58180 Ser. '89 to '99 1991 2,645
3,383 08101/90 Wastewater 5.00000 Ser. '90 to '06 1991 3383

TOTAL WASTEWATER BONDS $ 11;073

7,415 10/01188 HospItal Revenue 6.99490 Ser. '89 to '03 1998 Semi~nually $ 6.735
5,165 10/01/88 HotlpItaI Revenue 7.60000 Term 2008 1998 5,165
9.325 10/01/88 Hospital Revenue 7.75000 Term 2014 1998 9,325

TOTAL HOSPITAL BONDS is 21225

3,165 08115/89 Parking Revenue Series A 8.81550 Ser. '90 to '04 1994 Seml~nually $ 3,025
1,685 08/15/89 Parking Rev. Series B Taxable 9.45000 Sar. '90 to '99 1994 1;465

TOTAL PARKING BONDS $ 4490

4,655 08115/91 Goll Course Revenue 6.69210 Ser. '95 to '11 1998 $ 4,655
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AVERAGE
ORIGINAL INTEREST DATE INTEREST
AMOUNT ISSUED ISSUE RATE WHENpUE CALLABLE DATE OOTSTANDING

24.410 03130/77 Electric Power SUpply '77
Series A 5.55041 Ser. '78 to '98 1987 Semla:'nually $ 14,085

42.'7'90 03l30m 8.10000 Term 2011 1987 42.790
8,215 03101178 Electric PoW'er Supply '78

Series A 5.93065 Ser. '79 to '00 1988 5.335
44.685 03101/78 5.90000 Term 2014 1988 44.685
47.000 12101179 Electric PoW'er Supply '79

Series A 7.72640 Ser. 'SO to '99 1989 7.250
7.60000 Term 2004 1989 6.460
7.75000 Term 2015 1989 24.885

10.995 10/01180 Electric Power Supply '00 8.26000 Ser. '84 to '95 1990 3,270
34.455 11115/86 Electric Power Supply '86

Series A • Current Interest 6.08901 Ser. '87 10 '99 1996 25.890
5,492 11/15/86 Electric POW'er Supply '86

Series A • capital Appreciation 7.17760 Ser. '99 to '02 1996 Maturity 5,492
20.145 11115/86 Electric PoW'er Supply '86

Series A • Current Interest 7.12500 Term 2006 1996 Semiannually 20,145
22.550 11/15/86 Electric PoW'er Supply '86

Series A • Current Interest 7.50000 Term 2016 1996 22.550
10,485 11115/86 Electric Power Supply '86

Series A • Capllal Appreciation 7.50000 Term 2015 1996 Maturlly 10.485
20,630 03/30/77 Elee. Dist. Facility '77

Series A 5.60611 Sar. '78 10 '00 1987 Semla~mUally 10.525
32.170 03130/77 6.12520 Term 2011 1987 32.170
15,100 03/01/78 Elee. Dist. Facility 78

8erlesA 5.85855 Ser. '77 to '98 1988 2.830
6.00000 Term 2012 1999 9,710

5,000 12101/79 Elee. Dist. Facility 79
Sarles A 7.00392 Sar. 'SO to '99 1989 945

7.87500 Term 2013 1989 3,450
TOTAL ELECTRIC BONDS $ 292,952
TOTAL REVENUE BONDS , 386,510

Revenue Notee:

11.430 Various Electric Fuel Credit Obligation Lesser of Various Anytime Quarterly
Note (N~'l'"Demand Notes) 8%«62.5%

aI Prime , 300

The annual requirements to pay principal and interest on all outstanding
debt are as follows (in thousands of dollars):

Revenue Capital Leases
General Obligations Bonds And Notes And Land Contracts

General Bonds Special Assessments
Year Ending Bonds
August 31 Bonds Interest Bonds Interest & Notes Interest Principal Interest

1992 $ 3,562 2,416 1,405 597 9,375 24,201 138 13
1993 2,945 2,210 1,130 524 9,650 23,660 35 6
1994 2,947 2,022 1,130 458 10,435 23,081 39 3
1995 3,079 1,830 1,125 392 11,225 22,449 14
1996 2,961 1,624 1,115 325 11,925 21,753
1997-2001 12,343 5,230 4,065 704 67,248 100,220
2002 & Thereafter 10,963 2,184 266,952 206,150

$ 38.800 17.516 386.810 421.514 226 22

Funds of $3,191,165, $1,680,057 and $5,087,239 are available in the debt
service funds to service the General Obligation Bonds, Tax Allocation
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Bonds, and Special Assessment Bonds respectively. In the unlikely event
special assessment collections are not sufficient to make debt payments, the
responsibility rests with the City to meet that obligation.

Revenue Bonds are funded partially from reserve accounts set up for debt
repayment and partially from proceeds of daily operations.

Under the City's Home Rule Charter, there is no legal debt margin. The
various bond indentures contain significant limitations and restrictions on
annual debt service requirements, maintenance of and flow of monies
through various restricted accounts, minimum amounts to be maintained in
various bond reserve funds, and minimum revenue bond coverages. The
City is in compliance with all such significant limitations and restrictions.

The general obligation debt of all local governmental units which provide
services within the City'S boundaries and which debt must be borne by
properties in the City (commonly called overlapping debt) as of
August 31, 1991, is summarized below (unaudited):

Percentage
Net Debt Applicable

Outstanding _To the City
Direct and

Oyerlapping pebt

39,231,539
.., C '"7nc nnf'\
I ;J, I ::J;J,VVV

3,650,000
None
None

,,-, n
":::J I.e:.

100.0
None
35.9

$39,231 ,539
... ,.. ",,..,, """
IO,~OU,uuu

3,650,000
None
None

City
School District #1
Airport Authority(1)
Lancaster County
Southeast Community College

(1 )Ooes not include Special Obligation Bonds of $565,819 payable from
lease rentals.

The City has no direct liability for the School District, Lancaster County,
Airport Authority, or Southeast Community College debt summarized above.
This results in a per capita direct City debt of $204.36, a per capita direct and
overlapping debt of $305.65, a ratio of direct City debt to 1991 actual
valuation of .7178 percent, and a ratio of direct and overlapping debt to 1991
actual valuation of 1.074 percent.

(10) INTEREST COST

Total interest cost incurred in the Enterprise funds during the year ended
August 31, 1991 was $24,227,617. This amount was charged to earnings.
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(11) SEGMENTS OF OTHER ENTERPRISE ACTIVITIES

Various services provided by the City are financed by user charges. These
include parking, goif, hospital, transportation, wastewater, water, landfill,
electricity, and a city auditorium.

Operating Revenues
Operating Expenses:

Depreciation
Other

Operating Income (Loss)

Lincoln
General
Hospital

$ 53,998.000

2,657,000
47.723,000
50,380.000

$ 3.618.000

Lincoln
Wastewater

System

11,330,671

1,907,791
5,759,667
7.667,458

Lincoln
Water

System

17,824,809

1,764,105
5,945,212
7.709.317

10,115.492

Lincoln
Electric
System

106,835,000

11,392,000
n,098,000
88,490.000
18,345,000

Other

8,235,201

1,854,102
9,976.059

11.830,161
(3,594,960)

Total

198,223,681

19,574,998
146.501,938
166.076,936
32,146,745

Operating Grants, Operating

Transfers In, Donations :.=$===1=0:=1,:=00:0===============3:,9::78=.:,2::8:::6==4::,O::79=.:.2::8=::6

Nellncome (Loss)

Net Working Capital

Total Assets

Bonds And Notes Payable

$ 2.160,000 4,069.151 11.786,592 5,002,000 (155.228) 22,862.515

$ 15.023.000 1,174,456 5,931.9n 47,546.000 3,633,452 73,308.885

$ 49.000.000 90.830,400 162,003,067 422,306.000 40,141.320 764.280.787

$ 21.225,000 11.072,700 52,115,000 293,252,000 9.145.000 386-809,700

Current Capital
Contributions

Contributed Capital

$

$

2,430,091

34,539,008

892.659

19,317,731

1.854,758

15,375.568

5,1n.508

69,232,307

Fund Equity

Acquisition Of Property,
Plant, & Equipment

$ 21,917.000 76,858,538 106,907,641 101,970,000 29,274,861 336.928,040

$ 2,500,000 11,735,902 9,959,324 13,933,000 3,178,251 41,306.477

The operating loss of $3,594,960 in the "Other" column is primarily
attributable to StarTran which incurred an operating loss of $4,350,309, but
received federal and state grants and local subsidies of $3,591 ,545, which
are included in non-operating revenues and operating transfers.

(12) DEFICIT BALANCES

The following funds had deficit fund balances/retained earnings as of August
31, 1991:

911 Communication Fund
Northeast Radial Revolving
Engineering Revolving
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(13) EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT PLANS

The emolovees of the City are covered by several retirement plans. The Fire
and Pol'ice" Department Plans are administered by the City and are included
in the Fiduciary Fund type. All other plans are administered by outside
trustees and are not included in the City'S combined financial statements.

FIRE AND POLICE DEPABTME~I

Commissioned employees of the Police and Fire Departments were covered
by a state-imposed, single employer, City administered retirement system
through August 31, 1987. Beginning September 1, 1987, control of the
plan transferred from the State legislature to the City Council. The Police
and Fire Pension Fund and Fire Pension Fund are carried in the Fiduciary
Fund type on the City's financial statements. The latest actuarial study for
the plan was as of December 31, 1990. Police officers and firefighters
employed prior to May, 1984, contribute either 7% or 7.60/0 of their base
salary based on a one time determination made by the employee in May,
1984. This contribution is authorized by City Ordinance #14665 dated April
27, 1987. Those employed subsequent to May, 1984, contribute 7.6% of
their base salary. The percentage of base salary paid upon retirement is
dependent on the percentage of withholding selected by the employee. At
December 31, 1990 there were 510 active members and 122 retirants and
beneficiaries. Total oavroll for the Dension clan was $15.955.369 and
covered payroll was $15:015,000.' . ...

Police officers and firefighters are eligible for regular retirement benefits
when they: (a) have first served in the paid service of the fire or police
department for a period of 21 years; (b) have attained the age of 53 years;
and (c) elect to retire from active service and go on the retired list. The
pension shall be a straight life pension of either 540/0 or 58% of the regular
pay for such firefighter or police officer, paid monthly. The pension of a
police officer or firefighter who elects to remain on active duty after becoming
eligible for reti~ement shall be increased by 2% of his or her regular pay for
each year of additional service, subject to a maximum increase of 100/0. Any
firefighter or police officer who retires on or after his or her 50th birthday, but
prior to his or her 53rd birthday and who has completed at least 21 years of
service shall receive the actuarial equivalent of the benefit which would
otherwise be provided at age 53. The plan also has provisions for disability,
death benefits and early retirement. Vesting occurs after 10 years of service.
Of the 510 active members at December 31, 1990, 335 were vested and 175
were not vested. The plan has 61 age and service retirants, 31 disability
retirants, 30 survivor beneficiaries and 30 vested terminated members as of
the December 31, 1990 actuarial valuation.

The amount shown below as the "pension benefit obligation" is a
standardized disclosure measure of the present value of pension benefits,
adjusted for the effects of projected salary increases estimated to be payable
in the future as a result of employee service to date. The measure is the
actuarial present value of credited projected benefits and is intended to (i)
help users assess the funding status on a going-concern basis, (ii)
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assess progress being made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay
benefits when due, and (iii) allow for comparisons among public employee
retirement plans. The measure is independent of the actuarial funding
method used to determine contributions to the plan.

The pension benefit obligation was determined as part of an actuarial
valuation of the plan as of December 31, 1990. Significant actuarial
assumptions used in determining the pension benefit obligation include (a)
a rate of return on the investment of present and future assets of 7.00/0 per
year compounded annually, (b) projected salary increases of 5.0% per year
compounded annually, attributable to inflation, (c) additional projected
salary increases ranging from 0.70/0 to 4.00/0 per year, depending on age,
attributable to seniority/merit, and (d) the assumption that benefits will not
increase after retirement.

At December 31, 1990, the assets in excess of the pension benefit
obligation were $12,976,245 determined as follows:

Pension Benefit Obligation:

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving
benefits

Terminated employees not yet
receiving benefits

Current employees:
Accumulated employee contributions
Employer financed - Vested
Employer financed - Non-vested

Total Pension Benefit Obligation

Net assets available for benefits, at cost

Assets in excess of the Pension Benefit Obligation

$748,120

18,902,142
20,585,301

1.817.560

$53,534,708

66.510.953

$12,976,245

During the year ended December 31, 1990, the plan experienced a net
change of ($3,037,518) in the pension benefit obligation. Of that
($8,427,261) was due to changes in actuarial assumptions, $903,773 was
due to plan changes and $4,485,970 was due to changes in demographics.

Contributions ReQuired and Contributions Made

The City's funding policy provides for periodic employer contributions at
actuarially determined rates that, expressed as percentages of annual
covered payroll, are designed to accumulate sufficient assets to pay benefits
when due. The normal cost and actuarial accrued liability for the year ended
August 31, 1990 were determined using an entry-age actuarial funding
method. Unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities were amortized as a level
percent payroll over a period of 16 years.
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Computed
Fiscal Year Contribution Dollar Contribution

EndOO Valuation Date Rates As Percents Valuation
August 31

1981 1979 9.79 % $ $ 830,103 $
1981 1979@ 9.96 7,81 844,517 771,654'"
1982 1980 9.77 8,257,426 8'75,082 1,357,699
1983 1981# 14.03 9,038,920 1,375,574 1,572,742
1984 1982 13.72 10,407,029 1,548,783 1,539,394
1985 1983# 13.53 10,435,738 1,531,548 1,427,390
1986 1984 12. 3 10,841,626 1,426,477 676,940
1987 1985 11.04 11,265,219 1,349,020 1,032,222
1988 1986 10.65 11,737,859 1,355,964 528,985
1989 1987 0.53 12,948,660 1,478,982 541,013
1990 1988 10.06 12,937,333 1,487,511 562,445

@ After changes in actuarial assumptions or methods.
# After changes in benefit provisions.

Computed dollar contribution is equal to the contribution percent times the valuation payroll
projected to the appropriate fiscal year. current projection factor is equal to 1.0847.

'" On a cash basis.

(6)
(2) Unfunded

(3) (5) PBOasa
Net Benefit Percent Annual Percentage of

Year Ended Available Obligation Funded PBO Covered Covered Payroll
December 31 (4)/(5)

1981# 20,792 22,743 91 1,951 9,039 22
1982 25,307 26,470 96 1,163 10,407 11
1983# 29,718 103 10,436
1984 34,318 31,373 109 10,842
1985 39,895 36,003 111 11,265
1986 44,671 39,996 112 11,738
1987 50,417 45,015 112 12,949
1988 55,693 52,601 106 12,937
1989 61,144 56,572 108 13,742
1990@# 66,511 53,535 124 15,015

@ After in actuarial assumptions.
1# After changes in benefit provisions.
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Asset Information Reported For Valuation
Comparative Statement

(Dollar Amounts in Thousands)

Revenues
Year Assets Employer

Ended Beginning Employee Employer % of Covered Investment
December 31 of Year Contributions Contributions Payroll Income Total

1981+ 18,091 647 935 10.3 1,676 3,258
1982+ 21,671 728 1,171 11.3 2,306 4,205
1983 25,307 764 1,527 14.6 2,673 4,964
1984* 29,718 784 1,465 13.5 3,319 5,568
1985* 34,318 842 1,560 13.8 3,798 6,200
1986 39,895 905 699 6.0 4,027 5,631
1987 44,671 922 1,040 8.0 4,774 6,736
1988 50,417 962 534 4.1 4.927 6,423
1989 55,693 1,002 555 4.0 5,377 6,934
1990 61,144 998 557 3.7 5,941 7,496

Retirement Contribution Administrative Assets
Benefits Refunds Expenses Total Year-End

i nOi . ...c~ 197 4 557 20,792I;;;IUI"f" ,,;);;)0

1982+ 446 120 3 569 25,307
1983 489 62 2 553 29,718
1984* 539 124 305 968 34,318
1985'" 633 118 (128) 623 39,895
1986 709 135 11 855 44,671
1987 800 184 6 990 50,417
1988 888 253 6 1147 55,693
1989 984 459 40 1483 61,144
1990 1,064 1,023 42 2129 66,511

*Reflects special transactions resulting from court case.
+Ending balance 1981 does not agree to beginning balance 1982 due to the City

changing from a cash basis to an accrual basis.

Analysis of the dollar amounts available for benefits, pension
benefit obligation, and unfunded pension benefit obligation in isolation can
be misleading. Expressing the net assets available for benefits as a
percentage of the pension benefit obligation provides one indication of the
plan's funded status on a going-concern basis. Analysis of the percentage
over time indicates whether the system is becoming financially stronger or
weaker. Generally, the greater this percentage, the stronger the plan. The
unfunded pension benefit obligation and annual covered payroll are both
affected by inflation. Expressing the unfunded pension benefit obligation as
a percentage of annual covered payroll approximately adjusts for the effects
of inflation and aids analysis of the progress being made in accumulating
sufficient assets to pay benefits when due. Generally, the smaller this
percentage, the stronger the plan.
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FIRE PENSION PLAN (OLD)

The City is fundina retirements under a sinale emoloYer olan for firemen
hired under "old" State laws and employed priOr to 1947. .

The City of Lincoln is obligated to pay the pension benefits of retired
Firefighters covered under the City of Lincoln Firemen Retirement System.
There are no mandated annual contribution requirements. However, the
City is required to make contributions to fund monthly benefit payments. The
City has not contributed to this plan for several years. City of Lincoln
Municipal Code and the implied contract that exists between all City
employees and the City, establishes the authority for pension contribution
obligations.

The plan provides monthly payments equal to 500/0 of the greater of the
averaae of monthlv base salarv for the three consecutive years Drior to
retirement, or the employees highest three consecutive years of base salary.
The payments are made to the employee for his lifetime and upon his death,
the payments are made to the employee's spouse for the remainder of her
lifetime. Employees are eligible to receive normal retirement at 21 years of
service and age 55.

As of August 31, 1991, there are no active employees in this plan, only
retirees; therefore the plan has no liability other than that existing for its
current pensioned members. A funding analysis as of December 31, 1988,
the date of the latest valuation, follows.

Analysis of Funding Progress
(Dollar Amounts in Thousands)

(2)
Pension (6)
Benefit Unfunded

(1) Obligation (3) (4) (5) PBOasa
Net Assets (PBO) Percent Unfunded Annual Percentage of

Year Ended Available (Entry-Age Normal Funded PBO Covered Covered Payroll
December 31·+ for Benefits Cost Method) (1 )/(2) (2)-(1 ) Payroll (4)1(5)

1988 $2,098 $2,379 88 % $ 281 $41 680%
1986 1,988 2,717 73 729 35 2,082
1984 1,718 2,900 59 1,182 32 3,694
1982 1,535 3,275 47 1,740 30 5,800

·Valuations are done bi-annually.
+Valuation is being done as of August 31, 1991 to coincide with the City's year end.

This valuation is not yet complete.

PSO is a standardized disclosure measure of the present value of pension
benefits, adjusted for the effects of projected salary increases and any step­
rate benefits, estimated to be payable in the future as a result of employee
service to date.
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Vested benefits are fully funded. Payroll and contribution information is as
follows:

Employer
ConiribuiiQn

mu:
1990
1989
1988

Total
Payroll

Expense
$13,370,000

12,711,374
12,103,000

Covered
Payroll

12,864,000
1 76,826
11 A01,OOO

Amount
1,231,000
1,140,526
1,069,000

Percent
Of Covered

Payroll
9.570/0
9.370/0
9.380/0

Employee
Contribution

Percent
Of Covered

Amount Payroll
617,000 4.80°/0
580,222 4.76°/0
544,000 4.770/0

General Hospital

The Hospital has a noncontributory, single employer defined benefit pension
plan which covers substantially all full-time employees and all part-time
employees who work at least 1,560 hours. Under the terms of the plan an
eamnln\leea c::h~1I neaf"'nmea ealininlea fnr inf"'ludnn in tho nl!:ln unnn ra~chinf"'l the-"""""".1 v ""' ......... 11 "'''''''''''Ia", "'"~I'i"'I"'" 1'-'11 III'",,' V''''II III ..... Y ""'''''''''1 "'''-'111 1\J\..4 II. ~ I.,'
age of 30 and completion of one year of service or age 40 with no service
requirement. Pension benefits vest after 5 years of credited service. Those
employees who work more than 36 hours per week earn a full year of
service and those who work from 30 to 36 hours per week earn one half year
of service for each year worked. Upon retirement at age 65, a plan
participant will receive 110% the average monthly earnings divided by
60%, of monthly earnings in excess of a specified level calculated in
~""f'\t"rI~n"n \uifh thn Onff'\t"n"'l A"t nf i CHJa 1\ I£"", +h,... .............. : ............. 1.......
uvvVI\.H;;UI\",v ""ILII Uiv IlvlVllI1 I>vL VI Ii;.7VV. I>liJV LIlY; tJY;1 I\:IIVI I tJlCAl1

provides early retirement benefits at age 55 and 5 years of service, death
benefits at age 45 and 5 years of service, and disability benefits at age 55
and 10 years of service or age 60 with no service requirement. All early
retirement, death and disibility benefits are based on a percentage of the
vested accrued benefit the applicable date. At July 1, 1991 (the date of
the actuarial valuation) the Hospital's total payroll was $21,458,049 and
covered payroll was $15,137,000.

Presented below is the total pension benefit obligation of the Hospital
pension plan. The total obligation is based on the projected unit credit cost
method which is used as a substitute for the standardized measure which is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standard Board.

The Projected Unit Credit Method develops a normal cost and a pension
benefit obligation for each participant. A projected benefit at each
anticipated future separation date is calculated and is allocated based on
service. The present value of benefits allocated to the current year is the
normal cost an individual. The normal cost multiplied by the service to
the valuation date gives the pension benefit obligation (PSC). For an
inactive participant (pensioner or vested terminated employee), the pension
benefit obligation is the entire present value of the benefit and there is no
normal cost. The sum of these individual values gives the normal cost and
the pension benefit obligation for the plan. PSO is a standardized disclosure
measure of the present value of pension benefits, adjusted for the effects of
projected salary increases and any step-rate benefits, estimated to be
payable in the future as a result employee service to date.
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4,726,000
564.000

$ 1,828,000

A variety of significant assumptions are used determine the
projected unit credit measure of the pension benefit obligation and these
assumptions are summarized

(1) present of future pension payments was computed by using
a discount rate 8.50/0.

(2) Future pension payments reflect an assumption of a 6.5%
(compounded annually) salary increase as a result of inflation.

(3) Future pension payments reflect no salary increase as a result of
seniority and/or merit adjustments or post-retirement benefit increases,
which is consistent the terms of the pension agreement.

The assets in excess of pension benefit obligation at July 1, 1991 (the date
of actuarial valuation) was as follows:

Pension benefit obligation:
Retirees and beneficiaries recelvmg

benefits and terminated employees yet
receiving

Current employees:
Employer-financed vested retirement,
disability pre-retirement death benefits

Employer-financed nonvested

Total pension benefit obligation

Net assets available benefits at

Assets in excess obligation

7,118,000

7.278.000

$ 160,000

is to annually contribute the normal cost plus a
assets in excess of) pension benefit

on an actuarial basis using the
above. Total Hospital contributions

August , 1991 and 1990 were
and were based on an actuarial

1989 as follows:

19..a1 .1JlltQ

$487,000 406,000Normal cost
Amortization of unfunded pension

benefit (assets in excess
of pension obligation)

Total contribution
(25.000)

$462.000
(64.000)

342,000

Actual contributions
$342,000 during the

by the Hospital totaled $408,000 and
August 31, 1991 and 1990, respectively.
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Historical trend information for Hospital is as follows:

July 1

3.00/0

assets available
percentage of
obligation ......... 11 ... ""11'"111,..

employees
Assets in excess

obligation as a
Hospital's

Hospital's
as a

Ylv'Vlv,.;n;,u in the Lincoln General
information as of

useful in assessing the
pay pension benefits as

of the month following the
ivioney rehase Plan

The plan is established by
a contribution plan requiring the City to

contribute 6% of the $4,800 of earned income in anyone calendar year,
plus 12% of earned income over $4,800 in one calendar year. Employees
cove by the p may make voluntary contributions. At
December 31, 1 account balance was $1,441,470. Total and
covered payroll December 31 , 1990 was approximately
$776,551. During ended December 31 , 1990, City contributions
totalled $83,516 1 of covered payroll. There were no unfunded
liabilities at December , 1990.

All other City employees are eligible 6 months' service and age 21 to
be covered the Money Purchase Pension Plan, established by
City Ordinance, ni by Ameritas Financial Services.
Enrollment in the is mandatory at age 40 with 5 years service.
There are no u The plan is a defined contribution plan
requiring employees to 3% of earnings on the first $4,800 and 6%
on the balance of Currently, the City contributes 2000/0 of the
employees' contribution. the year ended December 31 , 1990, City
contributions totalled (10.720/0 of covered payroll). Vesting
occurs in increments 5 and 10 years of enrollment in the plan.
Total payroll was $34,097,940 and covered payroll was
approximately total plan account balance as of
December 31, 1990 was
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(14 )

General

The City participates in a of assisted grant programs,
principally UMTA Capital, Planning Operating Assistance Grants,
Federal Highway Construction Grants, Title III Aging Grants, Community
Development Block Grant (CDBG), Job Training Partnership Act (JTPA), and
local public works programs. The programs are subject to financial and
compliance audits. The amount of expenditures, if any, which may be
disallowed by the granting agencies is not determinable at this time;
however, City officials do not believe that such amounts would be significant.

The City is a defendant in a in its normal course of
operations and City opinion that ultimate settlement of
such lawsuits will adverse effect on the financial
statements. However, that there are certain actions
pending against the for relief seeks a significant
damage . 1) against the City seeking
damages in the $1, 00,000. An unfavorable
outcome, at least to extent of a significant loss is remote. 2) A tort claim
and civil rights suit seeks damages in excess of $1,000,000 from the City
and various unfavorable in that la\lvsuit is remote. 3) A
tort claim seeks $1,000,000 jointly severally against the City, the Chief
of Police, and two police officers. All but Chief of Police are covered by
insurance. against the not likely.

As a result of a
companies
1989-90 levy.
make
and be exempt from
Budget
are pending
measures passed the
local governments as a
cases and their effect on

City liable to various utility
on personal property for the

and has three years to
may to make these refunds

state imposed property tax lid. The
refunds in 1991-92. Other cases

property tax system and
to provide a short term relief for

decisions. The outcome of these
unknown.

Court declared property
property but not others

ruling, approximately 500 additional
cases have in District Court. It is possible that
the entire Nebraska property tax system cou be declared unconstitutional
as a result of these cases, ng on steps taken by the State
Legislature and Board to the July 1991 ruling.
The general rpose do not reflect liabilities relating to
these contingencies outcome is uncertain.
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Lincoln General Hospital

The Hospital has an agreement with Radiology Associates, P.C. (Radiology)
for the provision of diagnostic and therapeutic radiological services. As part
of the agreement, each party may take unilateral action to initiate the sale to
the Hospital of part or all of the radiological equipment in the Hospital, which
is owned by Radiology, upon giving 240 days notice. As estimated by
Radiology, the market value of such equipment at August 31, 1991 was
approximately $9,500,000. The Hospital is currently negotiating with
Radiology to purchase the radiation therapy component of the radiological
services currently offered. While the final terms of the agreement have not
yet been determined, the Hospital estimates that this transaction will have no
material effect on results

The Hospital has a similar agreement Clinical Laboratories of Lincoln,
Inc. for the provision of pathological laboratory management services.
Conditions of the agreement provide for sale of all or part of the pathological
laboratory equipment to the Hospital at the original cost, less straight-line
depreciation to date based on eight-year asset lives. This net book value at
August 31 , 1991 was approximately $196,000.

The Hospital has an
factoring of patient ..............8..., ....

extended payment terms.
to subsequent
held by the banks

with local banks which provides for the
receivable for those accounts requesting

receivables are factored with full recourse as
The uncollected balance of such receivables
to approximately $751,000 at August 31, 1991.

The Hospital currently insured for professional liability on a claims-made
basis and total limits of coverage for malpractice claims under all policies is
$11,000,000. At August 31, 1991, there no known unasserted or
asserted claims in excess coverage.

Patient service revenues are recorded at the Hospital's established billing
rates. Certain patient service revenues are subject to contracts with various
third-party payors, whereby the services rendered may be paid at an amount
different than the Hospital's established billing rates. The difference
between the Hospital's rates and the estimated payments from third-party
payors is recorded as a contractual allowance. These estimated amounts
are subject to further adjustment upon examination by the third-party payors.
Approximately $29,588,000 of patient service revenue for the year ended
August 31, 1991 is subject the provisions Medicare which represents
the largest third-party

Lincoln Wastewater System

The Lincoln Wastewater System has commitments under major construction
contracts in approximately $6,000,000 at August 31, 1991,
which will be fi through operations, available funds, a
federal grant and a state-sponsored project loan.
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Lincoln Wastewater System was a grant in April 1990 by the U.S.
Environmental Protection grant \,vill fund a portion of Lincoln
Wastewater System's digester facility construction project.
The grant amount of $2,552,060 be received in various stages as
Lincoln Wastewater System meets specified requirements. As of August 31,
1991, Lincoln Wastewater System has received $1,644,900 under the grant.

Lincoln Water System

The Lincoln Water System has commitments under major construction
contracts in progress of approximately $33,000,000 at August 31, 1991,
which will be financed primarily through revenue bond proceeds, operations
and available funds.

Lincoln Electric System (LES)

Power Sales Contract

LES has a Power Public Power District
(NPPD) which provides for 12.5 percent of the output of
NPPD's nominally 800 megawatt nuclear plant. The contract provides
that the City will pay a proportionate share of the nuclear fuel costs (based
on energy actually delivered) plus 12.5 percent of all other costs of the
facility. Fixed cost payments under the are on a participation basis
whether or not the plant is operating or operable.

The contract continues through 2003 and may be extended
if NPPD intends continue facility after that date. The nuclear
plant's operating license Regulatory Commission has
been extended to 2008. Upon of the contract, if the facility is no
longer operated, is r 12.5 percent of the costs of
decommissioning the Preliminary studies indicate the total cost of
decommissioning the lity wou approximate $335,000,000 in 1989
dollars. The 1989 decommissioning costs have been escalated at
a rate of the 2008, the year the facility is
estimated to The cash balances of various
NPPD funds at that time will be used to offset the total cost of
decommissioning I additional funds required for
decommissioning are billed participants and discounted at a rate of
eight percent the year of collection. Billing to the participants for required
decommissioning funds began in 1 with LES incurring associated costs
of approximately $313,000 in 1990.

Participants are also billed for costs of nuclear fuel burned based
on energy produced. LES recognized related costs of approximately
$639,000 in 1990.

I

LES is responsible for 1
the nuclear facility.
LES over periods ranging
purchased power approximately
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financed by NPPD and billed to

years. LES recognized as
for its share of these costs.



CITY LINCOLN, NEBRASKA
Notes to General Purpose Financial Statements

LES's remaining obligation for its share of costs for capital additions and
improvements incurred through December 31, 1990 is approximately
$10,400,000.

Internal financial statements of the nuclear facility reflect $318,585,000 in
revenue bonds outstanding at December 31, 1990. Fixed cost payments of
LES include the debt service payments necessary to retire 12.5 percent of
the principal and pay 12.5 percent of the interest on bonds issued by NPPD
for the facility. LES's share debt service payments was $4,533,000 in
1990.

Expected fixed cost payments to under this contract including debt
service payments, payments for decommissioning costs, other related fixed
costs, and other costs as noted above, aggregate $16,721,000,
$19,570,000, $21 ,045,000, $20,520,000 and $20,468,000, respectively, in
each of the five years subsequent to , 1990.

Participation Agreements

LES has participating interests in the output of two existing NPPD power
plants, a thirty pe (approximately 68 MW) and eight percent
(approximately 102 entitlement to the output of the Sheldon Station
Power Plant (nominally rated 225 MW coal plant) and Gerald Gentleman
Station Power plant (nominally rated 1,268 MW coal plant), respectively.
The participation agreements continue until the facilities are removed from
commercial operation or the final maturity occurs on the related debt
incurred by NPPD to finance the facilities, whichever occurs last. Fixed cost
payments under the agreements are on a participation basis whether or not
such plants are operating or operable. LES's share of the total fixed costs
incurred, was $11,800,000 in 1990. The expected fixed cost requirements
aggregate $12,180,000, $14,217,000, $14,062,000, $14,253,000, and
$14,849,000, respective in each of the five years subsequent to
December 31, 1990.

Laramie River Station (LRS)

LES is an 11.09 percent co-owner of the Missouri Basin Power Project
which includes LRS, a 1,650 MW coal-fired power supply station
in eastern Wyoming and a related transmission system. Costs associated
with LRS of approximately $171,000,000 are reflected in utility plant at
December 31, 1990.

LES has a participation power sales agreement with the County of Los
Alamos, New Mexico (the County) whereby County purchases from LES
10 MW of LES's capacity interest in LRS. The agreement provides for the
County to pay approximately $110,000 per month through July 1, 1991
for demand charges. The amount is subject to change each July 1 until
termination of the The agreement remains in effect until either
the final maturity occurs on LRS related debt, LRS is removed from
commercial operation or the gives LES notice to terminate the
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agreement. During 1
for demand and

,
charges.

approximately $2,130,000

LES has entered into an
Inc. (AECI) which commits
Missouri-iowa-Nebraska
receive transmission
LES to transfer energy
construction costs of the
LES. LES's share of the
paid for with the energy
approximately $260,000
were included in utility

(15) DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

Associated Electric Cooperative,
one-seventh of the cost of the

Project and allows LES to
The ag reement requires

price until one-seventh of the
been recovered by AECI from

approximately $3,000,000 and be
AEe!. At December 31, 1990,

costs and related liabilities
respectively.

deferred compensation plans
Section 457. The plans,

Hospital employees,
until years. The deferred

nl'T'lnln'~/nn until termination, retirement,
disability.

plans, all property and
attributable to those

made available to the
and rights of the City

under the plans),
creditors. Participants' rights

creditors of the City in an
account for each

an insurance contract with an

City has no liability for
investment of funds

care that would be required
that it is unlikely that it will

"...1'...... 1'• ..-.--.. creditors in the future. The
at December 31, 1990

deferred charges and other
31,1991 was $2,795,846.
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Revenues and
accounting differ
accordance with
and accruals. A 1I"./"lIA"'i.nll""l"'.

ended August 31, 1
adjustments
Basis, is presented

on a budget basis of
revenues expenditures presented in

different treatment of encumbrances
revenues expenditures for the year

discloses the nature and amount of the
the to the Budgetary

General
Special

Revenue
Debt

Service
funds

Revenues and Other Sources:
GAAP Basis

Add: Prior Year Accrual Ariil'l<::trn.ontc:

Less: Current Year Accrual
Budget Basis

10,891,886
2,676,383
(1,856.190)

11,712,079

Expenditures and Other Uses:
GAAP Basis

Add: Prior Year Accrual At'il!ilc:trnll:lriltc:

Current Year
Less: Current Year Accrual Adjlustrnenlts

Prior Year Encumbrances2
Basis

12,763,279
94,648

(56,429)

1Timing Difference
2Basis Difference

(17)

, 1991 were as

Interfund Interfund
Payables

143,303

42,280
7,671 2,829

3
3,889

303,602 9
13,758 3,150

Interfund
follows:

General Fund
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Interfund Receivables and Payables Balances (Continued)

Tax Sales Revolving
Lincoln/Lancaster County Health Fund
911 Communication Fund
Social Security Fund
Street Construction Fund
Unemployment Fund
Federal Grants
Special Assessment

Total Special Revenue Funds

Debt Service Funds:
Tax Allocation Projects Debt Service
Bond Interest and Redemption Fund
Special Assessment

Total Debt Service Funds

Capital Projects Funds:
Storm Sewer Construction Fund
Street Construction Fund
Vehicle Tax Fund
Northeast Radial Tax Increment Bond Issue
Sanitary Landfill Purchase and Const. Fund
Downtown Redevelopment Project Fund
1989 G.O. Various Purpose Bonds
Other Capital Projects Fund
Special Assessment

Total Capital Projects Funds

Enterprise Funds:
Parking Lot Fund
Golf Fund
Parking Facilities
Sanitary Landfill

Total E'nterprise Funds

Internal Service Funds:
Data Processing Fund
Engineering Revolving Fund
Insurance Revolving Fund
Public Works Equipment Management Fund
Police Garage Fund
Print Services Revolving Fund
Stores Revolving Fund

Total Internal Service Funds
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Receivables Payabies

77,209
14,910 7,177

1,924
93,230 3,188

1,136,510 1,411,328
39,760

1,144 273,563
23.783 505.583

1.757.787 2.208.754

35,601
429,226 62

52.421
517.248 62

213
1,293,047

2,545 1,127,513
22,519
33,262 6,541

44,089
48,887
90,543 596

505.530
1.996.546 1.178,739

9,314
25,553 15,695

9,944
14.258 37.106
59.069 52.801

181,747 473
105,342 170,181

66,584 47
205,439 567

71,696 41
8,515 157
9.538 199.912

648.861 371.378
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Interfund Receivables and Payables Balances (Continued)

Interfund
Receivables

Interfund
payabies

1,190,628

2.QQQ.OQQ.
3.190.628
3.190.751

7,145,788

3,749
72.217 94
75.966 94

8,674
6,371 29

3Q.469
45.514 29

18,869
3,189

7,136

29.194
150.674

$7,145,788TOTAL

Fiduciary Funds:
Pension Trust Funds:

Fire Pension Fund
Police and Fire Pension Funds

Total Pension Trust Funds
Expendable Trust

Parks & Recreation Special Projects Fund
Commission on Gift Fund
Library Special

Total Expendable

Agency Funds:
Collections Due Fund
Payroll Revolving
Earnings on Pooled Investments Fund
Utilities and Telephone Suspense Fund
Undistributed Fund

Total Agency
Total Fiduciary

(18) EXCESSES OF EXPENDITURES OYER APPROPRIATIONS IN AN
INDIVIDUAL FUND

The Cable Access Television Fund had expenditures of $46,696 for which
there were no appropriations. The Tax Sales Revolving Fund had
expenditures $97,713 which there were no appropriations. The
Advance Acquisition Fund expenditures of $32,481 for which there were
no appropriations. The Street Construction Fund had expenditures of
$1,305 for which were no appropriations. The Federal Grants had
expenditures of and operating transfers out of $47,323 for which
there were no appropriations. Council Budget Resolution, Cable Access
Television, Tax Sales Revolving, Advance Acquisition, Street Construction,
and Federal Grants are among the funds allowed to spend any monies
received without further Council action.

The General Fund Buildings and Plant had expenditures of $972 for which
there were no appropriations. The Health Fund had operating transfers out
of $22,093 for which there were no appropriations, however, expenditures
overall were not over budget. The Tax Allocation Projects had expenditures
of $5,006 for which there were no appropriations. The Bond Interest and
Redemption had expenditures of $30,746 for which there were no
appropriations, this was due to additional City funds required to be placed
into escrow for the refunding 1983 Storm Sewer Construction Bonds.
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(19) RECLASSIFICATIONS
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conform to the 1.991 financial statement presentation.

(20) SELF-INSURANCE

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage
to, or destruction of assets; errors or omissions; injuries to employees; or
acts of God. The City self-insures its workers' compensation and its general
liability, law enforcement liability, and public transportation liability. The auto
liability risk continues to be insured on a guaranteed cost basis through an
A+ rated insurance company. The self-insurance programs are
administered through Risk Management Division. The City is sel1­
insured for workers' compensation risks up to $300,000 per individual,
$500,000 per occurrence; other property risks up to $25,000 per occurrence;
law enforcement liability risks up to $25,000 per occurrence (raised to
$50,000 on November 1, 1991); public transportation liability risks up to
$100,000 per occurrence; and employee long-term disability, all of which
are covered under Revolving Fund which is included in the
internal service Workers' compensation is covered by a policy which
provides $2,000,000 limits the City's retention of $300,000 per
individual and $500,000 per occurrence. Public transportation liability is
.............. '8""8"'" h .. a p...... li,..u u1hi .....h p........ ··'·d ......... $C non ana I: ....... :~S .... b..... ··"" ~&.. ..... I":t,·,s\"JVY I U uy vllvy nllvl IVV' e., '-J,V v, v III1IH d. uvt:: LIlt:: vi Y
retention of $100,000 per occurrence. Nebraska Political Tort Claims
Act limits the City's liability for claims $1 ,000,000 per individual and
$5,000,000 for all individuals occurrence. The governmental and
proprietary m amounts to the Insurance
Revolving Funds.

The City of an during 1991 to prepare an
analysis of compensation, general liability, and
public transportation liability analysis will be used to assist the
City with its financial and management of the self-insurance
program. Included in the ..::l'II.I,,;vu.i.u objectives of the study were to:

Estimate the outstandi liabilities for the fiscal year ended
Aug 31 , 1991 .

Forecast ultimate incurred losses and incurred but not reported (IBNR)
losses for fiscal years ended August 31, 1992 through
August 31, 1993.

the required funding level for the City's self-insured liabilities.

The City funds its self-insurance program on an "incurred loss" basis.
Annual premiums charged to the funds are based on past experience of
incurred losses. Claims liabilities of $2,893,000 were recorded at
August 31, 1991. This is the actuarially estimated amount of both workers'
compensation and liability based on an estimate of ultimate incurred
losses as of that date.
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(21) PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS

The i 990 comparative totals have been restated to refiect a correction of an
understatement of the contractual allowance for Lincoln General Hospital.
The effect of the restatement is to decrease accounts receivable by
$1,185,000, decrease net patient revenue and revenues and gains in
excess of expenses and losses by $469,000 at August 31, 1990 and
decrease fund balance by $716,000 at September 1, 1989.

(22) SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In December, 1991 the City of Lincoln issued $5,580,000 of General
Obligation Various Purpose Bonds, Series 1991, with an average interest
rate of 5.764500/0. This bond issue was approved by a majority of the
qualified voters of the City voting at elections held April 9, 1991 and May 7,
; 991. The Bonds were issued for the purpose of providing certain
improvements to (1) the library facilities in the City including, but not limited
to, the expansion of the Gere library and the purchase of a new bookmobile
and (2) the City's presently existing storm sewer and drainage system.
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resources not accounted for in other
operation of the basic
judicial, administration,

services, planning, property
Appropriations are made from

is perpetual.

This fund accounts for all
funds. It finances the regular
governmental activities, such as
police protection, fire protection,
management, and parks and
the fund annually. The fund's

5,7



CITY OF LINCOLN, NE
GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES. AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

FISCAL YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31,1991

A-1

Revenues:
Real Estate And Personal Property Tax
Taxes Collected By Others
Sundry Taxes And In Lieu
Occupation Taxes
Intergovernmental
Permits And Fees
Reimbursement For Services
Court Fees
Recreation Receipts
Interest
Parking Meter
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenditures:
General Government
Public Safety
Streets And Highways
Culture And Recreation

Total Expenditures

Excess Of Revenues Over Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating Transfers In
Operating Transfers Out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Variance
Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

$ 15,496,322 17,284,880 1,788,558
24,985,000 24,939,903 (45,097)

922,616 881,558 (41,058)
4,564,216 4,320,126 (244,090)
2,723,000 2,754,727 31,727
1,143,245 1,194,363 51,118
1,099,956 1,147,762 47,806

112,500 98,701 (13,799)
687,100 718,376 31,276
622,500 578,391 (44,109)
345,000 337,826 (7,174)
329,500 1,148,551 819,051

53,030,955 55,405,164 2,374,209

13,251,889 12,680,494 571,395
24,661,941 24,551,405 110,536

4,280,462 4,233,853 46,609
6,194,625 6,178,742 15,883

48,388,917 47,644,494 744,423

4,642,038 7,760,670 3,118,632

348,198 348,198
(8,485,649) (8,349,694) 135,955
(8,485,649) (8,001,496) 484,153

Excess Of Expenditures And Other
Financing Uses Over Revenues And
Other Financing Sources

Fund Balance Beginning Of Year

Fund Balance End Of Year

(3,843,611 )

4,586,285

5.8

(240,826)

4,586,285

4,345,459

3,602,785

3,602,785
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CITY OF LINCOLN, NE
GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES COMPARED TO BUDGET
FISCAL YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 1991

Variance
Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

GENERAL GOVERNMENT:
legislative:

Personal Services $ 113,302 115,959 (2,657)
Supplies 2,575 1,795 780
Other Services And Charges 49,097 41,469 7,628
Capital Outlay 15,700 15,746 (46)

Total legislative 180,674 174,969 5,705

Executive:
Personal Services 626,256 630,040 (3,784)
Supplies 17,907 17,615 292
Other Services And Charges 263,793 248,246 15,547
Capital Outlay 6,661 6,766 (105)

Total Executive 914,617 902,667 11,950

Financial Administration:
Personal Services 930,535 896,064 34,471
Supplies 33,025 35,653 (2,628)
Other Services And Charges 329,015 322,667 6,348
Capital Outlay 1,100 5,909 (4,809)

Total Financial Administration 1,293,675 1,260,293 33,382

Law:
Personal Services 840,153 835,829 4,324
Supplies 27,750 27,363 387
Other Services And Charges 46,269 35,854 10,415
Capital Outlay 51,080 50,758 322

Total Law 965,252 949,804 15,448

Personnel Administration:
Personal Services 422,618 406,260 16,358
Supplies 13,889 19,988 (6,099)
Other Services And Charges 79,644 67,215 12,429
Capital Outlay 2,475 (2,475)

Total Personnel Administration 516,151 495,938 20,213

(Continued)
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(GENERAL FUND, Continued) A-2

Planning And Zoning:
Personal Services 695,576 650,271 45,305
Supplies 18,300 17,647 653
Other Services And Charges 117,329 131,217 (13,888)
Capital Outlay 7,800 6,449 1,351

Total Planning And Zoning 839,005 805,584 33,421

Buildings And Plant:
Personal Services 350,370 333,724 16,646
Supplies 63,600 49,432 14,168
Other Services And Charges 604,219 630,503 (26,284)
Capital Outlay 5,502 (5,502)

Total Buildings And Plant 1,018,189 1,019,161 (972)

Urban Development:
Personal Services 500,840 514,554 (13,714)
Supplies 11,180 7,555 3,625
Other Services And Charges 183,603 136,182 47,421
Capital Outlay 2,407 2,559 (152)

Total Urban Development 698,030 660,850 37,180

Miscellaneous:
Personal Services 3,589,329 3,360,239 229,090
Other Services And Charges 3,118,449 2,852,012 266,437
Capital Outlay 118,518 198,977 (89,459)

Total Miscellaneous 6,826,296 6,411,228 415,068

Total General Government 13,251,889 12,680,494 571,395

PUBLIC SAFETY:
Police:

Personal Services 9,896,036 9,866,801 29,235
Supplies 253,950 252,701 1,249
Other Services And Charges 1,855,544 1,875,037 (19,493)
Capital Outlay 32,753 28,992 3,761

Total Police 12,038,283 12,023,531 14,752

Fire:
Personal Services 8,571,294 8,495,544 75,750
Supplies 211,064 243,807 (32,743)
Other Services And Charges 501,083 507,274 (6,191)
Capital Outlay 214,895 237,884 (22,989)

Total Fire 9,498,336 9,484,509 13,827

Building And Safety:
Personal Services 1,491,364 1,439,149 52,215
Supplies 38,009 31,724 6,285
Other Services And Charges 226,132 250,265 (24,133)
Capital Outlay 7,650 4,024 3,626

Total Building And Safety 1,763,155 1,725,162 37,993

(Continued)
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(GENERAL FUND, Continued) A-2

Communications:
Other Services And Charges (1,432) 1,432
Capital Outlay 17,170 16,213 957

Total Communications 17,170 14,781 2,389

Transportation:
Personal Services 876,433 859,359 17,074
Supplies 217,115 197,355 19,760
Other Services And Charges 244,699 239,221 5,478
Capital Outlay 6,750 7,487 (737)

Total Transportation 1,344,997 1,303,422 41,575

Total Public Safety 24,661,941 24,551,405 110,536

STREETS AND HIGHWAYS:
Street Maintenance:

Personal Services 1,349,553 1,259,187 90,366
Supplies 139,531 206,542 (67,011 )
Other Services And Charges 1,064,982 1,055,395 9,587
Capital Outlay 4,160 1,272 2,888

Total Street Maintenance 2,558,226 2,522,396 35,830

Street Lighting:
Other Services And Charges 1,722,236 1,711,457 10,779

Total Streets And Highways 4,280,462 4,233,853 46,609

CULTURE AND RECREATION:
Parks And Recreation:

Personal Services 4,077,466 3,975,002 102,464
Supplies 383,430 425,632 (42,202)
Other Services And Charges 1,685,006 1,712,717 (27,711 )
Capital Outlay 48,723 65,391 (16,668)

Total Culture And Recreation 6,194,625 6,178,742 15,883

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 48,388,917 47,644,494 744,423
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds are established to account for the proceeds from
a specific revenue source that is legally restricted to expenditures for a
specified purpose.

Advance ACQuisition Fund .. To account for funds to be used for the
acquisition of real estate for public purposes. Net proceeds from the sale
or exchange of real estate owned by the City shall be credited to this
fund, and the fund may also be increased by General Fund
appropriations, or proceeds from general obligation borrowing.

Athletic. Field and Facilities Improvement Fund .. To account for proceeds
from a surcharge applied to registration fees charged by the Recreation
Division for various athletic activities. These monies must be used for
improvements to athletic field and facilities.

Aviation Promotion Fund .. To account for monies received from a tax
levied specifically for the purpose of promoting air transportation in and
out of Lincoln.

Civil Defense Fund .. To account for the costs of operating the City of
Lincoln/Lancaster County Civil Defense Department. Financing is
provided by Federal, County, and City Funds.

Cable Access Television Fund .. To account for receipt and disbursement
of educational and governmental access capital equipment and facilities
grants. The Franchise Agreement between the City and lincoln
Cablevision, effective August 5, 1985, required Cablevision to deposit
$400,000 in such a fund. Cablevision is required to match, one for one,
any contributions by the City for such purposes up to $100,000.

Lincoln City Libraries Fund .. To account for the costs of providing library
services to the citizens of Lincoln. Financing is provided by a specific
annual tax levy, fines and fees, and reimbursement from Lancaster
County for services provided to County residents.

Lincoln Area Agency on Aging Fund .. To account for the cost of providing
various services to senior citizens through the Lincoln/Lancaster
Commission on Aging. Financing is provided by Federal, State, County,
and City funds.

Tax Sales Revolving Fund .. To provide working funds to acquire lots sold
at tax sale for which any part of the taxes included in the decree of
foreclosure is due to the City. To account for expenditures from this fund
to purchase such lots and associated expenses, and to account for
monies received from the sale of such lots. Financing is provided by a
transfer from the Advance Acquisition Fund and monies received from
the sale of lots.
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Lincoln/Lancaster County Health Fund - To account for the cost of
providing health services to the citizens of the City of Lincoln and
Lancaster County. Financing is provided by State, County, and City
funds.

Northeasj Radial Fund - To account for rental receipts from and the
maintenance of various properties purchased for the eventual
construction of a radial access to the northeast part of the City. Actual
construction of the radial has been defeated by the voters and disposition
of the land is still to be resolved.

911 Communication Fynd - To account for the cost of answering and
processing all incoming 911 and non-emergency calls. Dispatch calls for
service for the Lincoln Police Department, Lincoln Fire Department,
Lancaster County Sheriff's Office and Rural Volunteer Fire and Rescue
Departments. Financing is provided by County and City funds and a 911
telephone surcharge.

Social Security Fund - To account for the City of Lincoln's matching
share of Social Security costs for employees paid from the General Fund
and other funds supported primarily from general tax revenue. Financing
is provided by a specific annual property tax levy. Such property taxes
may only be used for this purpose.

Street Construction Fund - To account for the receipt and disbursement
of highway ailocation fees received from the State of Nebraska. By State
law these monies are restricted to construction and maintenance of
streets and highways and appurtenances thereto.

Unemployment Compensation Fund - To account for the cost of
unemployment insurance for benefits paid to former employees of
departments supported primarily from tax revenues. The City rei mburses
the State for actual costs rather than a percentage of payroll. Financing
is provided by a specific annual property tax levy. Such property taxes
may only be used for this purpose.

Federal Grants - Includes three federal funds as follows:

Community Development Block Grant Fund - To account for
the cost of providing services under the City'S Community
Development Block Grant Program. Funding is provided
by grants from the Department of Housing and Urban
Development (HUD).

Grants-In-Aid Fund .. To account for monies received from
various Federal and State Agencies under several small
categorical grants and the City'S matching funds where
applicable.
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Job Training Programs Fund - To account for the cost of
providing services under the Job Training and Partnership
Act. Funding is provided by grants from the Department of
Labor.

Special Assessment Fund - To account for the receipt and disbursement
of special assessment bond proceeds, other income is derived from
interest income, developers share of districts and City subsidies. This
fund is also used to account for the administrative cost of collection of
and accounting for special assessments levied against benefitted
properties. Expenditures for Capital Improvement Special Assessment
projects are accounted for in the Capital Improvements Fund. Periodic
transfers are made to the Capital Projects Fund to cover expenditures.
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
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CITY OF LINCOL~I. Nil
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

COMBINiNG STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENOITURE:S, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FISCAl. VEAR ENDED AUGUST 31,1991

With Comparllliw Totais Fer AuglUGt 31,1990
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CITY OF LINCOLN, NE
An\/"' ...,..,.. A,.._IIIi"'.TI_.. 1 ,..I ....n
I"\U 'II 1"\1"v r:: I"\v\",lUI\:>IIIVI" rua"...,

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

FISCAL YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 1991

B-3

Revenues:
Interest
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenditures -- General Government:
Other Services And Charges

Excess Of Revenues Over
Expenditures

Other Financing Uses:
Operating Transfers Out

Budget

$

(128,410)

Variance
Favorable

Actual (Unfavorable)

44,433 44,433
110,623 110,623

155,056 155,056

32,481 (32,481 )

122,575 122,575

(75,000) 53,410

Excess (Deficiency) Of Revenues
Over Expenditures And
Other Financing Uses

Fund Balance Beginning Of Year

Fund Balance End Of Year

68

(128,410)

454,977

$ ==3::::2=:6:::,5:::67=

47,575

454,977

502,552

175,985

175,985



CITY OF LINCOLN, NE
ATHLETIC FIELD AND FACILITIES IMPROVEMENT FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGETAND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

FISCAL YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31,1991

B-4

Variance
Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

Revenues:
Interest $ 10,346 10,346
Miscellaneous 75,000 84,961 9,961

Total Revenues 75,000 95,307 20,307

Other Financing Uses:
Operating Transfers Out (48,534) (25,717) 22,817

Excess Of Revenues
Over Other Financing Uses 26,466 69,590 43,124

Fund Balance Beginning Of Year 107,279 107,279

Fund Balance End Of Year $ 133,745 176,869 43,124
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CITY OF LINCOLN, NE
AVIATION PROMOTION FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

FISCAL YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 1991

Revenues:
Interest

Excess Of Revenues Over Expenditures

Fund Balance Beginning Of Year

Fund Balance End Of Year

70

Budget

$-----

16,254

$==1:::6:::,25:::4:·

Actual

49

49

16,254

16,303

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)

49

49

49



,CITY,OF LINCOLN, NE
CIVIL DEFENSE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

FISCAL YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31,1991

B-6

Variance
Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

Revenues:
Intergovernmental $ 143,441 115,336 (28,105)

Expenditures -- Public Safety:
Personal SaiVices 115,323 113,174 2,149
Materials And Supplies 3,650 2,149 1,501
Other Services A'nd Charges 24,468 24,124 344

Capital Outlay 13,044 14',543 (1,499)

Total Expenditures 156,485 153,990 2,495

Excess Of Expenditures Over Revenues (13,044) (38,654) (25,610)

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating Transfers In 44,225 (44,225)

Operating Transfers Out (3,452) 3,452

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (3,452) 44,225 47,677

Excess (Deficiency) Of Revenues And Other Financing
Sources Over Expenditures And
Other Financing Uses (16,496) 5,571 22,067

Fund Balance Beginning Of Year (1,516) (1,516)

Fund Balance End Of Year $ (18,012) 4,055 22,067
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CiTi Of liNCOLN, NE
CABLE ACCESS TELEVISION FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

FISCAL YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31,1991

Revenues:
Interest

Expenditures -- General Government:
Materials And Supplies
Other Services And Charges
Capital Outlay

Total Expenditures

Excess Of Expenditures Over Revenues

Fund Balance Beginning Of Year

Fund Balance End Of Year

Budget

$-----

440,435

$ ==4=4::::0::::.4=35=.:

72

Actual

42,675

601
27,162
18,933

46,696

(4,021)

440,435

436,414

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)

42,675

(601)
(27,162)
(18,933)

(46,696)

(4,021)

(4,021 )



CITY OF LINCOLN, NE
LINCOLN CITY LIBRARIES FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE- BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

FISCAL YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31,1991

73
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CITY OF LINCOLN, NE
liNCOLN AREA AGENCY ON AGiNG FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

FISCAL YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 1991

B-9

Variance
Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

Revenues:
Intergovernmental $ 814,303 803,880 (10,423)
Client Contributions 330,376 145,248 (185,128)
~J1iC'f'oll~no"llC' 93,280 all I)Qf\
I"IIQ\J~"""'I IVVU'-JI V-.J,'-vv

Total Revenues 1,144,679 1,042,408 (102,271 )

Expenditures -- Economic Opportunity:
Personal Services 1,384,482 1,343,501 40,981
Materials And Supplies 318,934 255,268 63,666
Other Services And Charges 643,035 623,189 19,846
Capital Outlay 2,582 12,728 (10,146)

Total Expenditures 2,349,033 2,234,686 114,347

Excess Of Expenditures Over Revenues (1,204,354) (1,192,278) 12,076

Other Financing Sources:
Operating Transfers In 1,204,354 1,204,354

Excess Of Revenues And Other
Financing Sources Over Expenditures 12,076 12,076

Fund Balance Beginning Of Year 124,193 124,193

Residual Equity Transfers In 10,322 10,322

Fund Balance End Of Year $ 134,515 146,591 12,076
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CITY Of LINCOLN, NE
TAX SALES REVOLVING FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

FISCAL YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 1991

Revenues:
Interest
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Materials and Supplies
Other Services And Charges
Capital Outlay

Total Expenditures

Excess Of Revenues Over Expenditures

Fund Balance Beginning Of Year

Fund Balance End Of Year

75

Budget

$

740,770

$==74=0:::,7=70=

Actual

72,047
632,284

704,331

235
79,028
18,450

97,713

606,618

740,770

1,347,388

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)

72,047
632,284

704,331

(235)
(79,028)
(18,450)

(97,713)

606,618

606,618



CITY OF LINCOLN, NE
LiNCOLNiLANCASTER COUNrf HEALTH FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDiTURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

FISCAL YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 1991

B-11

Variance
Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

Revenues:
Intergovernmental $ 1,265,809 1,242,769 (23,040)
Permits And Fees 751,464 ·696,583 (54,881)
Interest 23,004 23,004
Miscellaneous 105,836 105,836

Total Revenues 2,017,273 2,068,192 50,919

Expenditures -- Health And Welfare:
Personal Services 3,218,695 3,205,715 12,980
Materials And Supplies 182,280 188,137 (5,857)
Other Services And Charges 870,061 833.555 36,506
Capital Outlay 195,658 201,595 (5,937)

Total Expenditures 4,466,694 4,429,002 37,692

Excess Of Expenditures Over Revenues (2,449,421 ) (2,360,810) 88,611

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating Transfers In 2,309,837 2,308,348 (1,489)
Operating Transfers Out (27,842) (49,935) (22,093)
Capital Lease Proceeds 141,598 141,598

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 2,423,593 2,400,011 (23,582)

Excess (Deficiency) Of Revenues And Other
Financing Sources Over Expenditures
And Other Financing Uses (25,828) 39,201 65,029

Fund Balance Beginning Of Year 172,060 172,060

Fund Balance End Of Year $ 146,232 211,261 65,029
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CITY OF LINCOLN. NE
NORTHEAST RADIAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

FISCAL YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 1991

B-12

Variance
Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

Revenues:
Real Estate And Personal Property Tax $ 17,144 17,144
Rentals 20,730 20,730
Interest 21,617 21,617
Miscellaneous (2,133) (2,133)

Total Revenues 57,358 57,358

Expenditures -- General Government:
Personal Services 58,438 58,438
Materials And Supplies 2,140 2,140
Other Services And Charges 12,111 12,111
Capital Outlay 980 980

Total Expenditures 73,669 73,669

Excess Of Expenditures Over Revenues (16,311) (16,311)

Other Financing Sources:
Operating Transfers In 49,296 49,296

Excess Of Revenues And Other
Financing Sources Over Expenditures 32,985 32,985

Fund Balance Beginning Of Year (41,599) (41,599)

Residual Equity Transfers Out (37,794) (37,794)

Fund Balance End Of Year $ (46,408) (46,408)
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CITY OF LINCOLN, NE
911 COMMUNICATION FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

FISCAL YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 1991

B-13

Variance
Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

Revenues:
Intergovernmental $ 32,390 32,390
Permits And Fees 525,000 527,351 2,351
Miscellaneous '1 oct") '1 oct")

',uu,:::" ',uu,:::"

Total Revenues 557,390 561,603 4,213

Expenditures -- Public Safety:
Personal Services 977,217 963,213 14,004
Materials And Supplies 17,700 24,513 (6,813)
Other Services And Charges 229,912 232,176 (2,264)
Capital Outlay 37,216 37,375 (159)

Total Expenditures 1,262,045 1,257,277 4,768

Excess Of Expenditures Over Revenues (704,655) (695,674) 8,981

Other Financing Sources:
Operating Transfers In 704,655 704,655

Excess Of Revenues And Other Financing
Sources Over Expenditures 8,981 8,981

Fund Balance Beginning Of Year

Fund Balance End Of Year $ 8,981 8,981
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CITY OF UNCOLN. NE
SOCIAL SECURITY FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

FISCAL YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 1991

Revenues:
Taxes:

Real Estate And Personal Property
Motor Vehicle

Interest
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenditures -- General Government:
Personal Services
Employer's Share Social Security

Total Expenditures

Excess Of Expenditures Over Revenues

Fund Balance Beginning Of Year

$

Budget

810,191
85,024
43,000

31,377
1,007,558

(100,720)

Actual

857,077
101,533
27,452

3,213

989,275

26,992
994,336

1,021,328

(32,053)

281,725

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)

46,886
16,509

(15,548)
3,213

51,060

4,385
13,222

17,607

68,667

Fund Balance End Of Year

79

$ 181,005
:==:==::::::==:

249,672 68,667



CITY OF LINCOLN, NE
STREET CONSTRUCTION FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

FISCAL YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 1991

B-15

Variance
Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

Revenues:
Intergovernmental $ 7,090,000 8,154,872 1,064,872
Permits And Fees 171,692 171,692
1_... _ ..._"... r::.f\f'I f'If'If'I Co4 0 OC'7 04 04 0 OC'7
II 1lt:1 t:;:)l ;",Jvv,vvv U IU,OUI IIO,OUI

Miscellaneous 452,090 221,961 (230,129)

Total Revenues 8,042,090 9,167,392 1,125,302

Expenditures -- Streets And Highways:
Personal Services 1,520,312 1,529,678 (9,366)
Materials And Supplies 229,510 155,821 73,689
Other Services And Charges 502,600 571,055 (68,455)
Capital Outlay 40,137 37,310 2,827

Total Expenditures 2,292,559 2,293,864 (1,305)

Excess Of Revenues Over Expenditures 5,749,531 6,873,528 1,123,997

Other Financing Uses:
Operating Transfers Out (9,496,888) (9,496,888)

Excess Of Expenditures And
Other Financing Uses Over Revenues (3,747,357) (2,623,360) 1,123,997

Fund Balance Beginning Of Year 7,958,754 7,958,754

Residual Equity Transfers In 1,553,954 1,553,954

Fund Balance End Of Year $ 4,211,397 6,889,348 2,677,951

~o



CITY OF LINCOLN, NE
UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

FISCAL YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 1991
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CITY OF LINCOLN, NE
FEDERAL GRANTS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

FISCAL YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31,1991

B-17

Revenues:
Intergovernmental
Program Income
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenditures:
General Government:

Materials And Supplies
Other Services And Charges

Total General Government

Public Safety:
Personal Services
Materials And Supplies
Other Services And Charges
Capital Outlay

Total Public Safety

Streets And Highways:
Personal Services
Materials And Supplies
Other Services And Charges

Total Streets And Highways

Culture And Recreation:
Personal Services
Materials And Supplies
Other Services And Charges

Total Culture And Recreation

Sf

Variance
Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

$ 4,332,622 4,140,472 (192,150)
412,235 510,993 98,758

54,890 ?071R1 152,291-_ .. ,-_.

4,799,747 4,858,646 58,899

6,747 6,747
60,821 60,821

67,568 67,568

140,041 140,041
5,436 5,436

146,402 146,402
7,367 7,367

299,246 299,246

82,258 82,258
2,215 2,215

49,718 49,718

134,191 134,191

17,493 17,493
2,170 2,170

26,488 26,488

46,151 46,151

(Continued)
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CITY OF LINCOLN, NE
SPEC~LASSESSMENTFUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

FISCAL YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 1991

B-18

Revenues:
Interest On Investments
Miscellaneous
Developers Share Of Districts

Total Revenues

Expenditures -- General Government:
Administrative Costs

Excess Of Expenditures Over Revenues

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating Transfers In
Operating Transfers Out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Variance
Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

$ 98,527 98,527
49,130 49,130
48,542 48,542

196,199 196,199

418,038 418,038

(221,839) (221,839)

746,398 746,398
(3,119,893) (3,119,893)

(2,373,495) (2,373,495)

Excess Of Expenditures And Other
Financing Uses Over Revenues
And Other Financing Sources

Fund Balance Beginning Of Year

Residual Equity Transfers In

Fund Balance End Of Year

8.4

(2,595,334)

613,174

2,000,000

$ ====1=7::::,8=40=

(2,595,334)

613,174

2,000,000

17,840



DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

Debt Service Funds are established to account for the resources for, and
the payment of, general long-term debt principal, interest, and related
costs.

Tax Allocation PrQjects Debt Service Fund - To accumulate resources for
payment of principal and interest on the 1985 Cornhusker Square tax
allocation bonds and the 1989 Gold's Galleria tax allocation bonds.
Resources are derived from additional taxes generated by the above
properties upon completion of the Redevelopment Projects.

Bond Interest and Redemption Fund - To accumulate resources for
payment of principal and interest on the several general obligation bond
issues and Debt Lease outstanding as follows:

1971 Various Purpose Bonds
1978 Storm Sewer Construction Bonds
i 979 Swimming Pool Construction Bonds
1980 Storm Sewer Construction Bonds
1981 Transit System Improvement Bonds
1983 Auditorium and Fire Department Capital

Improvement Bonds
1986 Various Purpose Bonds
1987 Downtown Redevelopment Bonds
1989 Various Purpose Bonds
1989 Library - Capital Lease
1990 Sanitary Improvement District #7
1990 Northeast Radial Reuse Area Project
1990 Special Assessment Revolving
1991 Storm Sewer Bonds

Resources are derived from an annual tax levy.

Special· Assessmeot Debt Service Fuod - To accumulate resources for
payment of principal and interest on the various outstanding special
assessments bond issues. Income is derived from special assessment
tax collections, interest on special assessment taxes and interest from
investments.
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CITY OF LINCOLN, NE
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINiNG BALANCE SHEET
AUGUST 31, 1991

With Comparative Totals For August 31, 1990

Tax
Allocation
Projects Bond

Debt Interest And Special Total
Service Redemption Assessment 1991 1990

ASSETS

Cash Held By City Treasurer d' ..,..011 .... "'01'\ 2,334,228 68" O~~ ~ "'A~ " .. '" A ~ .. '" ,.."n
~ l"t;" IOU 4::,0.:;),::» '::»,/"tO,4::"t1 "t, I 1;',4::'::»0

Investments (At Amortized Cost) 690,190 6,486,265 7,176,455 7,908,176
Receivables:

Taxes 200,758 647,545 848,303 938,814
Accounts 6,475 21 6,496
Accrued Interest 10,753 6,772 50,131 67,656 251,262

Due From Other Funds 35,601 429,226 52,421 517,248 733,592
Due From Other Governments 30,618 30,618 33,767
Special Assessments Receivable 5,934,299 5,934,299 6,432,317

Total Assets 1,686,482 3,454,864 13,185,970 18,327,316 20,417,166

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:
Bond Principal Payable 5,000 20,000 5,000 30,000 35,000
Bond Interest Payable 1,425 3,393 11,675 16,493 54,474
Accounts Payable 9,874 9,874 5,174
Due To Other Funds 62 62
Deferred Revenues 230,370 5,302,761 5,533,131 5,713,369

Total Liabilities 6,425 263,699 5,319,436 5,589,560 5,808,017

Fund Balances:
Reserved For Debt Service 1,680,057 3,191,165 5,087,239 9,958,461 12,322,225
Unreserved 2,779,295 2,779,295 2,286,924

Total Fund Balance 1,680,057 3,191,165 7,866,534 12,737,756 14,609,149

Total Liabilities And Fund Balances $ 1,686,482 3,454,864 13,185,970 18,327,316 20,417,166

8,6
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CITY OF LINCC)LN. NE
DEBT SERVICE: FUNDS

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET ANID ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

FISCAL YEAR ENDED A,UGUST 31, 1991

Tax Allocation Projects Debt Servk;e
Variance
Favorable

~ Actual (Unfavorable)

Bond Interll$t And Fledemptlon
Variance
Favorable

~ ~_ (Unfavorable)

Special ASSll$Sment
Variance
Favorable

~ Actual (Unfavorable) Budget

Totals
Variance
Favorable

~l_'_. (Unfavorable)

1.071,152 1,044,395 (26,757) 2.843.093 3,610,888

475,197
1,121

264.720

Revenues:
Real Estate And Personal Property Tax
Taxes CoIIec1ed By Others
Interest
Miscellaneous
Special AllS<IISGments
Special Asse9sment Interest

Total Revenues

$ 1,071,152 920.361

124.034

(150,791)

124,034

2,743,093

100,000

3.369,DeI1
1,1~!1

240,6S16

625.988
1,121

140,886 818.180
1.979.439
2,411.170

650.355
787.795 5,657.144

3.814.245 4,289,442
1,121

816,180 718.180 980,900
1.979,439 1,979,439 1.979,,439
2,411.170 2,411,170 2,411,,170

850.355 650.355 65On~,__-:::-~=-

5.657,144 9.571.389 10.312n~ 741,038

19,732
4,122

19,732 3.568,400 3,568,400 5.931.225 5,911.493
4,045 887.449 867,449 3,497,487 3.493.365

121.291 121,291
18,213 18,213

(9,119) 5,334 5,334 5.334 19.536 (14,202)
(45,404) 45,404 (45,404)
(30,746) 4.441,183 4.441,183 9,571,550 9,607,302 (35.752)

1,787,825
2,133,886

121,291
16.213

n

(5,083)5.083

575,000
496,075

575,000
496,152

1,768,OS13
2,129,841

121,2511
16,213
9.119
45,40~

1.071.152 1.076,158 (5.006) 4.059.215 4,089.961

Expenditures:
Prlnc~al Retirement
Interest
capital Lease Prlnc~1

C8pl!al Lease Interest
Fiscal Charges
Misoellaneous

Total Expenditures

co
CO

Exoess (Deficiency) Of Rellltnues Over Expenditures (31,763) (31,763) (1,218,122) (479,073) 737.049 1,215,961 1.215,961 (161) 705,125 705.286

12,208 149,712 137,504

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating Trsnslers In
Refunding Bond Proceeds
Accrued Interest On Bonds
Payment To Escrow Agent For Refunded Boncls

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

137,504
1.204.140 1,204,140

2.264 2.264
(1.194,196) (1.194,196)

12,208 149,7t2

137,504

137,504

137.504
1,204,140 1,204,140

2,264 2,264
(1.194,196) (1.194,196)

137,504

Exoess (DeficienCY) Of RellltnUll$ And Other
Financing Sources Over Expendilurll$
And Other Financing Uses (31,763) (31,763) (1,203.914) (329,361) 874,553 1,215,961 1.215.961 12,047 854,837 842,790

Fund Balance Beginning Of Year 1.427.569 1,427,589 3,210,527 3,210.527 10.n2,927 10,n2.927 15,411,023 15,411,023

Residual Equity Transfers In
Residual Equity Transfers Out

37,794 37,794 17,950 17.950 55,744 55,744
(2,000,000) (2,000,000) (2,000,000) (2,OOO,QQQl. _

Fund Balance End Of Year 1,465,363 1,433.600 (31,763) 2,024,563 2,899,116 874,553 9,988,888 9,988,888 13,478,814 14,321,604 842,790



CAPITAL

Capital Projects Funds are established to account for all resources
received and used for the acquisition or development of major capital
improvements (other than those financed by proprietary funds, special
assessments, and trust funds).

Storm Sewer Bond Construction Fund .. To account for the cost of
improving and extending storm sewers. Financing is provided by
General Obligation Bond proceeds.

Storm Sewer Construction Fund .. To account for the cost of improving
and extending the storm sewer system within the City. Financing is
provided through property tax revenue.

Street Construction Fund .. To account for the cost of constructing and
improving streets and highways in the City. Financing is provided from
Highway Allocation fees.

Vehicle Tax Fund .. To account for monies derived from the payment of
wheel tax which is to be used for street improvements in the City.

Northeast Radial Tax Increment Bond Issue .. To account for the cost of
acquiring real property and/or acquiring, constructing, reconstructing,
improving, extending, equipping or furnishing any improvements within
the area included in the City'S Northeast Radial Reuse Area
Redevelopment Plan. Financing is provided by General Obligation Bond
Proceeds.

Sanitary Landfill Purchase and Construction Fund .. To account for the
cost of acquiring and preparing a new sanitary landfill site for the City of
lincoln. Financing is to be provided by General Obligation Bond
proceeds.

Downtown Redevelopment Project Fund .. To account for the cost of
acquiring real property and development within the area included in the
Lincoln Center Retail Revitalization/Redevelopment Project.

1989 General Obligation Various Purpose Bonds .. To account for the
cost of providing improvements to the parks and recreation facilities in
the City, including, the acquisition and/or development of a recreational
trail system and the development and redevelopment of city park
property and the Folsom Children's Zoo; acquiring Fire Department
apparatus and equipment and constructing two additional fire stations for
the Fire Department; reconstructive, improving, equipping and furnishing
the City's Pershing Municipal Auditorium. Financing is provided by
General Obligation Bonds.
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Other Capital Projects Fynd - To account for the cost of acquiring or
improving various general fixed assets. Financing is provided from a
variety of sources, such as General Fund appropriations, Revenue
Sharing, Federal/State grants, bond proceeds, etc.

Specjaj Assessment Capjtaj Projects Fund - To account for the cost of
capital improvements to be assessed against benefitted properties.
Resources are derived from fund transfers from the Special Revenue
fund type and interest on investments.



CITY OF LINCOLN, NE D-1

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
COMBINING BAlANCE SHEET

AUGUST 31, 1991

With Comparative Totals For August 31" 1990

Northeast Sanitary 1989 G.O.

Storm Sewer Radial Tax Landfill Downtown Various Other Totals

Bond Storm Sewer Street Vehicle Increment Purchase & Redevelopment Purpose Capital Special

Construction Construction Construction Bond Issue Construction Project Bonds Projects Assessment _~1__ 1990----
ASSETS

Cash Held By City Treasurer $ 4,152 92,911 75,603 12,488 478,373 24,985 688,512 1,536,804

Investments (At Cost) 57,000 1,910,000 650,881 12,732,945 1,069,494 742,322 17,162,642 19,805,029

Receivables:
Accounts 260,802 260,802 295,593

6,568 155,406 10,267 9,171 181,509 319,000

Due Other Funds 213 1,293,041 33,262 48,881 90,543 505,530 ,996,546 937,068

Due From Other Governments 8,912
Total Assets 61,379 1,293,047 2,266,341 755,571 45,750 12,888,351 1,607,021 867,021 505,530 20,290,011 22,902,406

1..0,......
LIABILITIeS AND FUND BALANCES

2,610 2,610 16,104

971,253 4,156 23,638 4,400 178,792 475,254 1,657,493 1,089,284

57,801 319,184 985 15,571 1,062 671,268 30,276 1,,096,147 527,817

160,000
1,178,739 184,212

6,475

57,801 1,293,047 1,132,654 45,750 44,089 165,462 850,656 505,530 4,094,989 1,823,892

Fund Balances:
Reserved For Encumbrances 9,836 164,560 276,139 190,729 615,807 1,257,071 3,402,312
Unreserved:

Designated For SUbsequent Year's Expenditures 786,654 732,498 1,519,,152 2,236,056
Undeslgnatoo (6,258) 182,473 755,571 (276,139) 12,844,262 518,332 (599,442) 13,418,,799 15,440,146

Total Fund Balances 3,578 1,133,687 755,571 12,844,262 1,441,559 16,365 16,195,022 21,078,514

Total Uabilltles And Fund Balances $ 61,379 1,293,047 2,266,341 75!;,571 45,750 12,888,351 1,607,021 867,021 505,530 20,290,011 22,902,406



CITY OF LINCOLN, NE D-2

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FISCAl YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31,1991

With Comparative Totals For August 31,1990

Sanitary 1989G.O.

Storm Sewer NE Radial Landfill Downtown Various Other Totals

Bond Storm Sewer Street Vehicle Tax Incre. Purchase & Redevelopmen1t Purpose Capital Special

Construction Construction Construction Tax Bord Issue Construction Project Bonds Projects Assessment 19n1 1990----- ----
Revenues:

Wheel Tax $ 2,785,694 2,785,694 2,774,535

Intergovemmental 128,112 808,135 936,24~7 689,164

Interest 3,915 98,232 92,t)82 819,340 34,848 64,231 1,11:2,6413 1,812,556

Miscellaneous 569 136,254 175,838 5,000 32,415 350,076 612,518

Total Revenues 4,484 3,148,292 92,082 175,838 819,340 39,848 904,781 5,18~5 5,888,773

Expenditures - Capital Outlay:
Construction Contracts 122,524 5,079,358 2,227,544 77,063 45,955 2,706,760 1,675,530 2,949,190 14,883,924 15,979,957

Engineering And Other 2,251,934 303,270 101,471 5,694 151,287 2,259,160 5,072,8115 5,709,278

Total Expend~ures 122,524 7,331,292 2,530,814 178,534 51,649 2,858,047 3,934,690 2,949,190 19,956,740 21,689,235

Excess (Deficiency) Of Revenues
Over Experditures (118,040) (7,331,292) 617,478 92,082 (2,696) 767,691 (2,818,199) (3,029,909) (2,949,190) (14,77~~,07S) ('15,800,462)

'-D
N Other Financing Sources (Uses):

Operating Transfers In 50,000 7,331,292 7,000 763 2,935,940 2,949,190 13,274,18!; 13,272,754
Operating Transfers Out (15,990) (684,491) (370,745) (742,472) (1,813,690) (4,109,981)
General Obligation Bond Proceeds 2,632,620

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 34,010 7,331,292 7,000 (684,491) 763 (370,7451 2,193,468 2,949,190 11,460,48J 11,795,393

Excess (Deficiency) Of Revenues And Other
Financing Sources Over Expenditures And
Other Financing Uses (84,030) 624,478 (592,409) (1,933) 396,946 (2,818,199) (836,441) (3,311I,58B) (4,005,069)

Fund Balances Beginning Of Year 17,950 87,608 2,063,163 1,347,!~80 1,933 12,402,316 4,259,758 897,806 21,07~I,51'~ 25,083,583

Residual Equity Transfers In 45,000 45,000 45,000
Residual Equity Transfers Out (17,950) (1,553,954) (45,000) (1,61f~L (45,000)

Fund Balances End Of Year $ 3,578 1,133,687 755,!;71 12,844,262 1,441,559 16,365 16.19!i,OZ~ 21,078,514
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Enterprise funds are established to account for operations that are
financed and operated in a manner similar to' private business
enterprises where the costs of providing goods or services are recovered
primarily through user charges and where periodic determination of net
income is appropriate.

Parking Lot Revolving Fund - account for
of several metered City-owned parking lots.

revenues and expenses

Golf Fund - To account for the revenues and expenses of the three public
adult golf courses and one youth golf course.

Parking Facilities Fund - To for the revenues and expenses of
three downtown parking Centrum Parking Facility, the
Cornhusker Square Parking Facility and the University Square Parking
Facility.

Pershing Municipal Auditorium Fund - for the revenues and
expenses of the City-owned municipal auditorium.

Sanitary Landfill Reyenue Fund - To account for the revenues and
expenses of the City-owned landfill.

Lincoln General Hospital Fund - account for the revenues and
expenses of the City-owned general hospital.

StarTran Fund - To account
owned transit system.

the revenues and expenses of the City-

Lincoln Wastewater System Fund - account for the revenues and
expenses of the City-owned wastewater utility.

Lincoln Water System Fund - account
of the City-owned water utility.

Lincoln Electric System Fund ­
expenses of the City-owned electric utility.

95

the revenues and expenses

for the revenues and



CITY Of LIIJ>fCOLH, HE E·1
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

AUGUST 31,1991
WIth ~aliYl!l Tota/a For August 31. 1990

Pershing Sanitary Lincoln Lincoln Totals -
Parking Lot Parking Municipal Landfill Lincoln General Wastewater Lincoln Water Eleclri<:

RevoM!!.i.. Golf Facilities Auditorium ReYenue ~>ital StarTran System System System 1991 199()

ASSETS:

Current Assets:
Cash Held By City Treasurer $ 62,657 341,590 25,817 107,069 168,501 4165,000 232,418 465,000 530,000 670,000 3,068,052 2,985,43:3

Cash On Kane! And In Other Aooounta 31,233 7,595 14,240 2,707 11,000 4,805 2,100 73,680 512,~~

InVM1l'TleIU (At Cost Or Amortized Cost) 204,379 500.102 2.129,302 6,349,000 40,572,000 49,754,783 54,635,720

~:

AooounIB 459 195 5,598 378,644 11,HlS,ooO 37,010 1,037,295 2,048,554 7,274,000 21,947,755 22,057,oo!J

Accrued Interest 8.524 10,939 4 3,550 27.634 1,~,ooO 10.888 1,473,000 1,677,539 1813,68lS

UnOiIled Aooounts 1,059,348 2,579,078 2,690,000 6,328,426 5,632,35~S

Due From Other Funds 9,314 19,131 9,944 14,258 52,647 5:3,02'1
Due From Other Govemments 266,744 266,744 91,$~

Inventory (At Cost) 65,095 9,627 1,1 '1)8,000 456,837 118,934 639,449 2,498,000 4,895,942 4,521,6813

Plant Operatiofl Assets 5,218,000 5,218,000 4,052,000

Prepaid Expenses 168 4:36,000 9,986 3,631 16,210 285,000 751,001 838,781$

AeirroufMtTl&nts From Third Party Payors 340,000 340,000 439,O()O

Unamortized Bond Issuance Expense 69,825 82,840 83,4:26 852,590 1,088,681 301.110
Deferred Charges &iW,ooO 844,000 881,000

TotaJ Current Assets 284,874 1,038,374 126,395 140,252 2,721,046 20,8162,000 1,018,688 2,767,640 6,667,981 60,680,000 96,307,250 97,195,83'~
\0 Other Assets:
0'\ Deferred Charges And Other Assets 1:24,000 28,065,000 28,189,000 24,859,000

Advanoe Payments On Nuclear Fuel 1,243,000 1,243,000 1,85:3,000
TotaJ Other Ass_ 1:24,000 29,308,000 29,432,000 26,712,OOc[

Restricted Assets:
cash 165,066 2,268,701 4,513,341 56,000 7,003,108 4,461,114
Cash On Hand And In Other Aooounts 5,559 78,000 83,559 4,23Ei
InVM~ (At Cost Or Amortized Cost) 5,205,339 1,038,767 4,317,000 10,846,282 65,208,969 31,267,000 117,883,357 70,31B,53Ei
Accrued lmerest Receivable 12,597 !~5,000 227,571 1,012,481 1,347,649 564,401'
Due From Other Funds 6,422 6,422 B,3HI

TotaJ Restricted~ 5,394,983 1,038,767 4,4190,000 13,342,554 70,734,791 31,323,000 126,324,095 75,360,61~[
Property, Ptart, And Equipment:

Land 12,473 670,800 1,530,217 46,500 1,611,456 1,695,000 102,020 2,138,362 3,602,900 11,409,728 i1,11ES,98El
BUiiding:s 277,917 742,216 11,213,646 4,031,529 627,524 28,~)3,OOO 1,943,566 24,092,502 24,289,371 95,621,271 94,51:~,63~!

~nta Other Than Buildings 1,914,974 1,953 4,731,041 1,975,000 302,211 58,353,699 66,166,012 133,444,950 130,14:~,05El

Mac.hil'lery And Equipment 36,068 760,915 313,155 993,018 2,008,444 12,4l00,000 8,504,055 3,656,024 3,559,559 32,291,238 29,41!>,07a
L&asehoId If'1l)rovementll 19,000 19,000 15,000
Utility P\.ant 386,270,000 386,270,000 364,139,000
Construction In Progress 5192,000 13,892,663 16,984,719 13,270,000 44,729,382 37,382,61~!

TotaJ 326,458 4,088,905 13,057,018 5,073,000 8,978,465 45,134,000 10,851,852 102,133,250 114,602,621 399,540,000 703,785,569 666,725,36<1~
Less Accumulated Depfeclatlon (124,242) (1,042,991 ) (2,394,706) (2,822,812) (1,713,806) (21,610.000) (5,899,200) (27,413,044) (30,002,326) (98,545,000) (191,568,127) (176,618,90S[

Net Property, Plant, And Equipment 202,216 3,045,914 10,662,312 2,250,188 7,264,659 23,5;24,000 4,952,652 74,720,206 84,600,295 300,995,000 512,217,442 490,106,45~~

Total Assets S 487,090 9,479,271 11,827,474 2,390,440 9,985,705 49,000,000 5,971,340 90,830,400 162,003,067 422,306,000 764,280,787 689,374,901=
(contlnuedl)



(ENTERPRISE FUNDS, Continued) E··l

Pershing Sanitary Lincoln Lincoln Totals

Parking Lot Parking Municipal Landfill Lincoln General Wastewater Lincoln Water Electric

Revolving Gon Facilities Auditorium Revenue Hospital StarTran System System System 1991 1990

UABIUTIeS AND FUND EQUITY:

Liabilities:
Current Liabilities (Payable From

Current Assets):
Vouchers Payable $ 600 762 1,171 43,170 45,703 2,009
Aooounts Payabie 220 78,297 64,807 15,752 106,171 1,759,000 685,336 1,153,594 187,453 6,022,000 10,072,630 9,150,886
Accrued Liabilities 293 24,218 1,830 18,778 23,188 4,080,000 119,727 186,239 241,292 4,656,000 9,351,565 8,645,887
Due To Other Funds 15,695 37,106 52,801 102,342
Due To Other Governments 15,695 175 156 16,026 11,80!)
Accrued Compensated Absences 464- 37.521 6,833 27.914 38,624 183,714 253,351 307,259 855,680 828,310
Other 10,727 137,233 2,456,000 2.603.960 2,430.02~

Total Current liabilities (Payable
From Current Assets) 977 172,026 74,232 73,346 206,416 5,839,000 1,169.180 1,593,184 736,004 13,134,000 22,998,365 21,171,2&<~

Current Liabilities (Payable From
Restricted Assets):
Construction Cootracts 19,000 1,153,547 1.138,874 2,311,421 1,416,395
Accrued Interest 10,994 14.288 152,431 1,105,548 5,974,000 7,257,261 6,400,616
Fuel Credit Obligation Notes 300,000 300,000 475.000
Current Portion Of Revenue Bonds 205,000 365,000 795,000 1,165,000 6.545,000 9,075,000 8,495,000
Accreted Interest On Capital

Appreciation Bonds 5,472,000 5,472,000 3,970,000
Other 128,000_

x.o Total Current Liabilities (Payabie

""-J From Restricted Assets) 10,994 219,288 384,000 2, 100,978 3,409,422 18,291,000 24,415,682 20,885,011-Long Term Liabilities:
Due To Plan Merrbers 1,474,000 1,474,000 1,398,000
Deferred Credits And Other 1,030,000 1,030,000 139,000
Fuel Credit Obligation Notes (Net Of

Current Portion) 300,000
Revenue Bonds (Net Of Current Portion) 4,655,000 4,285,000 20,860,000 10,277,700 50,950,000 286,407,000 377,434,700 336,592,000

Total Long Term Liabilities 4,655,000 4,285,000 20,860,000 10,277,700 50,950,000 288,911,000 379,938,700 338,429,000-
Total liabilities 977 4,838,020 4,578,520 73,346 206,416 27,083,000 1,169,180 13,971,862 55,095,426 320,336,000 427,352,747 380,485,275_

Fund Equity:
Contrbuted CapItal 2.400 219,569 5,280,425 2.226,875 2,844,139 4,802,160 34,539,008 19,317,731 69,232,307 66,254,378
Retalned Earnings:

Reserved For:
Debt Servioe 465,500 6,492, 143 19,084,465 26,042.108 20,016,102
trrprovements 728,989 4,749,433 48,240,904 53,719,326 15,297,500
Restricted Funds 13,032,000 13,032,000 14,522,000

Unreserved 483,713 3,227,193 1,968,529 90,219 6,935,150 31,077,954 20,264,541 88,938,000 152,985,299 171,857,646
Fund BalaJioes:

Reserved For:
Irrprovements 4,293,000 4,293,000 3,726,000
Restricted Funds 178,000 178,000 154,000

Unreserved 17,446,000 17,446,000 17,062,000
Total Retained Earnings! -

Fund Balances 483,713 4,421,682 1,968,529 90,219 6,935,150 21,917,000 42,319,530 87,589,910 101,970,000 267,695,733 242,635,248
Total Fund Equity 486,113 4,641,251 7,248,954 2,317,094 9,779,289 21,917,000 4,802,160 76,858,538 106,907,641 101,970,000 336,928,040 308,889,626

Total Liabilities And Fund Equity S 487,090 9,479,271 11,827,474 2,390,440 9,985,705 49,000,000 5,971,340 90,830,400 162,003,067 422,306,000 764 ,280,787 689,374,901
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Operating Revenues:
Charges For Services
Fees
Parking Facility Revenue
Performance Revenue
Other Operating Revenue

Total Operating Revenue

Operating Expenses:
Personal Services
Contractual Services
Operation And Maintenance
Purchased Power
Depreciation
Payments In Lieu 01 Taxes
Administrative Cost

Total Operating Expenses
Operating Income (Loss)

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses):
Interest
Gain (Loss) On Disposal Of Assets
Loss On Advance Refunding
Operating Grants
Amortization Of Deferred Charges
Donations
Interest And Fiscal Charges
Miscellaneous

Total Non-Operating Revenues
(Expenses)

Net Income (Loss) Before Operating Transfers

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating Transfers In
Operating Transfers Out

Net Income (Loss)

Depreciation Transfer On Contributed
Capital

Increase (Decrease) In Retained Earnings

Retained Earnings/Fund Balance Beginning
Of Year

Retained Earnings/Fund Balance End Of Year

CITY OF UNCOLN, NE E-2
ENTERPRISE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,
AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 1991

With Comparative Totals For August :31, 1990

Pershing Sanitary Lincoln Lincoln Totals

Parking Lot Parking Municipal Landfill Lincoil, General Wastewater Lincoln Electric
Revolving Golf Facilities Auditorium Revenue -!::!.?~ StarTran System Water System System 1991 ~-

53,998,000 898,696 11,330,671 17,824,809 106,835,000 190,887,176 128,656,e,51
1,510,279 2,673,367 4,183,646 50,492,617

189,562 1,141,906 1,331,468 1,144,393
1,464,464 1,464,464 1,143,381

30 356,897 356,927 1,595,735
189,592 1,510,279 1,141,906 1,821,361 2,673,367 53,998,000 898,696 11,330,671 17,824,809 106,835,000 198,223,681 183,032,777

4,247 501,718 31,446 607,626 581,747 26,843,000 3,242,153 31,811,937 29,336,~165

829,832 1,141,665 312,283 2,283,780 1,535,644
136,809 571,990 415,626 641,191 20,880,000 957,726 4,568,805 4,240,625 6,670,000 39,082,772 35,571,<~72

57,253,000 57,253,000 55,547,000
31,573 113,453 309,879 242,895 419,459 2,657,000 736,843 1,907,791 1,764,105 11,392,000 19,574,998 18,801,054

4,537,000 4,537,000 4,323,000
1,190,862 1,704,587 8,638,000 11,533,449 10,130,454

172,629 1,187,161 1,171,157 2,407,812 1,642,397 50,380,000 5,249,005 7,667,458 7,709,317 88,490,000 166,076,936 155,244,789
16,963 323,118 (29,251) (586,451) 1,030,970 3,618,000 (4,350,309) 3,663,213 10,115,492 18,345,000 32,146,745 27,787,!l88

19,076 95,027 123,320 3,149 139,554 846,000 990,515 4,452,212 6,263,000 12,931,853 11,331,492
1,053 (2,600) 559 (2,000) 2,838 13,831 13,681 (13,921)

(368,503)
981,959 981,959 1,478,504

(3,414) (43,000) (12,959) (44,785) (1,487,000) (1,591,158) (2,106,933)
101,000 101,000 108,000

(363,714) (2,365,OOO) (592,332) (2,787,571) (i8,119,Ooo) (24,227,617) (21,424,!t12)
(350,000) 5,000 21,921 17,876 37,413 (267,790) 115,984

19,076 96,080 (596,408) 3,149 140,113 (1,458,000) 1,003,880 405,938 1,671,100 (13,343,000) (12,058,072) (10,880,289)

36,039 419,198 (625,659) (583,302) 1,171,083 2,160,000 (3,346,429) 4,069,151 11,786,592 5,002,000 20,088,673 16,907,699

386,741 2,609,586 2,996,327 2,350,888
(15,000) (207,485) (222,485)

21,039 419,198 (625,659) (196,561) 963,598 2,160,000 (736,843) 4,069,151 11,786,592 5,002,000 22,862,515 19,258,587

1,307 154,944 235,431 96,933 736,843 656,890 315,622 2,197,970 1,976,617
21,039 420,505 (470,715) 38,870 1,060,531 2,160,000 4,726,041 12,102,214 5,002,000 25,060,485 21,235,204

462,674 4,001,177 2,439,244 51,349 5,874,619 19,757000 37,593,489 75,487,696 96,968,000 242,635,248 221,400,044

483,713 4,421,682 1,968,529 90,219 6,935,150 21,917,000 42,319,530 87,589,910 101,970,000 267,695,733 242,635,248



CITY OF LINCOLN, NE
ENTERPRISE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 1991

With Comparative Totals For Fiscai Year Ended August 31, 1990

E·3

1990

CASH flOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIes:

Parking Lot
RellOlvlng Gol!

Parking

.E!£!!!!!

Pershing
Municipal

~

sanitary
Land!vll Lincoln General

Revenue Hospi1a1 ~

Lincoln Lincoln
Wastewater Lincoln Elec:lric Total!.:;..' _

System Water System System 1991

~

o
o

Operating Income (Loss)
Adjustments To Reconc:Ile Operating Income (Loss)

To Net Cash From Opefatlng Activities:
Depredation
Wrlte-otf 0/ Deferred Financing Costs
Changes In Assets And Liabilities:

Accountll Reoelv"
Unbill9d Revenues
Due From Othor Funds
Due From Other GoYel'nmem
Other AsHtli
Inventories
Plant Operation Assstl
Prepaid Expel'lMl'l
RelmburMment From Third Party Payors
Vouchers Payable
Accounts Payable
Aoc:ruGd liabilities
DUG To Other Funds
Due To Other Governments
Aoc:rued Compensated Absences
Aoc:rual In Lieu 0/ Tax
Other Current LlIIlbIlltiM
Deferred CrGdils And Other LiabUitles
Restricted Assm
Restricted LiabUities

Total Adjustments

Net Cash From Operating Activities

CAl!IH flOWS FROM NONoCAPtTAi. RNANCING ACnVlllES:

CltySubaldy
Donations
Operating Grant
MIsceUaneous
Payment 0/ Fuel Credll OtlIlgatlon Notes
Interest Pald

Net Cash From Non-eap;tal Financing Activities

$ 15,963 323,118 (29,251) (586,451) 1,03O,97Q .3,618,OQ(L ___H~50.dQ&. 3,663,213 10,115,492 18,345,000 32!1~5 27,787,988

31,573 113,453 309,879 242,895 419,459 2,657,000 736,843 1,907,791 1,764,105 11,392,000 19,5i'4,998 18,801,054
(69,825) (69,825)

6,352 (195) (5,228) 32,581 (930,000) 10,656 (194,998) (993,085) (227,000) (2,300,817) (1,350,132)
(190,000) (190,000) (156,000)

(3,733) 3,511 (8,588) 9,184 37'4 258,247
(175,260) (17'5,260) 40,898

(124,000) (5,224,000) (5,M8,OOO) (3,654,000)
5,136 12 (135,000) (83,161) (24,934) 75,693 (212,000) (37'4,254) (382,256)

13,000 13,000 48,000
(60) 118,000 (64) 1,776 (867) (31,000) E17,785 180,056

(66,000) (eiS,ooO) (362,000)
600 762 (838) 43,170 43,694 (42,339)

(85) 60,256 62,191 (6,834) 56,345 (593,000) 291,007 1,701,381 34,509 237,000 1,842,71'0 248,944
293 941 1,830 713 2,211 389,000 11,975 22,346 36,369 223,000 688,67'8 369,590

1,479 (51,020) (49,541) (592,588)
3,934 175 112 4,221 11,805

464 (2,378) 6,833 3,461 5,419 (20,179) 26,194 7,556 ~!7.37'0 89,132
72,000

(4,nOl 27,705 151,000 173,9315 (265,926)
37,000 2,469,000 2,506,0010 1,669,000

1,897 1,89'7 (3,673)
(42,226)

28,512 125,356 372,712 230,364 473,553 1,353,000 842,692 3,439,556 924,280 8,601,000 16,391,025 14,947,486

45,475 448,474 343,461 (356,087) 1,504,523 4,971,000 (3.507,617) 7,102,769 11 ,039,772 26,946,000 48,5~'0 42,735,474

386,741 2,609,586 2,9!:16,3~!7 2,667,099
101,000 101,OCIO 108,000

981,959 ~11,95i9 1,162,293
(350.000) (207,485) 5,000 30,784 (521,701) 115,128

(475,000) (475,000) (590,000)
(39,000) (39Loo.22- (80,000)

(350,000) 386,741 (207,485) 106,000 3,622,329 (514,000) 3,043,5SI5 3,382,520

(continued)



(ENTERPRISE FUNDS, Continued) E-3

Parking Lot
Revolving Golf

Parking

~

Pershing
Municipal

~

Sanitary
Landfill Uncoln General
Rev~ Hospital ~

Uncoln
Wastewater

System

Uncoln
Lincoln Electric

Water System System
Totals

1991 1990

CASH flOWS FROM CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIeS:

389,888

(5,960,000)
(367,927)

6,300,000
(7,895,000)

(16,753,107)
3,749,002

145,000
(23,666)
(25,000)
16,688

(17,975,000)
(14,000)

46,655,000
10,994

(9,000)
10,,952

(13,933,000)
(279,000)

(15,000)

(27,373,477)
5,177,,500
3,237,,600

(9,959,324)
892,659

(13,933,000)
(279,000)

42,000,000

(705,000)

(11,735,902)
2,430,091
3,237,600

(1,340,897)
1,082,941

(345,000)

(2,500,000)

559

(1,074,639)
200,041

(564,595)
563,776

(185,000)

(3,024)

1,393

(195,096)

4,655,000
10,994

(1,045,000) (6,190,000) (8,470,000)

4,4n,291

(15,000)

Activities

Additions To Rxed Assets
Additions To Contributed Capital
Project Loan Advances
Lease Purchases Payments
Payments On Contracts Used To Purc/1as$ Equipment
Proceeds From Sale Of Fixed Assets
Expenditures For Utility Plant
Net Cost Of Retiring Piant
Capital Construction Transfer
Restricted UCIt>illties
Bond Proceeds
Accrued Interest On Bonds Sold
Defeasance Of Revenue Bonds
Defeasance Costs
Proceeds From Defeasance Long-Term Debt

Long-Term Debt

CASH flOWS FROM INVESTING AcnvmES:

::; Proceeds Sale And Maturities Of Securilklll
I-' Purchases Investment

Interest And Other Revenues
Net Cash From Investing Activities

2,052,698 2,977,027 4,1,88,543 398,110

Net Increase (Decrease) In Cash (56,736) 177,807 (41,159) 33,315 (:~,342) (3,055) 1,165,230 1,368,014 (169,000) 2,259,074 (1,681 ,532)

Cash, Beginning Of Year 119,393 365,641 74,571 87,994 206,550 734,000 240,271) 1,568,471 3,6n,427 895,000 7~.325 9,650,857

Cash, End Of Year $ 62,657 543,448 33,412 121,309 171,208 554,000 237,223 2,733,701 5,045,441 726,000 10,228,399 7,969,325
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Internal Service
f"Inods nr SCH"Vil"'0s
~v VI vi ...... v

departments or agencies or
reimbursement basis.

4i""""",r"tl,,:V"tlPW I""'t..&
IIIICUI\JIII~ UI

or agency to other
units on a cost-

Data Processing Fund ­
data processing facility
User City and County departments are
Resources used are billed cost an

operating a central
and Lancaster County.

resources used.
overhead.

cost of operating a
billings to various

Engineering Revolving Fund ­
central engineering pool. Revenues are
capital improvement

nsurance
insurance,
Revenues are

providing a self­
, liability, property

Insurance Plan.

.:.-.liI::...x.:..:...¥........:::..::...:~~..=.:lII~~~~~~~~...:...u..:~.........:-~~- To account for the
equipment used by

City heavy equipment, and
miscellaneous other equipment. Revenue is derived billings to user
departments.

Police Garage Fund ­
facility for the Police fleet.
Department.

of a maintenance
billings to the Police

departments.

Stores Revolving Fund ­
office supply facility.
departments.

accou for
ues are

for the operation of a
from billings to user

a centralized
llings to user
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CITY OF LINCOLN, NE F-1

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

AUGUST 31,1991
With Comparative Totals For August 31, 1990

Public Work1; Print Totals

Data Engineering Insurance Equipment Police Services Stores

Processing Revolving ..Revolving Managemenl Garage Revolving Revolving 1991 1990

ASSETS

Current Assets:
Cash Held By City Treasurer $ 1,211,716 840,560 471,661 580,725 133,336 315,949 3,553,947 3,527,624

Investments (At Cost) 988,258 4,043,273 5,031,531 4,127,174

Receivables:
Accounts 48,982 57,277 8,713 9,055 1,188 244 219 125,678 328,258

Accrued Interest 20,489 120,987 734 1,619 292 610 144,731 163,976

Due From Other Funds 181,747 105,342 66,584 205,439 71,696 8,515 9,538 648,861 1,316,191

Due From Other Govemments 217,415 3,526 861 4,257 1,680 227,739 393,819

Inventories 176,654 32,526 12,197 5,591 226,968 307,851

Total Current Assets 2,668,607 166,145 5,080,117 864,404 687,754 158,841 333,587 9,959,455 10,164,893

Fixed Assets 2,199,059 690,872 17,245 9,195,960 2,731,682 272,045 15,106,863 14,051,632

less Accumulated Depreciation (1,609,310) (312,007) (13,649) (4,500,388) (1,711,520) (206,525) (8,353,399) (7,762,760)

Net Fixed Assets 589,749 378,865 3,596 4,695,572 1,020,162 65,520 6,753,464 6,288,872

!-' Total Assets ~5f3~~__~.!010 5,083,713 5,559,976 1,707,916 224,361 333,587 16,712,919 16,453,765
0
~

LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY

Current liabilities:
Vouchers Payable 1,404 8 6 101,581 102,999 47,655
Accounts Payable 34,972 78,231 63,825 197,505 16,039 21,132 41,317 453,021 462,650
Accrued liabilities 56,734 107,871 6,550 43,154 13,063 8,521 485 236,378 224,786
Due To Other Funds 473 170,181 47 567 41 157 199,912 371,378 621,657
Accrued Compensated Absences 66,603 217,686 7,847 90,335 43,333 5,348 696 431,848 410,124
Claims 1,130,000 1,130,000 827,000
Due To Other Governments 103 26,330 26,433 9,552

Total Current liabilities 160,186 574,080 1,208,275 433,142 72,476 35,158 268,740 2,752,057 2,603,424

long Term liabilities:
Claims 1,763,000 1,763,000 1,381,000

Tota: liabilities 160,186 574,080 2,971,275 433,142 72,476 35,158 268,740 4,515,057 3,984,424

Fund Equity:
Contributed Capital 29,803 752,532 67,671 850,006 1,081,435
Retained EamingslUnreserved 3,068,367 (29,070) 2,112,438 4,374,302 1,567,769 189,203 64,847 11,347,856 11,387,906

Tolal Fund Equity 3,098,170 (29,070) 2,112,438 5,126,834 1,635,440 189,203 64,847 12,197,862 12,469,341

Total Liabilities And Fund Equity $ 3,258,356 545,010 5,083,713 5,559,976 1,707,916 224,361 333,587 16,712,919 16,453,765
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CITY OF LINCOLN, NE F·1
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
AUGUST 31,1991

With Comparative Totals For August 31, 1990

Public Works Print Totals

Data Engineering Insurance Equipment Police Services Stores
Processing Revolving Revolving Managemen~ Garage Revolving Revolving 1991 1990

ASSETS

Current Assets:
Cash Held By City Treasurer $ 1,211,716 840,560 471,661 580,725 133,336 315,949 3,553,947 3,527,624
Investments (At Cost) 988,258 4,043,273 5,031,531 4,127,174

Receivables:
Accounts 48,982 57,277 8,713 9,055 1,188 244 219 125,678 328,258
Accrued Interest 20,489 120,987 734 1,619 292 610 144,731 163,976

Due From Other Funds 181,747 105,342 66,584 205,439 71,696 8,515 9,538 648,861 1,316,191
Due From Other Govemments 217,415 3,526 861 4,257 1,680 227,739 393,819
Inventories 176,654 32,526 12,197 5,591 226,968 307,851

Total Current Assets 2,668,607 166,145 5,080,117 864,404 687,754 158,841 333,587 9,959,455 10,164,893

Fixed Assets 2,199,059 690,872 17,245 9,195,960 2,731,682 272,045 15,106,863 14,051,632
less Accumulated Depreciation (1,609,310) (312,007) (13,649) (4,500,388)1 (1,711,520) (206,525) (8,353,399) (7,762,760)

Net Fixed Assets 589,749 378,865 3,596 4,695,572 1,020,162 65,520 6,753,464 6,288,872

I-' Tolal Assets 3,258,356 545,010 5,083,713 5,559,976 1,707,916 224,361 333,587 16,712,919 16,453,765
0
+:--

LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY

Current liabilities:
Vouchers Payable 1,404 8 6 101,581 102,999 47,655
Accounts Payable 34,972 78,231 63,825 197,505 16,039 21,132 41,317 453,021 462,650
Accrued liabilities 56,734 107,871 6,550 43,154 13,063 8,521 485 236,378 224,786
Due To Other Funds 473 170,181 47 567 41 157 199,912 371,378 621,657
Accrued Compensated Absences 66,603 217,686 7,847 90,335 43,333 5,348 696 431,848 410,124
Claims 1,130,000 1,130,000 827,000
Due To Other Governments 103 26,330 26,433 9,552

Total Current liabilities 160,186 574,080 1,208,275 433,142 72,476 35,158 268,740 2,752,057 2,603,424

long Term liabilities:
Claims 1,763,000 1,763,000 1,381,000

Total liabilities 160,186 574,080 2,971,275 433,142 72,476 35,158 268,740 4,515,057 3,984,424

Fund Equity:
Contributed Capital 29,803 752,532 67,671 850,006 1,081,435
Retained EamingslUnreserved 3,068,367 (29,070) 2,112,438 4,374,302 1,567,769 189,203 64,847 11,347,856 11,387,906

Talai Fund Equity 3,098,170 (29,070) 2,112,438 5,126.834 1,635,440 189,203 64,847 12,197,862 12,469,341

Total liabilities And Fund Equity $ 3,258,356 545,010 5,083,713 5.559,976 1,707,916 224,361 333,587 16,712,919 16,453,765



CITY OF LINCOLN, HE F-2
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND
CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31,1991
With Comparative Totals For August 31, 1990

Public Works Print Totals

Data Engineering Insurance Equipment Police Services Stores
Processing Revolving Revolving Management Garage Revolving Revolving 1991 1990------

Operating Revenues:
Charges For Services $ 3,675,769 3,555,489 2,649,752 2,789,824 994,075 452,100 308,027 14,425,036 15,660,242

g Expenses:
Personal Services 1,347,849 2,706,251 158,618 1,032,059 343,975 186,582 15,621 5,790,955 5,518,572
Supplies And Materials 114,272 46,789 6,872 890,876 215,362 127,836 38,166 1,440,173 1,413,414

Other Services And Charges 1,620,469 802,292 3,008,429 709,360 81,700 91,707 265,609 6,579,566 6,027,131
>recianon
Total Operating Expenses

Co-' Operating Income (Loss) 324,375 (68,881) (702,961) (141,082) 16,653 (i 1,369) (1,108,445) 1,267,579
'0
U1

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses):
Interest 136,981 317,437 35,541 40,846 6,633 8,405 545,843 684,228
Miscellaneous

Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)

Net Income (Loss) 457,836 (68,320) (207,743) (379,463) (96,289) 23,286 (2,964) (273,657) 2,0'71,604

Depreciation Transfer On Contributed Capital 25,507 196,931 11 ,169 233,607 296,383

Increase (Decrease) In Retained Earnings 483,343 (68,320) (207,743) (182,532) (85,120) 23,286 (2,964) (40,050) 2,367,987

Retained Earnings Beginning Of Year 2,585,024 39,250 2,320,181 4,,556,834 1,652,889 165,917 67,811 11,387,906 9,019,919

Retained Earnings End Of Year $ 3,068,367 (29,070) 2,112,438 4,374,302 1,567,769 189,203 64,847 11,347,856 'Ii ,387,906



CITY OF UNCOUI. HE F·3

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FISCAl YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 1991
With Comparative Totals For Fiscal Year Ended August 31, 1990

Public Works Print Totals

Data Engineering Insurance Equipment Police Services Stores

Processing Revolving Revolving Management Garage lievolving Revolving 1991 1990---_.
Cash flows from Operating Activities:

Operating Income (loss) $ 324,375 (68,881) (525,180) (702,961) (141,082) 16,653 (11,369) (1,108,445) 1,267,579

Adjustments To Reconcile Net Operating Income (loss)
To Net Cash From Operating Activities:

Depreciation And Amortization 268,804 69,038 1,013 860,490 494,120 29,322 1,722,787 1,433,546

Changes In Assets And Uabilitles:
Accounts Receivable 1,674 183,241 (8,713) 27,844 (1,126) (244) (96) 202,580 (58,233)
Due From Other Funds 21,831 268,360 17,569 203,935 152,789 3,234 (188) 667,330 (413,483)

Materials, Supplies And Fuel inventories 80,266 (1,226) 3,020 (1,177) 80,883 (6,262)

Due From Other Governments 94,894 66,988 (861) 290 5,235 (466) 166,080 (57,956)

Vouchers Payable 68 (11,532) 6 66,802 55,344 (31,'185)

Accounts Payable (8,695) (57,344) 6,705 37,016 (6,658) 2,456 16,891 (9,629) 200,139

Accrued Uablllties 6,332 (43) 198 4,147 (161 ) 1,093 26 11,592 209,014

Due To Other Funds (1,840) (331,648) (58) 413 (640) (184) 83,678 (250,279) 611,160

Due To Other Govemments 23 16,858 16,881 9,552
Accrued Compensated Absences 11,252 460 1,585 4,678 2,446 1,113 190 21,724 71,'726

Clalms 685,000 685,000 (665,664l
1-' Total Adjustments 394,120 187,543 703,305 1,284,730 639,834 45,045 115,716 3,370,293 1,302,354
0 Net cash From Operating Activities 718,495 118,662 178,125 581,769 498,752 61,698 104,347 2,261,848 2,569,933
0"

ca.h Flowe From Capital Financing Activities:
Additions To Fixed Assets (179,214) (119,644) (2,374) (1,480,511 ) (527,521) (15,630) (2,324,894) (2,132,415)

Proceeds From Sale Of Fixed Assets 602 982 299,114 63,342 364,040 164,522
Additions To Contributed capital 64,598 64,598 67,784

Installment Payments On Capital leases (8,~.

Net Cash From capital Financing Activities (178,612l {118,662l (2,374l (1,116,799) (464,179) (15,63Ol (1,896,256l (1,908,~.

cash flmn From Investing Actlvlt_:
Proceeds From Sale And Maturities Of Securities 982,348 5,276,702 1,665,349 7,924,399 6,480,.497

Purchases or Investment Securities (1,970,606) (5,842,361 ) (1,015,789) (8,828,756) (8,273,435)

Interest And Other Revenues 122,696 343,117 43,176 41,167 6,638 8,294 565,088 645,638

Net cash From Investing Activities (865,562l (222,542l 692,736 41,167 6,638 8,294 (339,269) (1,147,~.

Net Increase (Decrease) In cash (325,679) (46,791) 157,706 75,740 52,706 112,641 26,323 (486,082)

Cash, Beginning or Year 1,537,395 887,351 313,955 504,985 80,630 203,308 3,527,624 4,013,706

Cash, End 01 Year $ 1,211,716 840,560 471,661 580,725 133,336 315,949 3,553,947 3,527,624
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Department of Energy -

City is the Fiduciary agent for these
accounts.
Various bank accounts used for the
Yearround Energy Savings
program. The City is the Fiduciary
agent for these accounts.

Contractor Deposits - To account for good faith money deposited with the
City to assure the completion of special projects. The money will be
returned to the contractors upon completion.

payroll Revolving .. To account for payroll liabilities, such as taxes and
fringes.

Outstanding Warrants .. To account
outstanding warrants.

money held by the City to pay

Earnings on Poojed Investments .. To account for interest received from
pooled idle fund investments pending distribution to the various City
funds.

Utilities and Telephone Suspense .. To account receipts from water
and wastewater billings pending distribution to the Water and
Wastewater Utility funds and for the accumulation of funds to pay
Lancaster County for the City the telephone bill for the County"
City building.

Public Office Building Revenue Bonds Fund .. To account for rental
payments received from the State of Nebraska as per the following: The
City has assisted the State by issuing revenue bonds on behalf of the
State to build the State Building and the State Game and Parks
Commission Building. lease and related financing agreements
provide for the State to reimburse the City for debt service and other
costs incurred by the City. City records the amounts collected and
held under the respective lease agreements in the trust and agency
funds. The City has entered into these lease agreements solely for the
purpose of assisting the State in providing office buildings for use
exclusively by the State and at no greater cost to the State than the cost
thereof to the City. obligation to retire the revenue bonds is an
obligation of the State and not the City. The State is meeting this
obligation through lease payments.

Undistributed Property Tax .. To account for tax collections received from
the County Treasurer pending distribution to the various tax supported
funds.

Deferred Compensation Plan .. To account for balances deferred from
employees pay under the City's Section 457 Deferred Compensation
Plan.
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CITY OF LINCOLN, tilE G·1

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

AUGUST 31,1991
With Comparative Totals For August 31,1990

Pension Trust Funds ~endableTrust Funds Agency Funds

Parks And
Recreation Commission Ubrary Collec\ions Earnings UtifitiesAnd Deferred Totals

Fire Police And Special On Aging Special Due Other Contractor Payroll Outstanding On Pooled Telephone Undistributed Compensation

~ Fire Pension Projects GiflTrust Trust Governments Deposits .J=!evolving Warrants Investments Suspense Property Tax Plan 1991 ___1~_

ASSETS

Cash Held By City Treasurer $ 84,823 2,633 135,316 89,376 487,553 19,745 248,572 3,020,021 1,551,546 1,247 2,000,000 7,640,832 8,071,95'1

Cash in Other Accounts 153,321 55,751 6,499 215,571 533,547

Investments (At Cost Or Amortized Cost) 1,689,465 67,252,263 68,941,728 65,6,59,37Cl

Receivables:

Taxes 14,180 127,583 141,763 iOO,76'1

Accrued interest 21,662 994,902 395 278 1,288 1,018,525 91[11,153

Other 1,189 1,001 587,500 936 500,725 506,361

Due From Other Funds 3,749 72,217 8,674 6,371 30,469 18,869 3,189 7,136 150,674 1167,831

Due From Other GO<Iernments 8,175 8,175 5,671

Insurance Contract 2,795,846 2,795,846 2,2192,717

Contractor Retainage 8~,317 869,317 8:33,299

Total Assets 1,813,879 68,457,773 145,574 97,116 519,310 191,935 925,068 845,769 3,020,021 1,551,546 9,319 2,000,000 2,795,846 82,373,156 79,1:38,664_

i-'
I.IABIUTIES AND RJND BALANCE

0
Ullbiities:\0

!i34 2,070 423 8,072 11,108 '15,108

3,020,021 3,020,021 2,1:24,291:1

119 4,165 250 11,712 16,246 1,385
Accrued Compensaled Absences U69 2,738 3,007 2,879
AccruedlJllbiities 2,581 360,918 1,247 364,746 41>2,004
Due To Other Funds 94 29 1,100,628 2,000,000 3,100,751 4,5:21,902
Due To Other GO<Iemments 191,685 800,734 1,001 ,4HI 1,148,171

Due To Contractor 925,068 925,008 1ll~5,839

Due To Plan Membera 24,323 2,795,846 2,ll2O,169 2,31>3,961
Deferred RevenuM 4,994 66,418 71,412 S9,970
Amount Held Under State L_

131

4,994 67,600 534 2,218 9,907 191,935 925,068 845,769 3,020,021 1,551,546 9,319 2,000,000 2?95,846 11,424,847 !!.I?.l!~E.~C

Fund Balances:

Reserved For:
Employee Retirement 1,808,885 68,390,083 70,198,008 OO,9oE>9,706
Trust Donations 145,040 94,898 509,403 749,341 5i'3,228

Total Fund Balances 1,808,885 68,390,083 145,040 94,898 509,403 70,948,309 67,542,934-
Total Liabiities And Fund Balances $ 1,813,879 68,457,nS 145,574 97,116 519,S10 191,935 925,068 845,769 3,020,021 1,551,546 9,319 2,000,000 2,795,846 82,S73,156 79,1 <l8,664

=
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G-2

CITY OF LINCOLN, NE
PENSION TRUST FUNDS

COMBiNiNG STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,
AND CHANGES iN FUND BALANCES

FISCAL YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 1991
With Comparative Totals For Fiscal Year Ended August 31, 1990

Police
Fire And Fire Totals

1991 1990

Operating Revenues:
Employee Contributions $ 878,317 878,317 1,029,828
Taxes:

Real Estate And Personal Property 1,202 716,527 717,729 498,003
Motor Vehicle 81,999 81,999 59,772

Intergovernmental 324 324 189
Total Operating Revenues 1,202 1,677,167 1,678,369 1,587,792

Operating Expenses:
Benefit Payments 285,358 1,229,055 1,514,413 1,332,204
Refunds 3,035,074 3,035,074 521,021
Administrative Costs 2,012 29,'05 31,117 45,825

Total Operating Expenses 287,370 4,293,234 4,580,604 1,899,050

Operating Income (Loss) (286,168) (2,616,067) (2,902,235) (311,258)

Non-Operating Revenues:
Interest 159,509 5,971,988 6,131,497 5,967,751

Total Non-Operating Revenues 159,509 5,971,988 6,131,497 5,967,751

Net Income (Loss) (126,659) 3,355,921 3,229,262 5,656,493

Fund Balance Beginning Of Year 1,935,544 65,034,162 66,969,706 61,313,213

Fund Balance End Of Year $ 1,808,885 68,390,083 70,198,968 66,969,706
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G-3

CITV OF UNCOLN, NE
PENSION TRUST FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31,1991

With Comparative Totals For Fiscal Year Ended August 31, 1990

Police
Fire And Fire Totals

Pension Pension 1991 1990

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Net Operating Loss $ (286,168) (2,616,067) (2,902,235) (311,258)
Adjustments To Reconcile Net Operating Loss

To Net Cash From Operating Activities:
Changes In Assets And Uabilities:

Taxes Receivabie 1,786 (56,785) (54,999) 34,985
Due From Other Funds 593 10,382 10,975 (22,069)
Due From Other Governments (2,504) (2,504) (119)
Accounts Payable 9 9
Due To Other Funds 94 94
Accrued Compensated Absences 1,169 1,169
Deferred Revenues (1,202) 12,644 11,442 (8,136}

Total Adjustments 1,1n (34,991} (33,814} 4,661

Net Cash From Operating Activities (284,991 ) (2,651,058) (2,936,049) (306,597)

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Maturity And Sales Of Securities 500,098 10,881,539 11,381,637 11,155,334
Purchase Of Investment Securities (371,309) (14,292,686) (14,663,995) (16,679,717)
Interest and Other Revenues 162,501 5,940,925 6,103,426 5,876,313

Net Cash From Investing Activities 291,290 2,529,n8 2,821,068 351,930

Net Increase (Decrease) In Cash 6,299 (121,280) (114,981 ) 45,333

Cash, Beginning Of Year 78,524 123,913 202,437 157,104

Cash, End Of Year $ 84,823 2,633 87,456 202,437



CITY OF LINCOLN, HE
EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FISCAL YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 1991
With Comparative Totals For Fiscal Year Ended August 31, 1990

G-4

Parks And
Recreation Commission library

Special On Aging Special Totals
Projects Gift Trust Trust 1991 1990

Revenues:
Donations And Gifts $ 47,980 88,108 186,124 322,212 167,060
Interest 8,325 6,199 30,109 44,633 60,004
Misceilaneous 5,567 2,240 14,033 21,840 22,574

Total Revenues 61,872 96,547 230,266 388,685 249,638

Expenditures:
Culture And Recreation:

Personal Services 62,820 62,820 59,673
Materials And Supplies 17,363 374 17,737 12,703
Other Services And Charges 6,041 11,428 17,469 36,966
Construction Contracts 9,580 9,580 142,392
Equipment 3,138 32,436 35,574 32,950

Economic Opportunity:
Materials And Supplies 8,251 8,251 7,379
Other Services And Charges 55,730 55,730 57,344
Equipment 4,553 4,553 2,012

Total Expenditures 36,122 68,534 107,058 211,714 351,419

Excess (Deficiency) Of Revenues
Over Expenditures 25,750 28,013 123,208 176,971 (101,781)

Other Financing Uses:
Operating Transfers Out (858) (858) (27,003)

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures And
Other Financing Uses 24,892 28,013 123,208 176,113 (128,784)

Fund Balance Beginning Of Year 120,148 66,885 386,195 573,228 702,012

Fund Balance End Of Year $ 145,040 94,898 509,403 749,341 573,228
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G·5

CITY Of LINCOLN, NE
AGENCY FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
FISCAL YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 1991

Balance Balance
Sept. 1, 1990 Additions Deductions Aug. 31, 1991

COLLECTIONS DUE OTHER GOVERNMENTS:
Assets:

Cash $ 24,828 447,348 452,431 19,745
Cash Held In Other Accounts 466,351 529,876 842,906 153,321
Receivables 842 842
Due From Other Funds 14,605 18,869 14,605 18,869

506,626 996,093 1,310,784 191,935

Liabilities:
Vouchers Payable $ 250 250
Due To Other Governments 506,626 980,396 1,295,337 191,685

506,626 980,646 1,295,337 191,935

CONTRACTOR DEPOSITS:
Assets:

Cash And Investments $ 62,540 13,120 19,909 55,751
Contractor Retalnage 833,299 291,509 255,491 869,317

895,839 304,629 275,400 925,068

Liabilities:
Due To Contractor $ 895,839 304,629 275,400 925,068

PAYROLL REVOLVING:
Assets:

Cash $ 216,432 40,558,599 40,519,960 255,071
Receivables 504,331 587,509 504,331 587,509
Due From Other Funds 2,026 40,559,763 40,558,600 3,189

722,789 81,705,871 81,582,891 845,769

Liabilities:
Vouchers Payable 38,859,506 38,847,794 11,712
Due To Other Governments 641,545 40,053,788 39,885,599 809,734
Due To Plan Members 81,244 589,152 646,073 24,323

$ 722,789 79,502,446 79,379,466 845,769

OUTSTANDING WARRANTS:
Assets:

Cash $ 2,124,290 335,031,860 334,136,129 3,020,021

Liabilities:
Warrants Payable $ 2,124,290 335,031,860 334,136,129 3,020,021

EARNINGS ON POOLED INVESTMENTS:
Assets:

Cash $ 1,980,071 1,551,546 1,980,071 1,551,546

Liabilities:
Accrued Liabilities 458,352 360,918 458,352 360,918
Due To Other Funds 1,521,719 1,190,628 1,521,719 1,190,628

$ 1,980,071 1,551,546 1,980,071 1,551,546

(continued)



(AGENCY FUNDS, continued) G-5

Balance Balance
Sept. 1, 1990 Additions Deductions Aug. 31, 1991

UTILITIES AND TELEPHONE SUSPENSE:
Assets:

Cash $ 1,572 30,610,436 30,610,761 1,247
Receivables 639 936 639 936
Due From Other Funds 3,236 30,614,661 30,610,761 7,136

5,447 61,226,033 61,222,161 9,319

Liabilities:
Accounts Payable 3,875 410,343 406,146 8,072
Accrued Liabilities 1,572 30,204,290 30,204,615 1,247

$ 5,447 30,614,633 30,610,761 9,319

PUBLIC OFFICE BUILDING REVENUE BONDS
(STATE OF NEBRASKA, LESSEE):

Assets:
Cash And Investments

Liabilities:
Amount Held Under State Lease Agreement $ 131 131

UNDISTRIBUTED PROPERTY TAX:
Assets:

Cash $ 3,000,000 29,107,731 30,107,731 2,000,000

Liabilities:
Due To Other Funds $ 3,000,000 29,107,731 30,107,731 2,000,000

DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN:
Assets:

Insurance Contract $ 2,282,717 626,803 113,674 2,795,846

Liabilities:
Due To Plan Members $ 2,282,717 626,803 113,674 2,795,846

AGENCY FUND TOTALS:

Tota! Assets $ 11,517,910 510,550,566 510,728,972 11,339,504

Total Liabilities $ 11,517,910 477,720,044 477,898,700 11,339,254
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GENERAL FIXED ASSETS ACCOUNT GROUP

To account for fixed assets not used in proprietary fund operations or
accounted for in trust funds.
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CITY Of LINCOLN, NE
SCHEDULE OF GENERAL FIXED ASSETS ADDITIONS

BY SOURCES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31,1991

General Fixed Assets August 31, 1982*

Additions To General Fixed Assets By Source--
September 1, 1982 Through August 31, 1990

General Fund Revenues
Federal Funds
Capital Projects Funds
Special Revenue Funds
Donations

Deletions

General Fixed Assets August 31, 1990

Additions To General Fixed Assets By Source --
September 1, 1990 Through August 31,1991

General Fund Revenues
Federal Funds
Capital Projects Funds
Special Revenue Funds
Donations

Deletions

General Fixed Assets August 31, 1991

$ 46,978,145

7,680,120
935,285

14,021,120
2,468,076

529,611
25,634,212

(7,133,561 )

65,478,796

1,411,811
55,501

5,365,250
878,864

14,122
7,725,548

(1,498,213)

$ 71,706,131

*The City's first inventory was completed at August 31, 1982. General fixed assets by
source was not available for assets acquired prior to August 31, 1982.
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CITY OF UNCOlN. NE
SCHEDULE OF GENERAL FIXED ASSETS

BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY
As Of August 31, 1991

Improvements Machinery
Other Than And

Total Land Buildings Buildings Equipment

GENERAL GOVERNMENT
Legislative $ 64,480 64,480
Executive, Including Human Rights,

Economic Development, Word
Processing, CIRC, And Admin.
Services 713,793 713,793

Financial Administration 247,150 247,150
Law 239,634 239,634
Personnel Administration 53,110 53,110
Planning And Zoning 63,991 63,991
Buildings And Plant 7,230,155 941,178 6,125,261 163,716
Urban Development 3,370,528 3,226,976 143,552

Total General Government 11,982,841 4,168,154 6,125,261 163,716 1,525,710

PUBLIC SAFETY
Police 1,488,596 1,488,596
Fire 5,937,072 474,433 1,207,426 83,906 4,171,307
Building And Safety 306,065 306,065
Communications 796,945 796,945
Civil Defense 109,159 109,159
Transportation 1,657,320 60,066 441,751 64,202 1,091,301

Total Public Safety 10,295,157 534,499 1,649,177 148,108 7,963,373

STREETS AND HIGHWAYS
Street Maintenance 5,656,834 2,359,635 1,969,262 525,048 802,889

CULTURE AND RECREATION
Parks And Recreation 29,771,377 6,304,368 7,938,693 14,718,350 809,966
Libraries 10,235,054 144,554 2,251,811 140,515 7,698,174
Cornhusker Convention Center 2,872,588 446,036 2,248,715 177,837

Total Culture And Recreation 42,879,019 6,894,958 12,439,219 14,858,865 8,685,977

ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY
Lincoln Area Agency On Aging 337,376 337,376
Job Programs 29,305 29,305

Total Economic Opportunity 366,681 366,681

HEALTH AND WELFARE
Lincoln Lancaster Co. Health 525,599 525,599

Total General Fixed Assets $ 71,706,131 13,957,246 22,182,919 15,695,737 19,870,229
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CITY OF LINCOLN, NE
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS

BY FUNCTION AND ACTIViTY
For The Year Ended August 31, 1991

General General
Fixed Fixed

Assets Assets
Function And Activity Sept. 1, 1990 Additions'" Deductions Aug. 31,1991

GENERAL GOVERNMENT
Legislative $ 18,385 51,713 5,618 64,480
Executive, Including Human Rights,

Economic Development, Word
Processing, CIRC, And
Administrative Services 710,339 3,454 713,793

Financial Administration 254,268 12,843 19,961 247,150
Law 189,811 53,145 3,322 4"U"'U"\. ~fl"tjj

",,;)~,o,,"t

Personnel Administration 41,461 11,649 53,110
Planning And Zoning 38,522 25,469 63,991
Buildings And Plant 7,230,155 7,230,155
Urban Development 4,030,816 51,104 711,392 3,370,528

Total General Government 12,513,757 209,377 740,293 11,982,841

PUBLIC SAFETY
Police 757,906 906,336 175,646 1,488,596
Fire 4,810,329 1,164,111 37,368 5,937,072
Building And Safety 311,068 3,297 8,300 306,065
Communications 419,607 410,210 32,872 796,945
Civil Defense 101,047 8,843 731 109,159
Transportation 1,642,524 29,796 15,000 1,657,320

Total Public Safety 8,042,481 2,522,593 269,917 10,295,157

STREETS AND HIGHWAYS
Street Maintenance 5,742,106 3,685 88,957 5,656,834

CULTURE AND RECREATION
Parks And Recreation 25,658,063 4,299,961 186,647 29,771,377
Libraries 9,831,093 451,481 47,520 10,235,054
Cornhusker Convention Center 2,870,683 1,905 2,872,588

Total Culture And Recreation 38,359,839 4,753,347 234,167 42,879,019

ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY
Lincoln Area Agency On Aging 284,198 55,385 2,207 337,376
Job Programs 28,720 585 29,305

Total Economic Opportunity 312,918 55,970 2,207 366,681

HEALTH AND WELFARE
Lincoln lancaster Co. Health 507,695 180,576 162,672 525,599

Total General Fixed Assets $ 65,478,796 7,725,548 1,498,213 71,706,131

·The figures in this column do not necessarily agree with the other financial statements for capital outlay in the
governmental funds. This is because expenditures made by some funds for building improvements are shown here
under Buildings and Plant. Also, infrastructure items are not capitalized under the City's capitalization policies.
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CITY OF LINCOLN, NE
GENERAL INFORMATION

Table'
GEt,lERAl GO\,'ERt,JMEt,,'TAL EXPEt..JDITURES BY P..JNCTION1

lAST TEN FISCAl YEARS

Fiscal General
~ Goyernment

Public
~

Streets
And
~

Culture
And

Recreation
Economic

Opportunity

1991 $ 14,922,461 26,579,461 6,761,346 9,514,317 6,140,782 4,993,576 9,569,083 78,481,026
1990 14,216,069 25,267,865 6,324,609 9,169,606 5,942,691 4,716,120 7,319,885 72,956,845
1989 11,972,664 21,415,917 5,878,224 8,200,666 8,293,286 3,972,901 6,648,372 66,382,030
1988 11,227,562 21,217,662 5,987,512 8,054,651 6,201,422 3,616,964 6,809,178 63,114,951
1987 10,511,274 20,041,053 5,455,931 7,842,716 5,319,400 3,504,832 15,969,066 68,644,272
1986 10,868,367 19,493,668 5,520,065 7,576,486 5,033,019 3,444,554 525,967 2,077,869 54,539,995
1985 11,603,702 17,940,665 5,317,458 7,234,289 5,157,817 3,112,818 543,104 6,158,216 57,068,069
1984 11,193,643 17,595,508 6,114,230 7,146,990 6,165,295 2,934,664 381,221 2,208,098 53,739,649
1983 9,960,617 18,368,526 5,211,782 6,857,185 5,345,982 2,839,462 699,871 1,823,062 51,106,487
1982 8,331,599 16,547,254 5,046,850 6,247,068 5,441,512 2,383,232 497,522 1,305,398 45,800,435

1Includes General, Special Revenue, and Debt Service Funds.
2At August 1, 1986 Sanitary landfill became an Enterprise Fund. The figure for 1986 includes only eleven months of expenditures. For years after 1986, all sanilation

expenditures are included with the Enterprise Funds.
3rhe figures for 1988 include Special Assessment amounts of $81 ,084 in General Government and $3,005,494 in Debt Service reported as General Governmenlal

Expenditures for the first ~me due to Statement 6 of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.

Table 2
GENERAl REVENUES BY SOURCE'

lAST TEN FISCAl YEARS

Permits
Fiscal

~2
Inter- And Reimbursement Court Recreation

~...Y.flaL Goyernmental ~ For Services ~ Receipts Qtb.m ~

1991 $ 58,095,595 17,950,671 2,581,777 1,155,385 95,847 718,076 2,182,268 6,882,597 89,662,216
1990 56,156,855 17,375,366 1,988,001 985,677 115,813 655,981 2,622,889 3,906,041 83,806,623
1989 52,780,348 19,853,034 1,701,082 1,004,843 109,806 593,461 2,838,448 3,524,567 82,405,589
1988 47,992,603 16,357,404 1,603,158 1,048,138 116,859 590,809 3,588,413 2,631,228 73,928,612
1987 43,360,446 15,733,000 1,496,422 1,270,069 119,721 526,598 1,657,124 2,386,740 66,550,120
1986 39,051,866 16,577,869 1,375,019 950,162 125,824 498,394 1,898,364 2,558,538 63,036,036
1985 37,676,840 16,501,967 1,083,962 850,177 560,695 456,720 1,970,901 2,545,547 61,646,809
1984 36,866,028 18,575,500 1,026,175 734,807 757,051 490,091 2,078,631 2,909,561 63,437,844
1983 34,928,715 17,073,128 882,565 744,948 788,002 489,893 1,915,578 1,629,508 58,452,337
1982 32,385,108 16,343,095 672,914 773,486 563,990 419,847 2,547,362 1,638,171 55,343,973

1lncludas General, Special Revenue and Debt Service Funds.
2General Revenues· Taxes includes $1,356.218 of Special Assessments in 1988 and interest includes $1,079,095 of Special Assessment Interest in 1988 as a result of

implementation of Statement 6 of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.

Table 3
PROPERlY TAX LEVIED AND COLLECTED

lAST TEN YEARS

The fiscal year of the City begins September' and ends August 31. Taxes are levied in September. First installments of real estate taxes are delinquent the following April 1,
second installments delinquent August' ; personal property laxes are delinquent December 1 and July 1. Delinquent taxes bear 14 percent interest The figures below
include interest and penalties. The full amount of the taxes levied for 1977 and prior has been collected. The figures below do not include motor vehicle in lieu of ad valorem
taxes.

COLLECTED AS OF AUGUST 31 ACCUMULATED COLLECTIONS
TAX TAXES AFTER lEVY AS OF AUGUST 31, 1991

YEAR LEVIED AMOUNT PERCENT AMOUNT PERCENT

1990 $ 22,712,308 $ 21,472,586 94.54 % $ 21,472,586 94.54 %
1989 21,897,845 20,940,705 95.63 21,645,389 98.85
1988 19,838,326 18,892,824 95.23 19,770,088 99.66
1987 18,547,425 17,483,064 94.26 18,596,878 100.27
1986 18,634,563 17,563,423 94.25 18,669,695 100.19
1985 14,820,947 13,930,925 93.99 14,899,428 100.53
1984 21,679,327 20,063,968 92.55 21,665,673 99.94
1983 21,154,814 19,448,543 91.93 21,401,354 101.17
1982 20,019,695 18,429,271 92.06 20,305,305 101.43
1981 18,851,556 17,479,454 92.72 19,034,845 100.97
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Financial Statistics - Continued

Table 4
TAXABLE ASSESSED AND ESTIMATED

ACTUAL VALUATION
LAST TEN YEARS1

Beal Estate All Other Motor Vehicle Totals
Ratio Of

Total Assessed
To Total

Estimated
Actual Value

Estimated
Actual
~

Assessed
value

Estimated
Actual
~

Assessed
value

Estimated
Actual
Ys!!Y.fl

Assessed
value

Estimated
Actual
~

Assessed
value

1991 $ 4.281.739.381
1990 4.167.361.438
1989 3.885.292.752
1988 3.609.376.307
1987 3.526.918.806
1986 3.314.107,283
1985 3,258.644.926
1984 2.984.694.981
1983 2.934.191.285
1982 2.584,857.645

4,281.739.381
4.167.361,438
3.885.292,752
3.609,376,307
3,526,918.806
3,314.107,283
3.258.644,926
2.984.694.981
2.934,191.285
2.584.857.645

651.042.612
646.608.031
613.031.929
522.747,416
499,004.211
485,088,431
408.998,541
443.408.593
388,380,465
371,824,615

651.042.612
646,608.031
613,031.929
522,747,416
499.004,211
485,088,431
408,998,541
443.408,593
388.380,465
371,824.615

532.313,665
505.195.126
444,477.863
416,921.473
397.669.695
370,099,785
341.007.665
323.626,975
273.406.700
255,350,485

532.313.665
505.195,126
444,477,863
416,921,473
397,669,695
370.099,785
341,007.685
323,626.975
273,406,700
255,350,485

5,465.095,658
5.319,164,595
4,942.802,544
4,549.045,196
4,423,592,712
4,169,295,499
4,008.651,152
3,751.730,549
3.595,978,450
3.212.032.745

5,465,095.658
5.319,164.595
4.942.802,544
4.549,045.196
4,423.592,712
4,169.295,499
4.008.651.152
3.751.730,549
3.595,978,450
3,212,032.745

100 %
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100

1Assessment is at 100% of actual.

Table 5
TOTAL PROPERTY TAX LEVIES

ALL DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS
LAST TEN YEARS1

1982 1983 1984 1985 1986 1987 1988 1989 1990 1991---
City 01 Uncoln 0.6771 0.6367 0.6324 0.4041 0.4903 0.4607 0.4801 0.4868 0.4718 0.4883
School District No.1 1.3435 1.3234 1.4034 1.4069 1.4075 1.4038 1.4544 1.6898 1.7928 1.7680
Airport Authority 0.0128 0.0114 0.0109 0.0103 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000
Lancaster County 0.3385 0.3134 0.2928 0.2928 0.3353 0.3353 0.3441 0.3221 0.3244 0.3402
Educational Service Unit Al18 0.0076 0.0073 0.0075 0.0079 0.0076 0.0080 0.0080 0.0071 0.0071 0.0072
Community Technical College 0.0660 0.0660 0.0660 0.0660 0.0690 0.0690 0.0855 0.0785 0.0789 0.0830
Lower Platte South Natural Res. Dist. 0.0233 0.0227 0.0231 0.0319 0.0311 0.0314 0.0405 0.0350 0.0321 0.0364
Railroad Transportation Salety Dist. 0.0171 0.0165 0.0167 0.0176 0.0174 0.0164 0.0160 0.0140 0.0136 0.0132
Agricultural Society of Lancaster County 0.0046 0.0014 0.0011 0.0013 0.0011 0.0010 0.0010 0.0015 0.0046 0.0018
Public Building Commission 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0109

TOTAL 2.4905 2.3988 2.4539 2.2388 2.3593 2.3256 2.4296 2.6348 2.7253 2.7490

1The assessment rate is 100% of market and the levy is expressed as the tax per $100 of estimated market value.

Table 6
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT COLLECTIONS

LAST TEN YEARS1

Year
Ended

August 31

Special Assessment
Collections

Including Interest

1991
1990
1989
1988
1987
1986
1985
1984
1983
1982

$3,061,525
2,869,010
3,236,586
3,565,274
4,759,761
5,522,732
3,992,243
4,416,000
3,402,508
2,853,068

1Special assessment collections are not tracked by levy year, therefore the portion of collections during any year which apply
to any particular levy cannot be determined. Special assessment billings by year are not available.
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Financial Statistics - Continued

Table 7
CITY SALES TAX INFORMATION

The City had a one percent (1%) sales and use tax through June 30,1985. Effective July 1,1985 the sales and use tax was raised
to one and one half percent (1.5%). These taxes are administered and collected for the City by the State of Nebraska. The State
receives three percent (3%) for their service. The City has had a sales tax since 1969.

SALES AND USE TAX COLLECTIONS
LAST TEN YEARS

Year Ended
August 31

1991
1990
1989
1988
1987
1986
1985
1984
1983
1982

$24,079,362
23,189,515
22,765,376
21,592,027
19,381,135
17,810,917
11,773,664
11,263,100
11,111,390
10,266,167

SCHEDULE OF GENERAL OBliGATION DEBT IN RELATION TO PER CAPITA
TOTAL ASSESSED VALUATION, TRUE VALUE OF REAL ESTATE

AND TO PER CAPITA INCOME
LAST TEN YEARS

Table 8

Ratio Of
Net Ratio Of Assessed Net Debt

General General Net Assessed Net Debt Valuation To Estimated
Obligation Obligation G.O. Bonded Valuation To Assessed Of Taxable Valuation

Bonded Sinking Bonded Debt Per Real And Valuation Real Of Taxable
::war Debt Funds pebt population1 Capita personal Real & personal property Beal property

1991 $ 49,190,000 $ 9,958,461 $ 39,231,539 191,972 $ 204.36 $ 5,465,095,658 0.72% $ 4,281,739,381 0.92%
1990 53,351,000 12,322,225 41,028,775 191,972 213.72 5,319,164,595 0.77 4,167,361 ,438 0.98
1989 49,132,200 11,815,674 37,316,526 188,680 197.78 4,942,802,544 0.75 3,885,292,752 0.96
1988 44,175,000 12,268,405 31,906,595 185,620 171.89 4,549,045,196 0.70 3,609,376,307 0.88
1987 47,775,000 6,169,064 41,605,936 184,500 225.50 4,423,592,712 0.94 3,526,918,806 1.18
1986 51,280,000 6,385,834 44,894,166 184,500 243.33 4,188,657,680 1.07 3,314,107,283 1.35
1985 35,590,000 5,327,394 30,262,606 181,500 166.73 4,008,651,152 0.75 3,258,644,926 0.93
1984 38,595,000 5,363,715 33,231,285 180,200 184.41 3,751,730,549 0.89 2,984,694,981 1.11
1983 38,700,000 5,349,362 33,350,638 175,000 190.58 3,595,978,450 0.93 2,934,191 ,285 1.14
1982 37,216,000 5,576,237 31,639,763 175,000 180.80 3,212,032,745 0.99 2,584,857,645 1.22

1Source: Uncoln-Lancaster Planning Department. Updated population figures for 1991 were not available at time of printing.

Assessed valuation is 100% of actual.

COMPUTATION OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT
AUGUST 31, 1991

Table 9

City
School District #1
Airport Authority1

lancaster County
Southeast Community College

Total

Net Debt
Outstanding

$39,231,539
16,250,000
3,650,000

None
None

$59,131,539

Percentage
Applicable
To The City

100.0%
97.2

100.0
None
35.9

Direct And
Overlapping

Debt

$39,231,539
15,795,000
3,650,000

None
None

$58,676,539

1Does not include Special Obligation Bonds of $565,819 payable from lease rentals.



Financial Statistics - Continued
Table 10

RATIO OF ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE EXPENDITURES FOR
GENERAL BONDED DEBT TO TOTAL GENERAL EXPENDITURES

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Totli Total
Fiscal

.Irl1w:m..3
Debt General

.Y.fllU.- ~ ~ Expenditures 1

1991 $ 5,906,493 3,455,384 9,361,877 78,339,428
1990 3,793,637 3,274,390 7,068,027 72,956,845
1989 3,670,000 2,942,326 76,612,326 66,382,030

19885 3,600,000 3,199,184 6,799,184 63,114,951

1987 13,480,000 2,438,712 15,918,712 4 68,478,194
1986 1,050,000 1,027,119 2,077,119 54,539,995

1985 4,870,000 2 1,165,805 6,035,805 57,068,069
1984 1,070,000 1,138,098 2,208,098 53,739,649
1983 895,000 928,062 1,823,062 51,106,487
1982 795,000 510,398 1,305,398 45,800,435

Ratio Of
Debt Service

To Total
General

Expenditures

11.9%
9.70
9.96

10.77

23.25 4
3.81

10.58
4.11
3.57
2.85

1Includes: General, Special Revenue, and Debt Service Funds. (1989 expenditures includes Payment to Refunded Bond Escrow Agent)
21ncludes $3,730,000 of refunded Cornhusker Square Redevelopment Project No. 1 Tax Allocation Bonds, Series 1982.
300es not include fiscal and miscellaneous charges.
41ncludes $12,000,000 bond defeasance.
51988 includes Special ft.ssessment Bonds for the first time due to implementation of Statement 6 of the Governmental Accounting

Standards Board.

Table 11
REVENUE BOND COVERAGE

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Direct Net Revenue
Gross Operating Available Debt Service Requirements

Revenue Expenses For Debt Service ~ Jn1w:W !gtal Coverage 3

Wastewater Svstf!rn
1991 $12,339,062 5,759,667 6,579,395 705,000 592,332 1,297,332 5.07
1990 11,690,862 5,508,080 6,182,782 690,000 585,728 1,275,728 4.85
1989 10,360,369 5,199,623 5,160,746 655,000 614,102 1,269,102 4.07
1988 9,054,861 4,742,531 4,312,330 605,000 443,587 1,048,587 4.11
1987 8,221,313 4,621,155 3,600,158 595,000 517,027 1,112,027 3.24
1986 7,700,976 4,475,457 3,225,519 570,000 515,405 1,085,405 2.97
1985 7,295,060 4,249,434 3,045,626 545,000 540,758 1,085,758 2.81
1984 6,724,807 3,980,896 2,743,911 495,000 566,109 1,061,109 2.59
1983 6,162,396 3,625,573 2,536,823 470,000 587,559 1,057,559 2.40
1982 6,129,442 3,514,623 2,614,819 365,000 601,553 966,553 2.71

Water System
1991 22,314,434 5,945,212 16,369,222 1,045,000 2,787,571 3,832,571 4.27
1990 17,891,336 5,729,234 12,162,102 820,000 688,814 1,508,814 8.06
1989 16,936,162 5,802,088 11,134,074 925,000 807,231 1,732,231 6.43
1988 14,528,993 5,291,453 9,237,540 890,000 845,249 1,735,249 5.32
1987 11,493,534 5,089,423 6,404,111 890,000 770,566 1,660,566 3.86
1986 10,251,993 4,921,406 5,330,587 854,000 595,606 1,449,606 3.67
1985 9,683,368 4,710,451 4,972,917 765,000 623,502 1,388,502 3.58
1984 9,095,475 4,696,115 4,399,360 710,000 654,606 1,364,606 3.22
1983 8,068,564 4,346,427 3,722,137 689,000 678,601 1,367,601 2.72
1982 7,061,707 3,875,804 3,185,903 622,000 699,172 1,321,172 2.41

Parking Facilities
1,603,052 ~1991

4
861,278 741,774 185,000 363,714 548,714 1.35

1990 1,550,937 2 396,725 1,154,212 175,000 377,148 552,148 2.09
1989 1,396,081 2 393,691 1,002,390 130,000 233,560 363,560 2.76
1988 1,386,144

2
367,478 1,018,666 120,000 279,149 399,149 2.55

1987 1,341,888 2 330,951 1,010,937 110,000 285,785 395,785 2.55
1986 1,274,710 2 287,755 986,955 110,000 292,568 402,568 2.20
1985

1
1,210,250 2 347,145 863,105 105,000 295,891 400,891 2.15

1984 1,155,292
2

362,755 792,537 90,000 169,469 259,469 3.05
1983 847,070

2
203,306 643,764 85,000 128,250 213,250 3.02

1982 749,876 174,635 575,241 80,000 132,944 212,944 2.70

1 Second facility (Comhusker Parkin~Garage) opened in December, 1983.
2 Includes park.lOg meter revenues w ich were deposited to the General Fund but are pledged per bond ordinance.
3 Coverage ratios on this table do not agree with ratios in transmittalietter because those ratios are calculated in accordance with

specific requirements of the bond covenants.
4Third facility (University Square Parking Garage) opened in April, 1990.
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Financial Statistics - Continued

Table 12

DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTIC-S
LAST TEN YEARS

1991
1990
1989
1988
1987
1986
1985
1984
1983
1982

City of Lincoln1
Population

191,972
191,972
188,680
185,620
184,500
184,500
181,500
180,200
175,000
175,001

Per Capita2
Income

$

16,067
15,078
14,373
13,731
13,113
12,333
11,745
11,204

Schoo13

Enrollment

28,806
27,990
27,367
26,567
25,982
25,462
25,209
24,874
24,675
25,017

Unemployment4
Bate

2.4%
1.9
2.5
2.3
3.4
2.7
3.2
2.5
3.3
5.9

rources:
Lincoln/Lancaster Planning Department. Updated population figure for 1991 was not available at time of report
printing.

2University of Nebraska Bureau of Business Research. Pey Capita Income for 1990
and 1991 is unavailable.

3Lincoln Public Schools
4State of Nebraska, Department of Labor

Median age from 1990 census was 30.3. Education level in years of formal schooling
from 1980 census was 12.9 years.

1990 Census figures were not available for education level at time of report printing.
Table 13

PROPERTY VALUE, CONSTRUCTION AND BANK DEPOSITS
LAST TEN YEARS

Commercial1 Residential1

Construction Construction Bank2 Property3
Fiscal Number Number Deposits Value
Year Of Permits ~ Of Permits ~ In Millions Commercial Residential ~

1991 1,258 $ 68,441,436 1,497 $ 91,566,856 2,051.4 916,414,341 3,365,325,040 $ 4,281,739,381
1990 886 60,945,476 2,015 117,163,649 1,809.5 891,530,453 3,275,830,985 4,167,361 ,438
1989 1,051 75,174,361 1,585 100,097,540 1,761.2 923,467,750 2,961,825,002 3,885,292,752
1988 863 59,063,356 1,759 78,047,673 1,670.8 9n,003,150 2,632,373,157 3,609,376,307
1987 822 64,774,857 1,624 69,088,218 1,632.6 943,517,080 2,583,401,726 3,526,918,806
1986 832 57,681,113 1,759 68,144,887 1,592.8 789,751,765 2,524,355,518 3,314,107,283
1985 837 69,232,353 1,721 58,636,876 1,228.0 776,600,000 2,482,044,926 3,258,644,926
1984 720 56,310,073 1,734 56,474,850 1,244.0 664,955,718 2,319,739,263 2,984,694,981
1983 706 62,675,694 1,534 37,876,203 1,098.0 653,704,075 2,280,487,210 2,934,191,285

i' 1982 625 45,746,743 1,202 13,653,142 1,025.1 629,089,057 1,955,768,588 2,584,857,645

Sources:
1City of lincoln, Department of Building and Safety
2Uncoln Chamber of Commerce
3Lancaster County Assessor
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Financial Statistics - Continued

Table 14

TEN LARGEST TAXPAYERS

Listed below are the ten largest taxpayers in the City of Lincoln as reported by the County Assessor.
These taxpayers each pay less than five percent of the total taxes levied.

Taxpayers

Lincoln Telephone & Telegraph
Ameritas Financial Services
Goodyear Tire & Rubber Co.
Mid-America Webpress, Inc.
Cornhusker Square Land Company
Jacobs, Visconsi & Jacobs Co.
Otto Gaspar
State Farm
National Bank of Commerce
Minnegasco

Type Of Business

Telecommunications
Insurance
Manufacturing
Printing
Developers
Shopping Center
Real Estate Developer
Insurance
Banking
Natural Gas

1990
Assessed
Valuations

$106,456,889
42,711,755
37,444,303
27,998,605
27,544,206
26,697,712
20,390,484
19,814,521
19,351,398
18,767 046

$ 347,176,919

Percentage
Of Total

Assessed
Valuation

1.95%
.78
.69
.51
.50
.49
.37
.36
.35

6,340/0

Table 15

MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICS
AUGUST 31,1991

Date of Incorporation: 1869
Form of Government: Mayor-Council, Home

Rule Charter
Area: 63.83 square miles
Lane Miles of Streets: 1,880.0 miles
Number of Street Lights: 18,646

Recreation and Culture
Park System: 74 parks & playgrounds/5,000

acres
Libraries: 7
Recreation Centers: 6
Swimming Pools (Public): 9
Golf Courses (Public): 4

Fire Protection
Number of Stations: 13
Number of Firefighters: 255

Police Protection
Number of Stations: 1
Number of Police Officers: 244

127

Water Department
Number of Consumers: 60,917
Average Daily Consumption: 34,639,000

gallons
Miles of Water Mains: 904 miles

Sanitary Sewer
Number of Consumers: 59,484
Miles: 740.4

Education
Public Schools:

Senior High Schools: 4
Junior High Schools: 9
Elementary Schools: 34
Number of Students: 28,806

Private and Parochial Schools:
Number of Schools: 30
Number of Students: 4,906
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Deloitte&
Touche

1040 NBC Center
Lincoln, Nebraska 68508

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE
SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

The Honorable Mayor
and Members of the City Council
Lincoln, Nebraska

Telephone: (402) 474-1776
Facsimile: (402) 474-0365

We have audited the general purpose financial statements of the City of Lincoln,
Nebraska for the year ended August 31, 1991, and have issued our report thereon
dated January 15, 1992. These general purpose financ ial s ta tements are the
responsibility of the management of the City of Lincoln, Nebraska. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these general purpose financial
statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards
and Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the general purpose financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the general
purpose financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an 0p1n1on on the general
purpose financial statements of the City of Lincoln, Nebraska taken as a whole.
The accompanying supplemental schedule of federal financial assistance for the
year ended August 31, 1991, which is also the responsibility of the management
of the City of Lincoln, Nebraska, is presented for purposes of additional
analysis and is not a required part of the general purpose financial statements.
Such supplemental schedule has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in our audit of the general purpose financial statements and, in our opinion, is
fairly stated in all material respects when considered in relation to the
general purpose financial statements taken as a whole.

January 15, 1992
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CITY OF UNCOLN, NE 1-1

SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE (ALL FUNDS)
YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 1991

Accrued Grantee Accrued
(Deferred) Matching (Deferred)

Grant Grant Contrbutions Grant
Federal Revenues Revenues & Misc. f1evenues

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Tille CFDA Number Grant Number Sept. 1, 1990 Received Revenues Expenditures ~~,1991

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
Direct Programs:

Summer Food Service Program 10.559 6191-8/91 $. 26,521 2~6,521

Summer Food Service Program 10.559 6190-8/90 _____~625JL 18,ZQ£
----------~~---

~____12,978 ___1,034

Total U.S. Department Of Agriculture .1_- __625~_ 18,702
-----_._-~-~

____~,499 _---37,555

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
Pass-Through State Department Of Health:

Aids 13.118 May-91 $ 19,994 36,582 16,588
Aids 13.118 May-90 48,880 87,369 1,856 39,538 (807)
Hypertension Grant 90/91 13.991 0991 81NEPRVS 17,699 17,699
Hypertension Grant 89/90 13.991 0990 81NEPRVS 1,679 3,992 (993) 1,320
Cholesterol 13.991 91-P-18/C 2,298 11,797 9,499
Cholesterol 13.991 90-P-18/C (3,645) 2,200 1,983 (3,862)
Cholesterol 13.991 89-P-18/C 3,331 3,439 108

I-' Childhood Injury Surveillance 13.991 91-P-15/C 433 6,982 6,549
w

Childhood Injury Surveillance 13.991 9O-P-15/C & 89-P-15/C 3,013 3,320 307I-'

High Risk Newborn 13.991 92M-Q71C 4,210 4,210
High Risk Newborn 13.991 91M-Q71C 20,386 30.245 9,859
High Risk Newborn 13.991 9OM-Q71C 3,619 5,673 2,153 99
High Risk Newborn 13.991 89M-Q71C (1,902) (1,902)
Epidemiology 91 13.991113.994 91-P-17/C 12,847 13,222 375
Epidemiology 90 13.991/13.994 9O-P-17/C (5,247) 1,425 (:3,822)

Pass-Through State Department Of Aging:
Title 1118 13.633 NGA-92-028 333,973 351,873 17,900
Title 1118 13.633 NGA-91-Q82 14,404 273,729 1,304,994 1,564,319
Title 1lIC(1) 13.635 NGA-92-Q29 97,286 115,676 18,390
Title lIIC(1) 13.635 NGA-91-Q83 19,119 310,408 298,802 590,555 464
Title IIIC(2) 13.635 NGA-92-Q30 18,514 24,899 6,385
Title IlIC(2) 13.635 NGA-91-Q84 4,776 60,034 269,383 325,073 432
Title IIID 13.641 NGA-92-Q31 2,366 3,114 748
Title IIID 13.641 NGA-91-085 963 7,311 5,462 11,810

Pass-Through State Department Of Institutions:
CARE 13.992 90/91 2,284 21,323 19.039

Total U.S. Department Of Health And Human Services $ 91,274 828,834 2,355,264 3.173.929 __~,105

(Continued)



(Federal Financial Assistance-Continued) 1-1

Accrued Grantee Accrued
(Deferred) Matching (Deferred)

Grant Grant Contributions Grant
Federal Revenues Revenues & Misc. Revenues

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title CFDA Number Grant Number Sept. 1,1990 Received Revenues Expenditures ~~I1, 1991

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT
Direct Programs:

Fair Housing Assistance 14.146 FF207K907013 $ 6,440 5,850 (590)
Fair Housing Assistance 14.146 FF207K897013/ 3,610 3,610

~f:207K88ZQ1.~

Secretary's Discretionary Fund 14.218 (&87-SP-31-0001") (2,806) 66,200 69,006
Community Development Block Grant 14.219 s..:88~&~89:·MC:~r:0001 70,207 1,674,000 516,049 2,198,519 78,677
Section 312 Rehabilitation Loan Program 14.220 46,484 46,484

Rental Rehabilitation Loan Program 14.230 R-88189-MC-31-0201 (21,333) 71,825 74,891 117,065 1[50,984)

Pass-Through State Department of Social Services:
Emergency Shelter Grant Program 14.231 9OESGP-11-Q1 43,034 43,034 ------

Total U.S. Department Of Housing And Urban Development $ 49,678 1,911,593 590,940 2,479,958 __ 27,103

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF INTERIOR
Pass-Through State Historical Society:

Historical Preservation Fund 15.904 90/91 $ 5,827 15,575 9,748
Historical Preservation Fund 15.904 89/90 7,830 11,955 6,438 10,563

.,...
W Pass-Through State Game And Parks Commission:N

Rock Island Railroad 15.919 31-00814 1,500 --~

Total U.S. Department Of Interior i~~~330_ 11,955 __1~2!g§~ _?M3JL __ 11,248

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
Pass-Through State Com. On Law Enforcement And Criminal Justice:

Victim Witness Unit 16.575 9O-VA-220 $ 33,763 11,050 53,265 8,452
Victim Witness Unit 16.575 89-VA-213 12,203 12,203
LincJlanc. Co. Coop. Street Drug Dealer Apprehensk>n Program 16.579 9O-DA-321 _§,2~~ _~JJ3Z,-~1Z_ 85,219 323,488 __ 57,208

Total U.S. Department of Justice $ 18,459 233,283 96,269 376,753 __ 65,660

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
Pass-Through State Department of Aging:

Title V (SCSEP) 17.235 NGA-92-045 $ 2,903 10,417 7,514
Title V (SCSEP) 17.235 NGA-91-Q74 3,844 58,195 15,781 70,179 47
Title V (SCSEP) 17.235 NGA-9Q-122 3,134 3,134
JTPA 17.250 NGA-92-05O 3,291 3,291
JTPA 17.250 NGA-91-086 2,048 30,730 28,682
JTPA 17.250 NGA-91-Q87 433 12,660 12,392 165
JTPA 17.250 NGA-91-Q89 480 13,280 12,994 194
JTPA 17.250 NGA-9Q-091 195 195

(Continued)
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(Federal Financial Assistance-Continued)

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title

Title IV-A - 1991 Focal Point Workshop
Title IV-A - 1991 Governor's Conference
Title IV-A - Train the Trainer
Title IV-A - AGA Seminar

Total Other Federal Assistance

Total Federal Assistance

Federal
CFDA Number Grant Number

$

$

Accrued
(Deferred)

Grant
Revenues

Sept. 1, 1990

13,451

282,634

1-1

Grantee Accrued
Matching (Deferred)

Grant Contributions Grant
Revenues & Misc. l=1evenues
Received Revenues Expenditures ~9.:.1J~

250 10 260
261 22 283
44 6 50

110 110 ------
132,187 341 130.632 ___11.555

6,390,795 7.255.084 13,717,894 _.-.2.?4,649

Federal
CFDA Number

(1) For purposes of this schedule, expenditures are on a GAAP basis while revenues are on a cash basis.
(2) The City has a Section 108 loan with an outstanding principal balance at August 31.1991 of $264,094. This loan. through the Community Development Block Grant,

is repaid by direct payment in November of each year.
(3) Federal expenditures per this schedule are considered to be total expenditures less grantee matching contributions and miscellaneous revenues.
(4) Major programs of the City are:

Federal
Agency

i-'

W
VI

Department of Housing & Urban Development
Department of Labor
Department of Transportation
Department of Health & Human Services
Department of Health & Human Services

14.219
17.250
20.507
13.633
13.635
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Deloitte&
Touche

o 1040 NBC Center
Lincoln, Nebraska 68508

Telephone: (402) 4141/1f3
Facsimile: (402) 474-0365

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' COMPLIANCE REPORT BASED ON
AN AUDIT OF GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Honorable Mayor
and Members of the City Council
Lincoln, Nebraska

We have audited the general purpose financial statements of the City of Lincoln,
Nebraska as of August 31, 1991 and for the year then ended, and have issued our
report thereon dated January 15, 1992.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards
and Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the general purpose financial
statements are free of material misstatement.

Compliance with laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to the City
of Lincoln, Nebraska is the responsibility of the management of the City of
Lincoln, Nebraska. As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the
general purpose financial statements are free of material misstatement, we
performed tests of the City's compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grants. However, our objective was not to provide
an opinion on overall compliance with such provisions.

The results of our tests indicate that, with respect to the items tested, the
City of Lincoln, Nebraska complied, in all material respects, with the
provisions referred to in the preceding paragraph. With respect to items not
tested, nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that the City
had not complied, in all material respects, with those provisions.

This report is intended for the information of the mayor and city council
members, management, and officials of the cognizant agency. This restriction is
not intended to limit the distribution of this report, which is a matter of
public record.

January 15, 1992

Member
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Deloitte&
Touche

.4l1>.o 1040 NBC Center
Lincoln, Nebraska 68508

Telephone: (402) 474-1776
Facsimile: (402) 474-0365

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE GENERAL
REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO MAJOR FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS

The Honorable Mayor
and Members of the City Council
Lincoln, Nebraska

We have applied procedures to test the City of Lincoln, Nebraska compliance with
the following requirements applicable to each of its major federal financial
assistance programs, which are identified in the schedule of federal financial
assistance, for the year ended August 31, 1991:

e Political activity
• Davis-Bacon Act
• Civil rights
• Cash management
• Relocation assistance and real property acquisition
• Federal financial reports
• Allowable costs/cost principles
• Drug-free Workplace Act
• Administrative requirements

Our procedures were limited to the applicable procedures described in Office of
Management and Budget's Compliance Supplement for Single Audits of State and
Local Governments. Our procedures were substantially less in scope than an
aUdit, the objective of which is the expression of an opinion on the City of
Lincoln, Nebraska's compliance with the requirements listed in the preceding
paragraph. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

With respect to the items tested, the results of those procedures disclosed no
material instances of noncompliance with the requirements listed in the first
paragraph of this report. With respect to items not tested, nothing came to our
attention that caused us to believe that the City of Lincoln, Nebraska had not
complied, in all material respects, with those requirements. However, the
results of our procedures disclosed immaterial instances of noncompliance with
those requirements, which are described in the accompanying schedule of findings
and questioned costs.

International 138



This report is intended for the information of the mayor and city council
members, management, and officials of the cognizant agency_ This restriction is
not intended to limit the distribution of this report, which is a matter of
public record.

January 15, 1992
Lincoln, Nebraska
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Detoitte&
Touche

1040 NBC Center
Lincoln, Nebraska 68508

Telephone: (402) 474-1776
Facsimile: (402) 474-0365

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH
SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO BOTH MAJOR

AND NONMAJOR FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS

The Honorable Mayor
and Members of the City Council
Lincoln, Nebraska

We have audited the City of Lincoln, Nebraska's compliance with the requirements
governing types of services allowed or unallowed; eligibility; matching, level
of effort or earmarking; reporting; special tests and provisions related to
charter bus agreements, school bus agreements, uniform system of accounts,
public hearing notices, disposal of realty and related transit equipment,
environmental review mitigation measures, elderly and handicapped fares, "Buy
America" requirement, audit resolution report, single unit charge costs,
technical assistance and evaluations, offering contribution opportunities to the
elderly, HUD approval of the RROF, environmental review, and accounting for
pre-and post-closeout CDBG funds; claims for advances and reimbursements; and
amounts claimed or used for matching that are applicable to each of its major
federal financial assistance programs, which are identified in the accompanying
schedule of federal financial assistance, for the year ended August 31, 1991.
The management of the City of Lincoln, Nebraska is responsible for the City of
Lincoln, Nebraska's compliance with those requirements. Our responsibility is
to express an opinion on compliance with those requirements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards,
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States, and Office of Management and Budget Circular A-128, "Audits of State and
Local Governments." Those standards and OMB Circular A-128 require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material
noncompliance with the requirements referred to above occurred. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City of Lincoln,
Nebraska's compliance wi th those requirements. We be lieve that our audi t
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

The results of our audit procedures disclosed immaterial instances of
noncompliance with the requirements referred to above, which are described in
the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. We considered these
instances of noncompliance in forming our opinion on compliance, which is
expressed in the following paragraph.
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In our opinion, the City of Lincoln, Nebraska complied, in all material
respects, with the requirements governing types of services allowed or
unallowed; eligibility; matching, level of effort or earmarking; reporting;
special tests and provisions related to charter bus agreements, school bus
agreements, uniform system of accounts, public hearing notices, disposal of
realty and related transit equipment, environmental review mitigation measures,
elderly and handicapped fares, "Buy America" requirement, audit resolution
report, single unit charge costs, technical assistance and evaluations, offering
contribution opportunities to the elderly, HUD approval of the RROF,
environmental review, and accounting for pre-and post-closeout CDBG funds;
claims for advances and reimbursements; and amounts claimed or used for matching
that are applicable to each of its major federal financial assistance programs
for the year ended August 31, 1991.

In connection with our audit of the 1991 general purpose financial statements of
the City of Lincoln, Nebraska and with our study and evaluation of the City of
Lincoln, Nebraska internal control structures used to administer federal
financial assistance programs, as required by Office of Management and Budget
Circular A-128, "Audits of State and Local Governments," we selected certain
transactions applicable to certain nonmajor federal financial assistance
programs for the year ended August 31, 1991.

As required by OMB Circular A-128, we have performed auditing procedures to test
compliance with the requirements governing types of services allowed or
unallowed and eligibility that are applicable to those transactions. Our
procedures were substantially less in scope than an audit, the objective of
which is the expression of an opinion on the City of Lincoln, Nebraska's
compliance with these requirements. Accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion.

With respect to the items tested, the results of those procedures disclosed no
material instances of noncompliance with the requirements listed in the
preceding paragraph. With respect to items not tested, nothing came to our
attention that caused us to believe that the City of Lincoln, Nebraska had not
complied, in all material respects, with those requirements.

This report is intended for the information of the mayor and city council
members, management, and officials of the cognizant agency. This restriction is
not intended to limit the distribution of this report, which is a matter of
public record.

January 15, 1992
Lincoln, Nebraska
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CITY OF LINCOLN, NEBRASKA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31. 1991

Immaterial Findings:

Jobs Training Partnership Act (CFDA #17.250) -

A. Condition - In a sample of 25 expenditures selected for testing, one
instance was noted whereby office supplies expense of $152.88 for copy
machine toner was misa1located between Titles I (Administration), IIA,
and lIB.

B. Criteria - The standardized overhead allocation policy for office
supplies at the time the cost was incurred was to allocate 10% of the
cost to Title I (Administration), 40% to Title IIA, and 50% to Title
lIB.

C. Effect - The actual allocation utilized was to allocate 20% of the cost
to Title I (Administration), 40% to Title IIA, and 40% to Title lIB. As
a result, $15.29 was allocated to Title I (Administration) which should
have been allocated to Title lIB.

D. Cause - Clerical error.

Aging Title III. Part B (CFDA #13.633) -

A. Condition - In a sample of 25 expenditures selected for testing, one
instance was noted whereby social services expense of $37,091.92 was
misallocated between the access cost center and all other cost centers.

B. Criteria - The standardized cost allocation ratio for social services
expense was to allocate 13% of the cost to the access cost center, 42%
to all other cost centers, and 45% to Title III, Part C cost centers.

C. Effect - The actual allocation utilized was to allocate 12.5% of the
cost to the access cost center, 42.5% to all other cost centers, and 45%
to Title III, Part C cost centers. As a result, $185.46 was allocated
to all other cost centers which should have been allocated to the access
cost center.

D. Cause - Program costs are allocated using a computerized spreadsheet,
Spreadsheet cell contents were input in decimal format as opposed to
whole numbers.

Community Development Block Grants (CFDA #14.219) -

A. Condition - Reported expenditures in the second quarter 1991 SF-272
Federal Cash Transactions Report were understated.

B. Criteria - SF-272 quarterly expenditures are obtained by aggregating the
applicable monthly expenditure reports.

C. Effect - Total quarterly expenditures were understated by $3,000.

D. Cause - The occurrence of a mathematical error while aggregating the
applicable monthly expenditure reports.
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Deloitte &
Touche

o 1040 NBC Center
Lincoln, Nebraska 68508

Telephone (402) 4/4 ·lllb
Facsimile: (402) 474-0365

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE INTERNAL CONTROL STRUCTURE
USED IN ADMINISTERING FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS

The Honorable Mayor
and Members of the City Council
Lincoln, Nebraska

We have audited the general purpose financial statements of the City of Lincoln,
Nebraska as of and for the year ended August 31, 1991, and have issued our
report thereon dated January 15, 1992. We have also audited the City of
Lincoln, Nebraska's compliance with requirements applicable to major federal
financial assistance programs and have issued our report thereon dated
January 15, 1992.

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards; Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States; and Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-l28,
"Audits of State and Local Governments." Those standards and OMB Circular A-128
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the general purpose financial statements are free of material
misstatement and about whether the City of Lincoln, Nebraska complied with laws
and regulations, noncompliance with which would be material to a maj or federal
financial assistance program.

In planning and performing our audits for the year ended August 31, 1991, we
considered the City'.s internal control structure in order to determine our
auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the City's
general purpose financial statements and on its compliance with requirements
applicable to major federal financial assistance programs and not to provide
assurance on the internal control structure. This report addresses our
consideration of internal control structure policies and procedures relevant to
compliance with requirements applicable to federal financial assistance
programs. We have addressed policies and procedures relevant to our audit of
the general purpose financial statements in a separate report dated January 15,
1992.

Member
AA.
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The management of the City of Lincoln, Nebraska is responsible for establishing
and maintaining an internal control structure. In fulfilling this
responsibility, estimates and judgments by management are required to assess the
expected benefits and related costs of internal control structure policies and
procedures. The objectives of an internal control structure are to provide
management with reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that assets are
safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use or disposition, that transactions
are executed in accordance with management's authorization and recorded properly
to permit the preparation of general purpose financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that federal financial
assistance programs are managed in compliance with applicable laws and
regulations. Because of inherent limitations in any internal control structure,
errors, irregularities, or instances of noncompliance may nevertheless occur and
not be detected. Also, projection of any evaluation of the structure to future
periods is subject to the risk that procedures may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions or that the effectiveness of the design and operation of
policies and procedures may deteriorate.

For the purpose of this report, we have classified the significant internal
control structure policies and procedures used in administering federal
financial assistance programs in the following categories:

General Requirements

• Political activity
• Davis-Bacon Act
• Civil rights
• Cash management
• Relocation assistance and real property management
• Federal financial reports
• Allowable costs/cost principles
• Drug-free Workplace Act
• Administrative requirements

Specific Requirements

• Types of services
• Eligibility
• Matching, level of effort, or earmarking
• Reporting
• Cost allocation
• Special requirements
• Monitoring subrecipients

Claims for Advances and Reimbursements

Amounts Claimed or Used for Matching

For all of the internal control structure categories listed above, we obtained
an understanding of the design of relevant policies and procedures and
determined whether they have been placed in operation, and we assessed control
risk.
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During the year ended August 31, 1991 the City of Lincoln, Nebraska expended 86
percent of its total federal financial assistance under major federal financial
assistance programs.

We performed tests of controls, as required by OMB Circular A-128, to evaluate
the effectiveness of the design and operation of internal control structure
policies and procedures that we considered relevant to preventing or detecting
material noncompliance with specific requirements, general requirements, and
requirements governing claims for advances and reimbursements and amounts
claimed or used for matching that are applicable to each of the City's major
federal financial assistance programs, which are identified in the accompanying
schedule of federal financial assistance. Our procedures were less in scope
than would be necessary to render an opinion on these internal control structure
policies and procedures. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

Reportable conditions involve matters coming to our attention relating to
significant deficiencies in the design or operation of the internal control
structure that, in our judgment, could adversely affect the City's ability to
administer federal financial assistance programs in accordance with applicable
laws and regulations.

A material weakness is a reportable condition in which the design or operation
of one or more of the internal control structure elements does not reduce to a
relatively low level the risk that noncompliance with laws and regulations that
would be material to a federal financial assistance program may occur and not be
detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions.

Our consideration of the internal control structure would not necessarily
disclose all matters in the internal control structure that might be reportable
conditions and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all reportable
conditions that are also considered to be material weaknesses as defined above.
We noted no matters involving the internal control structure and its operations
that we consider to be material weaknesses as defined above.

However, we noted other matters involving the internal control structure and its
operation that we have reported to the management of the City of Lincoln,
Nebraska in a separate letter dated January IS, 1992.

This report is intended for the information of the mayor and city council
members, management, and officials of the cognizant agency. This restriction is
not intended to limit the distribution of this report, which is a matter of
public record.

January IS, 1992
Lincoln, Nebraska
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Deloi &
Touche

1040 NBC Center
Lincoln, Nebraska 68508

Te!ephone: (402) 474-1776
Facsimile: (402) 474-0365

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE INTERNAL CONTROL STRUCTURE

The Honorable Mayor
and Members of the City Council
Lincoln, Nebraska

We have audited the general purpose financial statements of the City of Lincoln,
Nebraska as of and for the year ended August 31, 1991, and have issued our
report thereon dated January 15, 1992.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards
and Government Auditin~ Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the general purpose financial
statements are free of material misstatement.

In planning and performing our audit of the general purpose financial statements
of the City of Lincoln, Nebraska for the year ended August 31, 1991, we
considered its internal control structure in order to determine our auditing
procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the general purpose
financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control
structure.

The management of the City of Lincoln, Nebraska is responsible for establishing
and maintaining the internal control structure. In fulfilling this
responsibility, estimates and judgments by management are required to assess the
expected benefits and related costs of internal control structure policies and
procedures. The objectives of an internal control structure are to provide
management with reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that assets are
safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use or disposition, and that
transactions are executed in accordance with management's authorization and
recorded properly to permit the preparation of general purpose financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Because
of inherent limitations in any internal control structure, errors or
irregularities may nevertheless occur and not be detected. Also, projection of
any evaluation of the structure to future periods is subject to the risk that
procedures may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the
effectiveness of the design and operation of policies and procedures may
deteriorate.
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For the purpose of this report, we have classified the significant internal
control structure policies and procedures in the following categories:

• Billings
• Cash receipts
• Purchasing and rece~v~ng

• Cash disbursements
• Payroll
• General ledger

For all of the internal control structure categories listed above, we obtained
an understanding of the design of relevant policies and procedures and whether
they have been placed in operation, and we assessed control risk.

Our consideration of the internal control structure would not necessarily
disclose all matters in the internal control structure that might be material
weaknesses under standards established by the American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. A material weakness is a reportable condition in which the
design or operation of one or more of the specific internal control structure
elements does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that errors or
irregularities in amounts that would be material in relation to the general
purpose financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within
a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control structure and its
operation that we consider to be material weaknesses as defined above.

However, we noted certain matters involving the internal control structure and
its operation that we have reported to the management of the City of Lincoln,
Nebraska in a separate communication dated January 15, 1992.

This report is intended for the information of the mayor and city council
members, management, and officials of the cognizant agency. This restriction is
not intended to limit the distribution of this report, which is a matter of
public record.

January 15, 1992
Lincoln, Nebraska
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